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50,000 9oF Yaea T W €10/ TAF
iii) SreAFTEEAEr aree araT Fosh f
50,000 Yot Sgcad T AT F.10/- T
iv) SIS EEET fae sirare araT v
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A 12 : 3=y I-adaw aRuufeaut
(%) TR Rww saa(dEd)
. RS a2 SR TR ) st Rew @ & iy
- 3T T & I 3,52,23,57,636 2,73,34,35,098
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HA (&) 97,236,618 40,34,558
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(@) Frsufee fre o @ faw Ay dfaer st $r srgaifara ol fersr gaws
=1 T 7Y fomarr ara
- gafr @rar
- GRETSAT fwRry & IOt gUAe Eierd
(T Fu=Ar ¥ W T I Ry Ty awd

24 et g A s eg

| el wper & sl
[ R
- R arar emw

25 o1 ThersT Y sErent

(i) Saraierfg
iy ¥ew FFrHt S Qv

26 Wag 9IEf Z@nr sgEom

I SREOTYE A B1ES T T 39T ZanT Sy Heg 9 Rveer @ gew &
WA HIoTF & HJHR Hag TTEA HEAgar §:

#F B I IEAEHN wNTarfrd e tEe A 3uae
AT o 3TE SeTATS AL (S3mEE)

w  EgEE U

HHATST 9%
31 AT, 2017

AT 7Y
31 A, 2016

1,04,48,40,418
1,37,71,176

11,71,985

2,25,000
50,000

1,19,36,26,673
40,34,558

6,62,853

2,87,500
45,000

275000

3,32 500

N

iRl Rel Re U B8

.

LR Rl el Rl )
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Rreeht Had site@ i FIfER R e far.
WHTET: J454008TT2008NTAH172316

fredhr faaooit 4T Al 31 AT, 2017 ) GRS a¥ & v

it & fae e
T U vailveE
ar3fEeT g 3 Sqeraste wrftes for g &
T HET YU HE
A FEed HAR B
#r erga A8 B} g
i Heaher HFR TAT gl
I 3 QeTRY 3 T 3T & S Aeda A Tl v A fAwrad o€
ofir wae #)
3w foreraT
i .
104 mﬁm{lsl ™ Tisaew sedrasir HET YFUF FHAR
W/ e ot
TFEATHAT I
SrTATETERE T Hier araT Hue o 21,894,269 (Cr) WA S T
(42,44,808) (T (EF) (FD
FroATEHEY T R Huar 5,000 (Dr) Ht T T
: (5.000) R () {24}
eSSy SErqT graT Huel 5,000 (Dr) UT FT T
(5.000) (FF (D ()
eSS areer ara Hye 5,000 (Dr) LT T T
(5,000} () (W) ()
SromanSad e smeTE araT e 5,000 (Dr) T > >
(5,000) () (F )
rafer & e @ dade
SUATEEE fAAEAT HeR arat 9 3 30,92,755 LW Sl P
{43,11,204) (¥ (FH) (T
ATAINSHEET et Tray Fual ey 5,000 L T T
{5,000) FT () (FT)
BromandardnT SaTqY TraT FHuaT for. 5,000 T =T T
(5,000 EFD ) ()
ATANEHET FTee TraT H= 5,000 T T T
{5,000) (=) (=) (=3}
FroramS ey faer smaTs uraw e o 5,000 =T T i
(5.000) () (= =
#y HeHU FAN AAT U L W 57,41,600
() (T (FT) (14,32,884)
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© Rea fas stz PR frwm fnmr .

£ HIHEUA: 4540030200801 72316

e Rty Ragoif v At 31 ar, 2017 Y waTer ad @ e

£, darxt @ Rw A

) ' 3afer & S wuel ar sifae dede v facor

R F AGT AU FIHF &Y AT

o AT 3ol FAT WA Uy LT LT 57,41,600
: () (FH) (F) (14,32,884)

@  HeaarddH e e et s

o T By 30,92,755 Uy ey i)
o (43.11,204) () () (W
_ T AT T Y R F
&3 forar s ey 5,000 W Wa LT
- (5.000) {Nit) () ()
_ T S At are T e .
i farar mar sy 5,000 AW W= b
-~ (5.000) (RET) () ()
o 5 erariiSd arde @ wae e &
b o Tt e 5,000 (I WA *TT
o (5.000) () (F) ()
o T fewamiEded A srs @ gew S
i fopar ot e 5,000 AT LT AL
oy (5.000) (k) () ()
2 s ivs() A e e i g s i fr w gt &

27 WIz(ged @) Rafdsr
FIA e er PN arslyateafae dalante stz ArehRaw sufiis duers=fi & srea e,

o 3T 3R EHTNF HEAT 5 Y Y T, T ot AR CIeT 0t 3 raat &) A% 2 waer I 3 S0F

- foaste & el &, e 370W-17 ST weed st 3 fafaas Reie seuyont ey e 8

2 28 wfy v i

2 Sfer T A 31STeT T TTOT T IR G I F 3T 3 FAT O @y AT R e HEaT § ST 39 R v

=

' AT at wHTCT IF

3 L1 yfre 31 AT, 2017 31 7T, 2016
¥ T I ¥ wefta i S v e TUT (F) 2,60,63,349 1,64,38,734

2 SH/(gTTeY)

& 3Uey Fr Aot  faw gl & wy & g frware ot dr FEar 10,00,00,000 10,00,00,000

2 [T AT B Few Hr aie ea

_ n  ufd R SRR It (@) FIT (3) 0.26 0.16

- T e W T 3Rk T (3) 10.00 10.00

3
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fereelt Zad st FRER Rrwwr fr for.
3TETA: Y454003TA2008NTAHU172316

facdy frawoit 9w AYe 31 A1, 2017 9 GATSG 9§ & AT

dunt # faeae
29 dF@iFaT e & giiads

2&.5000/—@mﬁmmqﬁﬁmﬁymﬁwﬁ@mﬁmmmwm SHS Forasy aREfeaat
adEr aredh 7S TRy AR T O 2T @ AW A are A A & e €.4,415/- FH T RAr =4 )

30 @ar forgfe amer
R LGULGEERAG K G I

HUAT o 31 A, 2017 T TATST I 3 FT aT% Ud grfey & FaaRor & sifsy At o8 f awafdd e & U o aRerva
3iTET TIStelr & T F. 24,32,684/- (71T ¥ ®.11,55,579/- T TRy =7 welienrt faar g1

qfenfd & IEan

F. Ay rfAtaEa): 5 9§ T JaT B T Y T WG B GHY Ul G BT e ad 3 e 16 el F Har & st &
| aredfas Heaiee I [T i gU E. 5.41,461/- F TR (T 9§ - ¥, 6,33,756 ) H WA= 31 HE, 2017 F FATT

TH gifer & faTur & fRar aram g1

. IR AHAIHOT (HATDH): Fel 7 01 WA, 2016 B 3T AFEEHTOT T AT Y e Ry &1 i B e sAurl
a4 3 2 T iR AT & e 91g @ ast & v gRdl 7 3 S gewer A Sy f 37 AITETFLOT et &7
T ETT| I THERFIT P HeT, ST oF i1 IR S o (e I A 1 qfe & e & GROr foam e &

A= (Fig)

31 #T, 2017 31 #r, 2016

TS gTor % faaor of =y Fr aeierEr e

rafer & 3ia # (31/03/2017) aTica &1 TEAH Jo 17,42,914 12,01,453
Iraflr & 3e A(31/03/2016) eIV &1 FeTHANT Hed 12,01,453 5,67,697
3T TR a1 ey -

TIFAT TRAFG el I e iaeh wrey - -
stfearger wARST . -
YT TE griey & AT H wead g 541,461 6,33,756

anT v gifa & e # WHigd =

ey & 3w 7 S ufraufaat & sfa J5 - -
HTEIET A S - -
Trarar aRrEufeas) 9T s e - -
TSt &7 3ieeT -

fer T ATy - -
AT TRt o areafae ameErte) - -
ey & 37 A Srerer gREyieaat e sa gy - -
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N

s

ke

e

freelt Had siteatfrs PIRER fwnr B i,
WITETA: Y45400AT@2008FreaElr172316

ey et g ate 31 ard, 2017 Fraacg o R BT

darat & foe A

31

e afraafarat w 3R s

3afe & W A Do aReRaat s sfa g5 -
ESjpietugreinire -
e i TeTat 9T weaRa s -
e &7 3ivrET .
ICLERE .
33 & 3 o Do ottt & sRa gew -
fafeaor $r feufy . .
et aRtEufeaat w wasfag sy o1 areatass = st -

o vd e & Ravor & vt sw

T AT wrTE 4,35,002 3,15,199

& |G FAT

ST ST 96,116 45,4186

et airaieaat gv wea i @y
FEXr Arv/(oT) -

waftr 7 e g areaiaw (@t 10,25:; 2,73,141

T vd gifer & avor A wivega e 541,461 6.33,756

gRaedar :

[ T : 8% ufar a¥ 8% ufay a¥
ardr e gfy 6% wfer ay 6%ufa a¥

e aivaetagl e gmfAa wmr ey

TRy T o ARG HIAT A ghy # ey i afisaar, sawfa stk sy gt forae Ioem a1 & qf S s
mam%aag?ﬁammmmﬁ w e =

I YT CFYRTS HEheT shell GaRT AT )
T B T A E AT F AFAR GEAI TS 3¢S O Iy ¥
HTHTRES HIORAT, 2006 B HTUR YA, Y v HegH 3ZE B THE 1 Rawor

HFH oY 03 HOIH ST Qe 1fae, 2006 & Hadia 3oaeh Goleor 3N 99T ot sarar 39t & gt o s1era 3 g7 semat
# at & 37T 7 2 vl & g e mar

32 W oty (9Em)

FU B U Bleel et AoRFrgRY, 78 el & arsde ov 3N I e 9% & v e snfee o £ AEEE (erEn 6 AR Fr
%@aﬁmmw&ﬁﬁﬁgwmﬁwmﬁwmﬁmmmﬁ#mlmm%mm
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e dag sigmfs FfiER e s .
WETA: 9454008020089 Toredr 172316

frer RaTot u F 31 ATE, 2017 *Y AT 91 & faw

sat # A A

33 UREeT frer At & Fuel T e vF yerer o7 R I s @ S 39 & 3 e I Redhyr awt & o fas
TFRT I GaRT S FRAT 3T, ST fer S TE FETerar Sders i froauly @ e 7% v gu aREs e ea Y i

fRar T &1

4 Mﬁm@ﬁaﬁammmwmmmm e YR o, SrumsmsEEaT $eTqY ureT
Fuaf 7, SruASUEreT aree qreR Hue ¥, ATAINSEEET faer A1eTs ure 9T B ATH F HYAT (FAfaar 3 Toree 8
FOfarat & T gere) WTATaa,2016 3 e ufsd #oel 3RATRTR,2013 $r €RT 248 # YraHTH! # IHFER Haferal b Toaw
%@ﬁﬁm$mﬁm$mmaﬁmﬁmw,mmm,zowaﬂﬁwmqﬁ?—r
T |
W%ﬁﬁuaﬁzms-waﬁmmaﬁmﬁﬁmﬁam%mgﬁWﬁuﬁamaﬁﬁwmﬁn AT
aReaEETT 3 ARYOTAY & eI U i aTar & 33N 3 T o ferd st & w9 o e R am gl

35 Reeel Ha% e ARER R R . @uaadEe & At sz 3 fGais 16 Ada, 2016 FI g8 3T 42T S A
AT, w,mﬁﬁm,mﬁWWMWWﬁﬁmmmﬁmﬁmwm
I o aTw e & heT o) SAINSHERT F fEAw 03/12/2016 3 UF EaRT B T4 TRt 1 ofdy aroe o1 R i

FERTSE 3ME i Pare Frera(TEanEde) o o7 Rt 10/02/2017 Ganr SeAsTeE f. ZART WS 3 AT S S AR
1 AT @ AT epiEe G AT 2 3R FERISE # A TS ara warhelt sy & 97§ et TR & 95 wfaRe aiter e 71

mmﬁ%wﬁ@m%ﬁmﬁ%%%m@%ﬁwﬁmﬁﬁ@maﬁmﬁm
& e wafaT qere o &1 HEHEIE A S 3 ¢ '
Foetr 1 ol # WoeEE FAEE # RT AT R

36 ToTERTeT U 3 Arer Ay @ aher R Hftarger ¥ Fe it oea & e 9T # F v A e S el I gl 4fF o
HRTETT & e B & FHFT AR ¥ 3R T T Ho EIEIT I5T TER 3 ZTa H AT B30T U 7 AT T 39
FTATORT AT QT & HHET U Hr3we? Uindfe qrr R ¢ R afdard) & &9 3 wel & A i gerar e

THe 3TATAT UL UTAT T FIAT I HIS FeelrT gera off AT g §1
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]

el Hag stemifie PRER R B far,
HIATET: J454008Te2008 0o 172316

freir fraoort ox Ate 31 #719, 2017 M yATT I P &vT

FaEnf & fwae

37 08 FE=R, 2016 W 30 R, 2016 F 3l & N1t F9al g@RT e iR Ao T ame Ay ¥ Ave (valioe) o7 ety
e

THANCH (T) I HETad & aAre (T) et ()

08/11/2016 T e STINY 6,000 22,773 28,773
TS S BIAT § TereRra - 84,000 84,000
S [T dAeiesT & Teaan 1,279 1,279
U, TaThd olslce & faT JararT - 77,943 77,943
TETT. 3 Wid 3 STAT TTaT 6,000 - 6,000
30.12.2016 &t gTY H e, GHATTT - 30,109 30,109

38 T ¥ & T Y Gl T e § 3R STt Y e g ael ¥ o gy A aver A & v Repy R a2

HERA FHEETs T & Hgar
THUHUHR 09 viflvew & fav

IS AEHN
B TSE0T H. 47390

Bl

HE ot

S

(BEETaT H.. 089852)

TS fEeslr
e 22 53, 2017

My AsadRrwEsad e

FEar. g

HEHY HAR AAT S FHTA T

(¥ vef vy g er) (feerr)
(238U : 01724259) (FrATETT : 00654332)
BT, BECAT.

v, srararer i St

@Eg e #fed) (@ - FROe F, vaaR ve e
)
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7200

31 #TE, 2017 & AT
fAcd a¥ & faw

FAfea fAcdy [aon a1

oddr gfiaTaRr A R
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D,

o

2 9

o
&

fm,
iy

¥adq @ gfers i
B &,
HEE¥T

ge faeel Had sicmifie SIS Rwwr P RAfs (OF o5 555 o7 ula o &
¥ H sfeafad B) IR suh wers sufaal (unw Susht 3 sudr wemw SR s
Y W & ®9 A Sfeal@d &) & dov vAfRT ey Rawolt Bad amr 31 J, 2017
A & HeER wARRT gow o, TS OIW we @i wrer vd 3§ A @ ger
¥ & P SN F owAfea 0os sady Reor 3R dgeget o AfE @ur s
SAEAHF FIAH & (S T8 $6F a5 FARPT Rechy awor & w9 & saf@a ) &
o S A

wAfra ey fEl & Rir ydus 1 scaefa

URE FUA F Ruw Aze 3 wafea R Raet @ sng § s oalt w
HFa dude el Fed F (dun Fueee, 2014 ¥ B $oaner ofsa
aﬁrﬁvn@rumwsa:mmﬁﬂa&@immam%,%mmﬁ
FAfee facchy Rufa, Reds fswes aar aifee ae v &1 @ it /g efesh
VST FIAT B, B NN A F FEU Hueh w0, 2013 ol # ota swer &
fAT scerl 31 wap & wfde Sufael & wEfa fdvw Azw wRfww & yaue &
HTHN 3UGF ol FAESI & W@ & v seawerd § Sasd wng #1 aRwfsat
ﬁ@mmmmmmmﬁmﬁwmmmm,w
o Aot & waw @y 3R AR gRwearqet sfwes wear qwm Mok & sk
39gFET yiai® fedy ol F B, FEfrass v @IEE S duied sranet &
FIHA TF Qe gRARd e F BT g g @ W A @ & S wAfa ey
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tﬁmﬂﬁmgﬁﬂ:mﬂﬁﬁﬂ%@n@ﬁ%%@mm%%%%
et qar EART Redy feel # IR F F e war § arar g atae g

aaT 9fla3F &1 Icatgiied:

EANT SeaRariey gE o ufRT ¥ W @ e uafka Redy REroh & aey
# we 3fPegra w1 e ofeT e gHY gAY AR F WauTal, Juhe U dr
ufien AweE A HARTE F gl 3d 3EF g saw av ARt F siaea aar gfen
e & e U o= arer Al @ eas # @ g

gAeT wfas € a-143(10) & dga Rfafise dar glism AwwT F EER S
o & ¥l 3 A F HGER U9 WS ¥ B e AAE S F AeIeE FOAN
ﬁéﬁmwmmﬁmégw%maﬁaﬁmﬁMNamm
Y F AT dwr oder gafaa #Y o e S

@ oiET ¥ ovia wAfra ey Rovet @ ofr aur gRdeReT F 9 #7 der
qlien WET UNT FR ¥ AT SRR &1 Suee s daded ¥ waiad siear o
gliet ¥ Bt or amfa @dr ¥ e wafrg Reder Rawor o o) daredr g g
AT T F FROT, F aeafdw awed @R W AfEA wffe {1 5a ST F e
F d@r weE Fwh F TAtha Redy ool & &R F aw 5 48 O Sl
F & 3T iais ey W AR e § 7 B 3 #a yRe = § e R 9
Hur & o Redry ROfEr ser & gou & sugwa siale Redhy o gomelr A T
ot Y wswaERaT ¥ gare & fav,ats aRftufadt & sugea awr ofer aieansd &
sffweaa frar o o¥) dwr ofem F gEdwe W NS d@imS AfAT AT osIgEdA F
AEIES AU YEYUA ga fRU AT AWiEA FrEwSAl B awaerden aun faed fawen &
TAT T & GEINHOT H Hediher o A g

g3 Trearw & % ganY qary wrea fe oo owr afier @ea gucd € AR gAR dwr
ofiaT ®F ¥ AU ARk ey Aol # 3R gaT w1 8 39T &

Hdd:
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s oW W

g

mm%%mmmmgﬁmmmvﬁ%m@m
wAfHT e e #ffes g wmifae w0 F aiffie gua woe s § ok @
WA # WA §9 O A dwr et & e 31 A, 2017 & Ry & weEr g
F g 1t IR 3w R # wacg ot § Qv 5% w@fFT 093 A F Ge &
TAfaF  vd Fose FaHT gEqE N g

T AT

A HgE Hafaal AvHIEdE Ravar \ew  EY Fuet Y, STATEHET I T
Foer fa, oAyl s o S ., deawmddEnt ane ger Su L ek
ACAITESEESHT R s 9aY Fuel . Oed Rcd R 31 ad, 2017 & B ¥
HTHR AW F4712.77 a1@, ¥.2.65 @, §2.70 &M@, §2.79 a@ 33X §.2.70 ar@g
For aREefeerat 3 37 A o g af dur B watha ey Rawet & e fea
WA § FAW: F.1709.71 &@, €.0.19 @, F.0.21 7@, €0.21 @ 3 & 0.21 a0 7
F TSET TAT FAW: F36.11 F@, F.(0.53) W, F.(0.54) @@, ¥.(0.53) @@ 3T
%.(0.54) 7@ & TR #r YT FH Heag ien &, F Rehy faawot & dwr gfer a8 €
$1 facch Rewol #r dmr ofer B s O odwE ¥ odaw @ s ¥ Sl R
TS ZIRT g 3Ty w0 E ¥ AR 30 ueR AT Redw Ravt w g 59 o
OF ST WEY WAOT Weraw FUrdr & waw F ofAw afrdt sk semivomsd & & aer
Jfefaas 1 o 143 61 37U (3) 3R (1) & goR S @ swded qeras safaat @
g TEY ¥, qu w0 stew dar qdmme! fr Rue uy smelRa §

=y Rt v RfE@ARwr sdenet $ 9w & RO

1. &7 sfafaws i arr 143 39URT (3) F feata 7T M@ wny D aw 7@ RAE w
&

(F) & goa 3 gl gaad vF TOsEeRT U H¢ o ¥ oY gl sl ve aifowaw
o & smred sFa AT ey Rt 1 dar sig & 38w ¥ Imaeas
|

(@) gl T A S B Fel B der qawEt # Sw @ gdlT ger ¥, sedwa
TAfed ey et = IR &= & R B gorr nfle awr R @
sfad dor & @
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@) =@ RO 3 afla wafea goe u9, FAfRa @ vd g faaeor aur wAted
U aiadE = GAfFT ey Raor R =& & @ Hea & T3 arel @
TET & IHTET

(@) IR AT F 3vdEd eAfEd Red R # Fuel (dwn) fagwrEe, 2014 (@
denfore) & fon-7 & Ay ofdg yRfEs f aw-133 & ea [BfRfdse Jur
AT HT IFTATEA THAT T g

(3) 31 774, 2017 & R ¥ yqen P & g PP veaaesd F HuR |
JUT FAY: URF HUA ST 3T GehE HulAE &k AERE HId & AfNew &
mwﬁﬁﬁwﬁéﬁﬁ&awmﬁmﬁmmﬁz)aﬁaﬁ#a@m
31 &, 2017 & Rvs & & § RyfEd & v g a7 g

(a)mgﬁﬁmﬁﬁ%ﬂwmﬁ%ﬁ?mwmgwﬁmm
m%@#mwww.xwmm

(@) Far@Er ofer e o 9des) e, 2014 % fREa-11 F IeEn agr
gliers ROiE & afder 3wy Awet § gey # g 7T A 3R el walcaw gae
& IETOR aur gH AT IT TSR & AN

) wEg ¥ O BE s a8 § e w § watha ey Rufa W
gHE g8

i) wHE % Tw N w Adats ey aft € S ogeved sy o afRe §
fores fore g avdr gifer g% &l

i) U B ofr @g o o wag gow Ay Menw o grem v A saRa #
ST Jfera e

iv)  @Oelr & 08 s@ER, 2016 ¥ 30 REW, 2016 & af & SN @ifesT iR
R d% A # dee S dey F e Rl F we@a querd & ¥
@r e SFEHT & YR 9v 3R gEUE & wiedes W fRary Fd g, 87
Ig RO wa § 5 SO U ga [WREE B S @ owr et 3
& wdUe g auT gehied ¥ IR § (FEr wfET ey e #r @i
.38 W)
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WO W

2. FfEfAyE i arr 143(5) g@Err T @ ol wafeaw I 3 g sueEr aw
T TR0 & AR g a5 RO w3 § @

(1) F9=lr & 917 g1 e 9 F7 TUse carfdcd

(2) G 7 F wHp H FR o IO F FOvES/CA B 4 W STAVAE
HT S ATHAT 6T &l

(3) TR & U WER F 7Y il U3 T ShATael e ArifAEae
¥ e 6 ®9 H wred oREufeaaisTesd & il w1 3Re e B
¢ THg Feu AreaE 1 TETEe A Fan

F THCHUAR U3 TiTe
AEE AWHR
UREIRTA: 47390

BEdl.

(T )

e

HESETAT EIT: 089852

qar: 19T, 3wl ds, SRmES
7S feeelr-110002

T ; Af fedy
&&F: 22 3571, 2017
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mwmmmmﬁ,ma&zmsmﬂm
i Rae W gaaeas e §Y T9ad o gdes A e

U FfOFrEA, 2013 (rUfaE) f uRT 143 @ 39U 3 F ITew() F A
araf® et fgaet & @9 & e

g 31 &9, 2017 & @aed ¥ & v awn sEh fd & FqER S &
TAfrT facdr faavol & @ e & w Ree Had defE FIRER Rew
o . (aRw Fuel) #R EH werwe Fulrdl S 3w Al @ aRa F7 eiad
g& & & Rcdy R R aifale Redier il 1 @ wlem # &l

Al fAedw frgaot & AT gate FT 3calenaed:

URE U AN SEEr wEww HulAal SRd wwar aRa # # oo R, F wefad
e Fge SEATHT WG AEE THEBeccH HTE AT (3MSEIOSNS) @R Sy
e Raffsr @ 3iaRs o @aol & dar olen dee e ool #
sfeafRa staie frior & sews gesl W R & & v Suer Zanr wnd
e Raiféer awrds ov 3als fAuor W amia Hafies faedy foasom &
T UF IWREE & AT Ieeerdt §1 59 Seateri¥ed A Iugaa AR ey
friavlt S 36% FRER & FIAGNER ZEAEE due gaked w3 & fav
aard s v el i AN, sk aRwofeTat A e, dErd q e
HETfAaanst & ar sener 3R A, dwiET ARAEt F wdear 3R quiar aa
Rreawsir faeda guem & gAY W AR e o Sl aftfaes, 2013 &
staeta TR ¥ & Banee, sEleaas Ud W Ha1 AiET B

Creib R C o S IR CU R

EART 3eATEded gAY GdET ¥ AR R 34 RQedy Rawh & d§v A7 A
yfeTFd FET ¥l G FEACIT AT IS TRSRCH A A (EHTIH)
R S el Rfdsr woaiaRs ety Gdol & owr o el fGdr
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o owr g

W

Wi

W N W

feogoft 3y el wRfAus, 2013 & urI-143(10) & Ry ¥ dea Jale [edw
ot o @y @ J T et o siafe Rcde Bl fr oar ofer ¥
fow amp & AN S SRETgT AR GIEE TESEEH I R (neieang) gan
S forw ot §, @ erar afvem #r ¥ $1 AR AR W& F IR TE IR &
5 g fds sevat & oes A 3R Ry Rafér w ®S I9YFA aArF
Wﬁﬁm%ﬁmwa@maﬁmﬁmamﬁm
G A HH B WY AT F IR F IHGIT I I FS F AT @ gfen
g ¥ 3 Psafea &E)
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6,53,46,978
11,38,45,743

{4,415}

99,110,287

18,90,98,593
4,54,79,00,841

24,28,86,169

2,17,68,104

2,69,00,00,000

49,82 ,00,000

3,18,82,00,000

26,46.54.273

3,45,.28,54,273

13,00,00,000

13,00,00,000

5,36,17,224
1,17,29,754

6,53,46,978
3,64,82,01,251
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Reelt Had siteifrs SNk Rrsrr o 1.
HITTT: 454002102008 N TwH 172316

FAfeT facdir farof g ate 31 #2017 sr g avT & Ay

31-ATH-2017 =Y 31-ATH-2016 &Y

FIC (T) T (%)
1A AL 1 C O L
Jrafirs wor
- Tegr St FIRER e vd Fratva v 6.64,89,756 11,35,00,000
(T8 AT STHITEH SRR Hireye T wE)
6,64,89,756 11,35,00,000

* TeETT 3iteer FIfER famry ve Fefrade e (uAxsdEamd) & oy s.22.4 s Sruf¥ra v og amar,zmsa:‘rwa{w;i?avar
forsre fohay arr) sars 1 e et v o 3 T 3ftae off @ 27 ¥ IR 100 3w carde @l T A7 319t 10 o 20h et 1o A
AREIRTH 37af® Fior fr 3ifee feve & Jy gy v alra & @l spareerer 7 TR o & arer iR ot i svesear o Biv el
Forest 7 ord gol o da¥e iy segrer Ry el ot grerar & 0.50 05 §UT & & 787 g1t AR Gyet ot #r Ty sy st 67 3w
G B 109 5§ &y FAITT § TR GO A HL & ety

He-4 ; 377 Sutaire dwait

¥
- 3f& & fore & iy 7,64,88,300 8,19,51,750
- fersarg=t afesgfar 10,00,000 10,00,000

7,74,88,300 8,29,61,750

* USRT o AieEh e e o fader e o (e oF 21 stdae, 2012 &1 ofiasmr Tige & 91T w1000/ whY o #r Srag ¥ 145692 937
. aﬁrana;?—gj;m e e g F & 25 Wi TRY 3T & FA fETeeT S 4T 1% 3 Oy Tf¥ 20 Seredn, 2013 & 20 wAE sy
e Tl !

&g -5 : Sataftrs waula
- FHERY AT & AT I EreyE) (Aie 9.31 # 3w 17,34 675 12,26,754
T 17,34,875 12,26,754
s ; dFsamy
(i} FET A o1y SeTAt T e A FR (Hre-32 &) - -
ﬁ' - -
(i) e 3R ) FSHAT R BIZHT T HOTSHT 61 51 &7 S 32,58,21,656 29,14,63,682
et 32,58,21,656 29,14,63,682
127



Preelt Fja it FRER Rerr framT fa.

TS J454008rT2008W T 172316

Afra fredv Raod gt e 31 A1, 2017 FrEAca ot & e

- uiesg AR gy

o ATeEf @ e soregrar

- Erefafier ererital Ft a0He aRuEand

- ey W e AT & g deaRat

- FUR Y #TA &1 U gy

- U aiteEiihe FINE e vE FEfaaae gEe 3 wRor
(98 FTA STAHTEH 9T FEeage gFe i)

- AT eI ST
LT
#1E 8 ; FzyEiiE waws
- T & oNT Qraes
- ST AT (Eregy T TEEre ARdeeT ) & foT wrEe
(Fe T.-31&T 25

31-FTE-2017 &Y 31-ATE-2016 F
T (3) U (X)
2,77,37,788 3.04,45,165
48,35,000 156.00,000
42,66,230 2.03,40,985
3,63,908 2.27.720
1,27,76,307 2,37.64,309
54,63.450 54,63,450
13.22,852 -
41,89,578 -
25,48,090 -
52,45,271 45,90,545
6,87,48,564 8,63,32,284
1.89,33,028 -
1,22,861 17.607
1,90,55,889 17,607
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el Jad siteifae SRER e faaw .
WIIETA: F454003 020080 0ee172316

AR e frato gv A 31 A, 2007 ST EATT It & fAaw

31-AT-2017 FY 31-ATH-2016 HY
T (T) T (F)
Az - 10: Ir-adan fads
Fe-zarary forder (e et v aray qft oRg e, w1 9Y)
(%) A R F ffos F ¥ B s
AT AT # 3o fAder
B R SrEred TR e E 4,39,00,000 4,39,00,000
43,90,000 Yo weed @iy R F.10/-93%
H1T 78T e e forder f iy 4,39,00,000 4,39,00,000
are 11 : reafig sy afefcaaifras)
srenfra w1 afrmaiagi:
- yoe aREafeaa) & vt 17,685,074 -
- 3T 3O, 1961 3 A8 9iaaT § wEiDa 62,975 14,15,250
- 3T HTrEH, 1961 & g Fand oney i ared O geEtea 582723 4,10,495
2420772 18,25,745
e e F ARt
- e gfmafeaar & deiod - 526174
Total 24,20,772 12,99,571
e 12: fefefis o g afas
(ITATEHIIT FAST 1Y A1)
- iEfa SAT 1,12,68,538 55,41,478
Total 1,12,68,538 §5,41,478
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el e stgaifas Sk Raw o /&,
Hiasee: g454008 02008 NuAw172316

wRfRT Redra faatot ot Ae 31 A, 2017 FY warca a¢ & faw

31-ard-2017 Y 31-AT9-2016 B
T (¥) U {F)
A 13 - e A
(F) e e o (R
- 7. R s e woer Y wimiee e o & g
gAY 3,52,23,57,636 2,73,34,35,008
-y & giue s 70,16,87,406 78,95 .35 691
4,22 40,45,042 3,52,29,70,789
i aREreT e afafafat & dedy F wardtes 99,10.287 -
(e .34 2
TETe: THET $Y diFatey ufyr (90,188} {6.13,153)
HETG: iR ol & owg anae (Aic 6. 35 26) (35,49,70,388) -
wF (¥) 3,87,88,94,753 3,52,23,57,636

v FargeE Fufaat S ot aREst & 60 JiF anded &g T Aeiae faam & & 1€ UfFr 2 35,40,70,388/- (917 9§ T 35,49,70,388/-)

anfdrer &1

(m—§m$WW$m#m(1zmﬁm#m)
A (&)
G (F+E)
1T 14 ; FTR G
(I=TTREATS WAST T AIeT)

- 6 AR & 30 f 3l & /U gemEr
- 3T

AT-18 : g vd T A
e T dw Oy
{i) 7% UF AT FHIET
- §RF aR FAdrw 7
K A ure] @rat A 9y
feaFmaaid gy~
-WENAY
By 7 o
oo 31 T et & Oy
Fr A T TRt Ay =

TUH-3 # HAGR A%5 U8 A5G Fgeq HA(F)
(i) 7w o
- ARA TER AT AfE A F
- AW
o IS & Fare fargsr o waa S F o andt & oy
H(E)

Fo AFE T A AW (FT)

97.,86,618 40,94,558
97,86,618 40,94,558
3,88,86,81,371 3,52,64,52,194
10,08,96,702 59,35,568
10,06,96,702 59,35,568
8.70.68,542 (16.64,741)
10,93,50,804 10,98,35,831
20,693 19,990
(64,70,717) (27.80,177)

1,02,61,88,046

98,88,71,862

1,21,61,58,368

1,08,42,72,765

40,44,558 2.60,00,000
40.44,558 2,50,60,000
1,22,02,02,926 1,11,92,72,765

* HEE Od A5 GAGSH A T gany 357 & e i st areh FA A § R qeue £ e q@ Atfew & e e awy Sod Zganr

ST S THAT B
* 12 HIg | MU 7 GRoaaen & Wy Yy (I I% 3FE) FH A §
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el Had e T HNER Rww s fa
WHGU: 454008 U#r20089 0172316

AT e faEon ot Al 31 1, 2017 FraArg af & fAav

Ae- 16: HeqEitw oy vg yEE

FeaTa it For vd HiAH
(arwfersgfora s Aren)
(i) 3T TR & fifhew &
- 3 HOT UE HiTH
(i) ¥=q
- ¥ AT (AT waw-)
- TS TIERR & Ty T

- yfrsgfer sramd

- Ty e AR faere R for, vd weieagst gre d 3%
(I # SeAxEHE aiEaar freads e B 7 7 #)

- 32 BT O HEA

AT 17 Hed T TRETeddl
(i) sRa F &+ s A
- Hgrrsg 3EIfes famwre faers (T3S (e §.- 35 34
- et gewregaaT e fora (Tarfarer) Fea uder for.
(#re &. 35 26
(i) 7=

AT 18: TaTd=l 3 T

TR # fERAr (70,683,960 Rheliate g7 av 38,51,460 Br.a1.H. gfw)
ZIeT Aar § AT
ar B (S Aifa F.(1) 281

Total

312017 &Y 31-ATE-2016 FY
FqU (T) FaT (¥)
18,22,09,666 4,16,80,488
- 1,35,36,250
26,56,650 26,56,650
15,70,353 -
- 1,64,893
1,14,91,409 3,74,16,740
19,79,28,078 9,54,64,021
7,96,355 37,47,055
15,61,44,375 -
11,17,79,888
6,14,14,958 7.44.66,275
33,01,35,577 7,82,13,330
6,21,26,328 3,24,20,199
9,45,93,161 -
3,32,62,000
18,99,81,489 3,24,20,199

* ahull 3 grer werar Jar & R ¥.15,76,55,268/-(A g 9 a7 Y I OIgH) & Fel Ard 8 HEA fecrdl on. AT 3 T 13 FiEET,2016 Y v
FHET TR ¥ HRET & IO ST FN STRAE 8 &t Tgal e Toraest #1 fERder & o0 g arer & ) sosi 7 aAm Ricdrg av & 2kl 9
FopaTi ety 21 3% QT B Feitr 7 GaraE Tt TR F.9,45,03, 161 & FRua $a 7 B 7 H 60 AT F1eF & HHOT Hal H AT A E, F
WH%;@Z?@Q@%WW?W*W HU,2017 AIg F o0 317 7] IEE He e 3177 1 7] e a8 3 s

Erd

Frararam §)

AT 19 : I=T I

dréus TFEr & e 3 wa T FHErst W s
grolr ufirar fry

HTIE fres W ens

o TIRET & FAUIT A W

TR UH TETEY 200 92 WY ¥ 3oy
fatar

[ELLIETAR IR

Total

7,97,07,758 9,55,63,756

7,66,585 15,00,000

7,25,256 7,61,037
1.07.43,956 -
16,94,717 -

1,980 50

- 274

9,36,40,252 9,78,25,117

132



ki

2l

S

i".ﬁ_'i%

€ T

fewelt Ha§ sttt SINER e Paa i

Hr3éua: J454003TA2008 T UTH172316

AT fyedry faaoit oo ate 31 #1E, 2017 Y wACT 99 & v

For the For the
vt od HATT T
31-AT9-2017 313142016
Rupees (¥} Rupees (¥)
e 20 ; wdard sy say
e, Hoigdl Ud #edd (WagmTe Faammal gad) 2.93,88,472 1,88,27,135
sy RS & 3eEr= / 9 w8 # 3vEeT 24,32,684 11,55,579
R & e waener 5,20,380 6,560,510
Fasrer sardieor 9 e weansy 92,795 -
TETF FHod1oT E8T 20,03,317 10,85,848
gy 3,19,187 2,086,177
L 3,47,56,835 2,19,35,249
a2t
I 9 SJ1A 79,77,038 53,11,137
[ 79,77,038 53,11,137
iz 22: AR
aWHAT @Tdodd) 3,40,97,854 2,54,42,594
& aut & gAfae (e 6.9 28) (40,55,722) -
L 3,00,42,132 2,54,42,594
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fewelt Had stz SINER fawm faers fan
WAL J45400ATer20089 0172316

AT Rcda Rarut s dle 31 71, 2017 Y AT g & v

dE_23: Aeq 0y

AT iR FF apr

e w9 ardwfers goer Wy
TR YTt =3

fasrely zamy
Heana ufafy dus By
e o e

U T e e

qGF UF FeE =T

FHAT AYEAT TS & o
AR v IEE @y

T YHIT

RO TE Ty

HUN T4 5 e =
TTHT U AIEA Y
&A=
At #1 d55 By
ST TGS Tl SYFHAT
o9& Haflr wmw

e gt

T TE @ T
faTE 99T

3Hf& av dar 99R
AU = ae

For the For the
FHTCH T AT T
31-ard-2017 31-ATE-2016
Rupees (¥} Rupees (¥}
1,98,58,205 1,63,32,743
4,28,500 493,500
36,96,498 1,18, 79,17
8,73,325 81,20,654
3,05,799 2,562,957
11,60,000 8,30,000
26,64,392 12,91,297
51,04,186 26,50,613
13,17,302 8,45 992
76,801 3,38,963
- 176,717
265,409 -
477,875 -
20,99,402 14,38,541
14,46, 111 597,820
51,19,778 35,54,679
116,973 10,832
6,55,425 4,47,958
- 17,18,526
52,351 79,510
14,17,293 8,33,013
78,596 43,01.442
541,927 5,00,000
10,63,550 9,68,850
11,24.767 4,40,365
&l 4,99,44 465 5,72,04,089
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Preelt s 3ttt FRET Rawrer v 3.

TIHTETA: F454008Ter20089Tww172316
AR Redty el o ae 31 /9, 2017 sraacaad s e

Runt & o ae gHreT I AT A%
31-AT-2017 31-#74-2016
24 FHTERE LIt wd wRegan (v e oo s wft fpararar d):
(=) IrwTRAE et
() U IS & wr # e €T favar arar grar 66,74,853 -
(@) wiaagan
() Torsariea foe Siv & forw <y wifdranait i agafove ORY forera wraerter forser ST a8 fnar aram:
- g wrar 4,90,34,605 16,05,72,393
- T E=T (ol & wRoT e wiagre 1,04,48,40,418 1,19,36,26,673
- GRSt &7 yaTe vd [ 6,40,87,122 15,67,75,014
(i) ¥ giFagare
- AT ¥ 3T R e g alr e 1,38,31,176 2.90,94,558
25 Refram# sk vd ooy
U Prgaftager o s - -
0 fadeft s d e
-Rw gy 11,71,985 6,62,853
26 W@ Sl Y e
) Jmrofen g 3,78,500 4,48,500
(H} s danats oo 50,000 45,000
4,28,500 4,93,500
27 ey ardf garr sEmhvor
| ST O €IEE Tawe e AT STRAT BT S Heg Ui REERie & weity I SrEiEst A @ WO e T dr meAre &
F  FOA T sed st s faeier Ee ard sgan
AT & T e TeeTe PRI #t Gl
g trﬂmrtm?ﬁrm
FTIE U e et FifrerT 7. [ il
¥ HET VT TS
A Hedher FAT WA & g
At eI AT Bl &
Y arge 8E =8 &
I 3ol Teret @ Ay wafer & S sieder B sepfer vl wrer v of:
iy ww
3EIH Brersr
. ——— e AT e ———
Er PR G Sl
for=or v
wwrar BT bl T =
(T} () (F) ()
afl & Shrer wow deda
At IR HAW AR T L T 57.41,600
e () (Fm {14,32,884)
M 3aflr & e Suel an JifE dereer o faewor
® TN TEA w1 Y e
A1 3t FAT Nii Nil Nit 57.41,600
(Nil) (NI (Nil) {14,32,884)

aite: wrese() # 2T 1w wwd g av ST g F o E
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feeelt Hag it FRER R o fa.
THET: F454003T2008THI172316

AR E fredrr fravo ot Al 31 AT, 2017 ST FACT Y & W

28 dwT (goa @s) R

) & & T FOER gas] 3l areT IRt 3R uiEtsT R vare  gEd # VITHTH &7 TEEe Y o 7S ) 3 FEhr far
Ty, 3eTar- 2T ST 3t anslt YaescTs TR a2 3aieE HER Eéer sums S Gae 7§ wEh [ £ &3 @ 8

&, Qe & Toreg AN st T feeme & veraercas Srdwend & R o JgE A g E)
. Pavite qRrEalzaa A gente Saefyat ddfers deale &y oigaiaat it eaehat =) gl )

. grarfires sy S9de & ey A gEe

sty e seweaA EEEIE LI Ha
farr
s
STE{T e d 17,10,53 489 11,25,68,242 28,36,21,741
{3,48,28,900) (9,54,16,416) (13,02,45,316)
IR vaeE ] 21,90,000 21,890,000
(=T {15,71,000) (15,71,000)
FF TATE 17.10,53,499 11,47,58,242 28,58,11,741
(3.48,28,500} (9,69,87,418) (13,18.16,316)
SiTS: ITEE A9 I T AT T Nil
(=) R ()
HIHT T 17,10,53,499 11,47,58,242 28,58,11,741
(3,48,28 900) (9,69,87,416) (13,18,16,316)
TIEE 9RO ({Ferd & 9 15,14,38,061 3,85,05,342 18,09,43,403
(1,97,83,843) (2,61,90,998) {4,50.74 841)
AIHAETT) 3r9arE 78 AN F /I 12,32,20,939 3,76.80,332 16,08,01,271
(42,19,569) (Loss} (2.45.71,816) (2,03 52,247)
HYarE Ag =T T T
(2T} (=) (=
ATHIET) g 12,32,20,939 3,76,80,332 16,09,01,271
(42,19 569) (715} {2,4571,816) (2,03,52,247)
ST 3,63,55,100 1,18,21,629 4,81,76,729
(34) (32 {84,50,835) (84,50,801)
ANTET &L BT A5 9,16,555 2,04,646 11,21,201
(4,89,445) (34T0A) (3.17.753] (1,71,692) (EF1T=)
TH/ETT L TIETT 8,59.49,284 2,60,63,340 11,20,12 633
(47,08,980} (Loss) {1,64,38,734) (1,17,29,754)
HFT AT
=4ty [EECCESUET RS T wHH
jCoon
warde alraatca 41,83,62,889 5,82 87,94,410 6,24,71,57,309
(73.91,63,776)|| (4.97,60,42,367) (5,71,52,06,143)
TIHC ST 19,83,42,720 36,89,13,748 56,72,56,468
(25,19,55,603) (32,80,78,901) (58,00,34,504)
Eeior 4,25 88,833 23,81,578 44970411
(11,08,72,532) (12,74 461) (11,21,46,993)
HeUsrs Ud VARSI 28217122 18,25,010 3,00,42,132
(2,38,23,412) {16,19,182) (2,54 42 594)
HedolH H THNEIZEI & HIaad SN s =ad (21,081} 6,34,256 6,13,175
(26.754) (6.33,756) (6,60,510)

AT (Fres F T T e T 9 & el o ¥
w) gfatdms stanfer a9 & T # gae: #15 gataas e A8 g
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ool Had sitgatfas FifER B e
WIS 454002020089 TEHEH172316

AR ey fawot ov AT 31 A1, 2017 FrEAcg af & faw

29 wier S ot

afer g IR 375t T HIIUIA F T A e Y Ry & Fov dny wrer e B i sttea wer & s e PR war
waCy 9§ AT TX
=ty Ifae 31 H1, 2017 31 AT, 2018
& W U § gdfter waf® & v Rew o) ®AT (T 11,38,45,743 117,268,754
& SUUH T orar @ T g & W oF gty B wro gy Sl Y i FEar 10,00,00,000 10,00,00,000

& T v /TR AT
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About the Compan

[n order to embark on the process of planned urbanization with manufacturing as the key
economic driver and to give a strong impetus to the country’s industrial/ manufacturing
development, the Government of India (Gol) announced the concept of Delhi Mumbai
Industrial Corridor (DMIC) Project as the first Industrial Corridor in 2007. The project aims
to create smart, sustainable industrial cities by leveraging the high speed; high capacity
connectivity backbone provided by the Western Dedicated Freight Corridor (DFC) to reduce
logistic costs in an enabling policy framework. A special purpose vehicle i.e. Delhi Mumbai
Industrial Corridor Development Corporation (DMICDC) Limited was accordingly
incorporated in January, 2008 for the development and implementation of DMIC project. The
current equity shareholders in DMICDC include Government of India (49%), represented
through the Department of Industrial Policy & Promotion (DIPP), Japan Bank for
International Cooperation (JBIC) (26%) and financial institutions such as Housing and Urban
Development Corporation (HUDCOQ) (19.9%), India Infrastructure Finance Company
Limited (IIFCL) (4.1%) & Life Insurance Corporation (LIC) (1.0%).

Company Institutional and Financial Structure:

The institutional and financial structure for the DMIC project was approved by the Cabinet of
India in 2011 with a budgetary support of Rs. 17,500 crore (at an average of Rs. 2500 crore
for each of the 7 nodes subject to a maximum of Rs. 3000 crore) to be provided over a period
of five years for the development of industrial cities in phase-I of the project. The budgetary
support from Gol flows to DMIC-PITF (Project Implementation Trust Fund). The DMIC-
PITF provides equity and/or debt to Special Purpose Vehicles (SPVs) incorporated as joint
ventures between Gol and the respective State Governments for developing DMIC cities
/nodes/projects. Project Development Fund (PDF) has been created to meet the expenditure
against various project development activities for DMIC project. The fund is revolving in
nature and in alfl Rs. 1000 crore would be given as grant-in-aid to DMICDC Limited to carry
out project development activities. The allocation of funds against PDF is made in the form
of annual grant from Department of Industrial Policy & Promotion (DIPP) to DMIC Trust,

Each project is implemented through a project/node city level SPV, incorporated under the
provisions of Company’s Act. Govt. of India has entered into a robust Shareholder’s
Agreement (SHA) and State Support Agreement (SSA) clearly defining the roles and
responsibilities of various parties for implementing the DMIC project.

Apart from DMIC Project, following other Industrial Corridor Projects are also under
implementation. It is proposed initially to develop these four (4) other Industrial Corridor
Projects to augment the infrastructure and manufacturing facilities.

a) Chennai Bengaluru Industrial Corridor (CBIC);

b) Bengaluru Mumbai Economic Corridor (BMEC);

c¢) Amritsar Kolkata Industrial Corridor (AKIC); and

d) East Coast Economic Corridor (ECEC) with Vizag-Chennai Industrial
Corridor (VCIC) as phase-1.
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For coordinated and unified development of all industrial corridor projects, Gol on gt
December, 2016 approved the expansion of the scope of existing DMIC-PITF and re-
designated it as National Industrial Corridor Development and Implementation Trust
(NICDIT). The NICDIT is under the administrative control of DIPP for coordinated and
unified development of all the industrial corridor projects which has been announced by Gol
in the recent past and are at various stages of development and implementation. All the
upcoming corridors and other corridors in future will function under the administrative
control of NICDIT. - ' '

These cities/early bird projects under DMIC are being implemented based on certain
fundamental concepts of sustainable development like optimizing travel demand for the
workforce through distributed business districts and industrial zones, integration of
compatible land uses encouraging mixed-use, affordable workers housing planned near the
industrial zones, high density residential neighbourhoods around High access Mass Transit
Corridors, encouraging cycling & pedestrian modes over cars, recycling and reuse of water
and solid wastes, energy sufficiency through use of renewables, conservation of better
agricultural land & protection of sensitive natural environment (coastal zones, forests,
sanctuaries), planned integration of existing villages into the new city, etc.

As the DMIC project has entered into the implementation stage and the construction work is
being carried out in full swing in the States of Gujarat, Maharashtra, Uttar Pradesh and
Madhya Pradesh, the land disposal policies have been finalized and anchor investors/clients
are being decided for all the above mentioned four (4) locations. The major highlights of all
the DMIC cities is that the projects have been completely de-risked and all necessary
clearances/approvals are already in place for any anchor investor to come in and set up his
manufacturing facility. The necessary linkages with regard to connectivity to the nearest
National and/or State Highway, nearest rail head, Dedicated Freight Corridor etc. is being
done by DMICDC. The SPV’s will act as a single window for facilitating all necessary
approvals/licenses which may be required by the Industry players/Private Developers to set
up their facilities in these cities.

Apart from the node/city level projects, DMICDC is also developing standalone projects like
Multi Modal Logistic Hubs (MMLH) in the State of Haryana, Uttar Pradesh and Gujarat,
Greenfield International Airport Projects in the State of Gujarat and Rajasthan and Mass
Rapid Transit System (MRTS) Projects in the State of Haryana and Gujarat.
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Chairman's Message

Amidst the resounding success of ‘Make in India® mission, the Indian economy is creating
new milestones of progress. With India’s success story touching new heights as a result of
rapid industrial and infrastructure progress, [ am pleased to present the Annual report of
Delhi Mumbai Industrial Corridor Development Corporation Ltd. (DMICDC) for the
Financial Year 2016-17 to our valued shareholders. Your company has made remarkable
progress during the past year reinforcing our commitment towards achieving the shared goal
of inclusive growth and sustainable development.

Indian economy is currently witnessing its most vibrant phase since the days of Hberalisation
and has emerged as the most sought- after investment destination globally. This promising
scenario has appeared as a result of the enabling policy framework and progressive reforms
which the Government of India has undertaken in the last few years. The major initiatives
which deserve a special mention include- Extending the FDI policy frontiers by raising the
cap of FDI in all major sectors, implementation of Ease of Doing Business (EoDB) by
reforming and simplifying the existing procedures for approvals, encouraging
entrepreneurship by launching “Startup India’ & “Skill India’ missions and implementation of
Goods & Services Tax (GST) to eliminate the cascading effect of taxation.

To sustain and accelerate this momentum, a paradigm shift is required in our economic
priorities, developmental commitments and recognition of the major drivers of planned &
urbanised growth. This entails a transition in our ingrained professional ethos from being a
technology recipient to an innovator.

A comprehensive approach aimed at sustainable infrastructure development is the need of the
hour. The creation of greenfield ‘smart industrial cities’ will serve the twofold ojectives of
channelizing the foreign direct investment straightaway to the focus manufacturing sectors;
and creating new urban centres to support the massive urbanization trends that are being
witnessed in the country. This is also considered a key instrument for fuelling manufacturing
and economic growth in the country. The employment opportunities thus generated will not
only result in the appearance of huge trained manforce but also a massive skilled human
capital pool which will have the potential to become job creators instead of job seekers.

The Delhi Mumbai Industrial Corridor reflects this vision of creating a sustainable, integrated
and future proofed network of infrastructure facilities which is aimed at giving a major
impetus to domestic trade as well as promoting India as a global manufacturing hub. Transit
oriented development is bound to play the defining role in achieving this cherished objective
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by leveraging the connectivity factor with increased investments in the manufacturing sector.
Along with growth and infrastructure development, emphasis will also be paid on ecological
conservation and use of technologies that reduce carbon footprint and toxic air emissions
including use of rencwable energy, electric vehicles and alternative fuel technologies like
NG and biofuels.

With the expansion of our mandate to act as a knowledge partner to all the industrial
corridors in the country, it is imperative for us not only to acknowledge the new
responsibility to chart a course of industrial progress, but also to implement the policy lessons
imbibed during the inception of the DMIC project to converge our experience in terms of
time, cost and resources in a most optimal way in other industrial corridor projects as well.

The past year saw significant breakthrough in the DMIC project. With the finalisation of land
allotment policy in all the four Smart Industrial City projects, land parcels are ready for
allotment to anchor tenants. Trunk infrastructure facilities tied at plot levels are being rapidly
developed and various corporates and business houses from the world over have expressed
avid interest in the project. Many overseas entities have also desired to partner us in this path-
breaking initiative as developers, consultants and PPP concessionaires. We have also
stepped- up our marketing and investment promotion efforts to generate more awareness
about the DMIC project at major global platforms for industrial branding and economic
networking to materialize ‘Intention to Invest’ into “Commitied Investment’. Several MoUs
have been signed at the SPV level with leading corporate houses and plots are being allotted
to anchor investors.

The 1 MW Solar Power Project at Neemrana has been commissioned and commenced
commercial operations with effect from July 10, 2017. It is the pioneering Indian project to
utilise sotar energy for industrial purposes, without grid connectivity successfully integrating
the generation of Solar Power with industrial Diesel Generator sets (as back-up). One of the
most significant projects we have executed so far is bringing the much-needed IT inputs into
logistics. The Logistics Visualization Service which enables tracking of the containers on
‘near real time basis’ by using RFID technology has been extended to the Adani Ports and
Special Economic Zone (APSEZ) Container Terminals in Gujarat’s Mundra and Hazira. This
pathbreaking project has brought nearly 70% of the country’s total container volume of 12
million TEUs under one tracking system; and about 3 million containers have been tagged/
detagged so far.

Another landmark project viz creation of a world class State-of-the-art International
Exhibition-cum-Convention Centre at New Delhi has reached the implementation stage and
the EPC contractor for development activities under Phase-I will be appointed shortly. This
ambitious project will not only make India a major player in the world MICE market, but also
serve as a catalyst to boost commercial & industrial networking ties and function as the nerve
centre of business activities in the NCR region. The connectivity factor which we are
leveraging with manufacturing is getting further augmented by the development of
Greenfield Airports and Multimodal Rapid Transport Systems (MRTS) which support
various motorized and non-motorized modes of transport. All the necessary approvals have
been secured and construction contracts will be awarded soon.
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The Multimodal Logistics Hubs (MMLH) are a critical component in transit oriented
development. They will establish an integrated logistics chain throughout the project area by
capturing bulk/break bulk, unitized traffic & handling container and bulk cargos. Qur MMLH
projects development activities are underway as per planned schedule and land acquisition
process has been initiated by the respective state governments.

The company continues to focus on disciplined growth, enhanced industrial collaboration,
active employee engagement and adhering to the highest standards of corporate governance
as core values of its corporate philosophy. I would like to thank all our stakeholders for their
trust and continued support. [ also appreciate and acknowledge the support of the Board of
Directors and stakeholders of the company for their unstinted efforts towards enhancing the
performance and welfare of the company.

Ramesh Abhishek

Sd/-
Chairman
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e Room No. 341-B, 3rd Floor, | Phone : +91 11 26118884-8
o IM Hotel Ashok, Fax: +91 11 26118889

o iy _ Diplomatic £nclave, E-mail: contactus@dmicde.com
50-B Chanakyapuri, www.dmicdc.com

= DMICDC New Delhi-110021 CIN : U45400DL2008PLC172316

DELHE MUMBAI INDUSTRIAL CORRIDOR
& DEVELTPMENT CORPORATION
lndia Reiimagiued NOTICE

L NOTICE is hereby given that the 09" Annual General Meeting of the Members of

£ Delhi Mumbai Industrial Corridor Development Corporation Limited will be held on
Thursday, the 21 day of September, 2017 at 04:00 P.M at the registered office of the

P

o Company situated at Room No. 341B, 03+ Floor, Main Building, Hotel Ashok,

Diplomatic Enclave, 508, Chanakyapuri, New Delhi - 110 021 to transact the tollowing
& business:-

ORDINARY BUSINESS:-

2 1. To receive, consider & adopt the Audited Financial Statements as at March 31, 2017

and the reports of the Board of Directors’ and the Auditor’s thereon for the period
o ended on that date.

£

v 2. To consider, and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following
& resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:-

it “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 139 read with Section 129 (4) and other
£ applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, the appointment of M/s
- SSAR & Assaciates, Chartered Accountants, New Delhi (ICAI Firm Registration No.
£ 004739N) as directed by the office of the Comptroller & Auditor General of India
. (C&AG) as the Statutory Auditor of the Company for the financial year 2017-18 vide
L its letter No./CA. V/COY/ CENTRAL GOVERNMENT, DMICDC(0)/122 dated
& July 17,2017, a copy of which has been placed before the meeting, be and is hereby

approved/ taken note of.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT CEQ & Managing Director of the Company be
and is hereby authorized to fix the terms and conditions including the

€1 determination of the audit fee payable to the Statutory Auditors as recommended

by the office of the C&AG.”

2 3. To consider, and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:-

o “RESOLVED THAT Shri Ravi Kanth Medithi, Director of the Company, who

o retires by rotation and being eligible has offered himself for re-appointment, be and

A is hereby appointed as Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.”

@ 4. To consider, and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), following,

5 resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:-
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“RESOLVED THAT Shri Alkesh Kumar Sharma, Director of the Company, who
retires by rotation and being eligible has offered himself for re-appointment, be and
is hereby appointed as Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.”

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
For Delhi Mumbai Industrial Corridor
Development Corporation limited

Place: New Delhi

Date: August 28, 2017 \ W

{Abhishek CHaudhary)

VP - Corporate Affairs, HR

& Company Secretary

M. No. -F6701

Address- 16021, ATS Advantage,
Ahinsa Khand-1, Indirapuram,
Ghaziabad, Uttar Pradesh- 201014
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& NOTES:

1. A member is entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a
e proxy/ Proxies to attend and vote instead of him/her and such proxies need not
be a member of the Company. The instrument of proxy in order to be effective

0 should be duly stamped, completed, signed and must be deposited at least 48

e hours before the time for holding the aforesaid meeting.

i 2. A person shall act as proxy for only 50 members and holding in aggregate not
N more than 10 percent of the total share capital of the company carrying voting

£ rights. Member holding more than 10 percent of the total share capital of the

£ company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such

person shall not act as proxy for any other member.

3. Proxy Form(s) and certified copy of Board resolution(s) authorising

o representative(s) to attend and vote at the Meeting shall be sent to the registered
o office of the Company.
& 4. A Body Corporate, being a member, shall be deemed to be personally present

‘ only if it is represented in accordance with Section 113 of the Companies Act,
¢ 2013,

& 5. In conformity with the provisions of section 102(1) of the Companics Act, 2013,
£ the Explanatory Statement setting out all the material facts relating to the
- aforesaid business is annexed herewith and form part of the notice.
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION
102{1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013: -

ITEM NO. 2

The Comptroller and Auditor General of India (C&AG) vide its letter No./CA.
V/COY/ CENTRAL GOVERNMENT, DMICDC(0)/122 dated July 17, 2017 has
nominated M/s SSAR & Associates, Chartered Accountants as the Statutory Auditor
of the Company as per Section 139 read with Section 129 (4) of the Companies Act, 2013
for the financial year 2017-18. The Supplementary Audit of the Company for
the financial year 2017-18 pursuant to Section 143 (6) & (7) of the Companies Act, 2013
has been entrusted to Principal Director, Commercial Audit & Ex- Officio Member

Audit Board -1

Hence the resolution is proposed.

None- of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel’s of the Company and their
relatives are concerned or interested in the resolution set out at Item No. 2 of

this notice.

ITEM NO. 3

Shri Ravi Kanth Medithi (holding DIN 01612905), Director of the Company, liable to
retire by rotation, vacates office by rotation at this Annual General Meeting. Shri Ravi
Kanth Medithi being eligible offers himself for re-appointment and is proposed to be
re-appointed as a Director of the Company liable to retire by rotation.

Hence the resolution is proposed.
Except Shri Ravi Kanth Medithi, being an appointee, none of the Directors and Key

Managerial Personnels of the Company and their relatives are concerned or interested
in the resolution set out at Item No. 3 of this notice.

ITEM NO.4

Shri Alkesh Kumar Sharma (holding DIN 02724743), Director of the Company, liable to
retire by rotation, vacates office by rotation at this Annual General Meeting. Shri Alkesh
Kumar Sharma being eligible offers himself for re-appointment and is proposed to be
re-appointed as a Director of the Company liable to retire by rotation.

Hence the resolution is proposed.
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Continuation Sheet

Except Shri Alkesh Kumar Sharma, being an appointee, none of the Directors and Key

Managerial Personnel’s of the Company and their relatives are concerned or interested
in the resolution set out at Item No. 4 of this notice.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
For Delhi Mumbai Industrial Corridor

Development Corporation limited
Place: New Delhi

Date: August 28, 2017 Wg\)&)"’

(Abhishek Chaudhary)

VP - Corporate Affairs, HR

& Company Secretary

M. No. -F6701

Address- 16021, ATS Advantage,
Ahinsa Khand-I, Indirapuram,
Ghaziabad, Uttar Pradesh- 201014
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Attendance Slip

CIN : U45400DL2008PLC172316

" Name of the Company . : S elhi Mumbai Industrial Corridor Development |
~ Corporation Limited :

““Registered Office ~:  Room No. 3418, 03+ Floor, ‘Main Building, Hotel
: : Ashok, Diplomatic Enclave, 50B, Chanakyapuri, -
New Delhi - 110 021 _ :

I/We hereby record my/our presence at the 09t Annual General Meeting of the
Company at Room No. 341B, 03+ Floor, Main Building, Hotel Ashok, Diplomatic

Enclave, 50B, Chanakyapuri, New Delhi - 110 021.

...................................................................................................

Member’s Folio Member's/ Proxy Name Member’s/ Proxy
Signature
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Proxy Ferm

Form No. MGT-11
Proxy Form

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN i U45400DL2008PLC172316

Name of the  : - Delhi Mumbai Industrial Corridor Developmem:df

Company Corporation Limited

Registered Office ' : =~ Room No. 341B, 03 Floor, Main Building, Hotel
-+ Ashok, Diplomatic Enclave, 50B, Chanakyapuri,

New Delhi - 110 021
Name of the | :
members(s) '
o -liégisteredmaddress
e B B
Folio No/Client _[d
DPID "
[/We, being the members(s) of shares of the above name
company, hereby appoint
1 Name L N
.. Address
E-mail Id .
Signature ] ..ot failing him
2 Name ,
o Address 1
Emailld 0 oe
Signature D ;or failing him
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. Address
E-mail Id

as my/ our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/ us and on my / our behalf at
the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on 21+ day of September,2017
at 4:00 P.M. at the Registered Office of the Company, at Room No. 341B, 03 Floor,
Main Building, Hotel Ashok, Diplomatic Enclave, 50B, Chanakyapuri, New Delhi -
110 021 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions set out in the
Notice convening the meeting, as are indicated below:

Resolution No.

) PRI
2 ierare e aenre i aaeaanas
 TORUOPUUTOTTIUPTOROPORDPPI
ST PP
Signed this................ day of..c.oerereann 2017 R
Signature of shareholder...........coooooiiinnennn Revenue |
Signature of Proxy holder(s)........c..ccoccooveere Stamp |

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and
deposited at the Registered office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the

commencement of the Meeting.
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% Delhi Mumbai Industrial Corrtdor Development Corporation Limited
h Draft Director’s Report for the Financiad Year 2016-17
£
e DIRECTORS” REPORT
o Dear Shareholders,
Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the Ninth Annual Report on the affairs of the
€ company for the year ended 315t March 2017.
o [n accordance with the approval of Government of India, the shareholding pattern of the
o Company is as follows:
o SHAREHOLDING PATTERN
O
i ® GOVERNMENT OF INDIA (49 %)
£ #® IBIC (26 %)
£ 2 HUDCO (19.9 %)
o ®IIFCL (4.1%)
& WLIC {1 %)

1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SUMMARY:-

The Financial Statements summary of the Company for the financial year ended
March 31, 2017 is summarized below:

£ {Amount in Rs.)

- Particalars - L L 2016-17 | 2015-16

Lot Total Income 11,47,58,242 9,69,87 416

Total Expenses 7.70,77,910 7,24,15,600

L Tax Expense 1,16,16,983 81,33,082

£ Profit / (Loss) for the year after Tax 2,60,63,349 1,04,38,734

- 2. STATUS OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS:

w’ In the Phase - I of Delhi Mumbai Industrial Corridor Project, eight Investment
' Regions/ Industrial Areas are being taken up for development as ‘Smart Cities’.

The state-wise progress of DMIC project is as under:-

W 2

-
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Delhi Mmbai Dndustrial Corvidor Development Corporation Lintited
Draft Director’s Report for the Firuncial Year 2016-17

GUJARAT
Dholera Special Investment Region (DSIR):

s Preliminary Engineering works for various trunk infrastructure components is
complete;

+ Programme Managers have been appointed for undertaking the implementation
related activities by coordinating all the downstream activities;

» SPV by the name of “Dholera Industrial City Development Limited” has been
incorporated. State Govt. has transferred 1705 Ha to the SPV and matching equity has
also been released by the National Industrial Corridor Development and
{mplementation Trust (NICDIT} (formerly known as DMIC Project Implementation
Trust Fund (DMIC Trust) ) amounting to Rs. 983.5 crore;

e Cabinet Committee on Fconomic Affairs (CCEA) had approved the tender packages
for various trunk infrastructure components for Activation Area of Dholera for Rs.
2784.82 crore divided into five packages, the individual status is indicated as under:

e EPC for Roads and Services Contract (INR 1,734 crore} awarded. L&T is the
selected bidder and work is in progress;

» EPC for ABCD Building Contract (INR 72.31 crore) awarded. Cube Construction
Engineering Ltd. is the selected bidder and work is in progress;

s EPC for Water Treatment Plant (WTP) Contract (INR 90 crore) awarded. SPML is
the selected bidder and work is in progress;

» EPC for Sewage Treatment Plant (STP) Contract (INR 54 crore) awarded. L&T is the
selected bidder and work is in progress;

» EPC tender for Central Effluent Treatment Plant (CETP) has been issued and bids
received are under evaluation;

e ICT consultants have been appointed and it is expected that tender documents for
selection of Master System Integrator (MSI} will be issued by Eebruary, 2018;

¢ Land allotment policy finalized and land is ready for allotment;

e An MoU has been executed with AIRBUS for setting up the Maintenance, Repair and

Overhaul (MRO) facility;
» Road shows and round table conferences are being organized to attract anchor
tenants/ investors.

Multi Modal Logistic Park {MMLP) at Sanand, Gujarat (500 acres):

e Project consultants have been appointed for preparing the Techno-Economic
Feasibility Study (TEFS);

o State Govt. has been requested to initiate the land acquisition process at the earliest
after finalization of the Town Planning and land acquisition scheme;

» Tender documents for selection of EPC contractor for various trunk infrastructure
components (external connectivity as well as internal site development) will be issued

by early, 2018.

MRTS between Ahmedabad and Dholera, Gujarat;

» DPR prepared and approved by the State Govt;

3
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Dettti Mumbai Industrial Corrdor Developrstant Corporation Limited
Draft Director's Report for the Finencial Year 20116-17

* [Project has been included in JICA Rolling Plan for DMIC Project;

* NHAI has appointed the consultant for DPR preparation for Expressway Project
between Ahmedabad and Dholera. Land acquisition for the MRTS Project will be
initiated as part of RoW of expressway project once DPR is ready.

Greenfield International Airport at Dholera in Gujarat:

* In-principle’ approval has been accorded for Dholera International Airport by the
Ministry of Civil Aviation;
* Consortium of M/s PwC has been appointed as the Transaction Advisor.

Bhimnath Dholera Rail Line Project:

* Final Location Survey (FLS) has been finalized by Ministry of Railways;

* Western Railways has submitted the DPR and estimates for sanction to the Railway
Board.

MAHARASHTRA

Shendra Bidkin Industrial Area {SBIA):

» Preliminary Engineering works for Phase-1 of SBIA (8.39 sq. kms) has been completed;

¢ Programme Managers have been appointed for undertaking the implementation
related activities by coordinating all the downstream activities;

* Node/City level SPV by the name “Aurangabad Industrial Township Limited” has
been incorporated. State Govt has transferred 8.39 sq kms to the SPV and the
matching equity has also been released by the National Industrial Corridor
Development and Implementation Trust (NICDIT) {formerly known as DMIC Project
[mplementation Trust Fund (DMIC Trust)) amounting to Rs. 602.80 crore;

» Cabinet Committee on Economic Affairs (CCEA} had approved the tender packages
for various trunk infrastructure components for Shendra Industrial Area for Rs. 1533
crore divided into five packages, the individual status is indicated as under:
= EPC for Roads, Drains, Culverts, Water Supply, Sewerage and Power systems

awarded (INR 656.89 crore). Shapoorji Pallonji is the selected bidder and work is in
progress;

* EPC for construction of Road over Bridges awarded (INR 69.45 crore). Patil
Construction and Infrastructure Ltd is the selected bidder and work is in progress;

* EPC for District Administration Building (INR 129 crore). Shapoorji Palloni is the
selected bidder and work is in progress;

* Other packages of landscaping and Sewerage Treatment Plant (STP), Common
Effluent Treatment Plant (CETP) & Solid Waste Management will be issued in a
phased manner; _

e Bid proposals received for selection of Master System Integrator for Shendra
Industrial Area. The evaluation process is presently underway;

.

e Do

o
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Dethi Mumbai brdustrial Corridar Development Corporation Limited
Druft Director's Report for the Finaneial Year 2016-17

« Land allotment policy finalized and 24 industrial plots have been allotted majorly to
Small and Medium Enterprises.
Project developmental activities for Bidkin are being taken forward and trunk
infrastructure packages worth INR 6414.21 crore have been approved by National
Industrial Corridor Development and Implementation Trust (NICDIT) (formerly
~ known as DMIC Project Implementation Trust Fund (DMIC Trust)) and subsequently
by Cabinet Committee on Economic Affairs (CCEA);
State Govt. has additionally transferred 1016.36 Ha to the project SPV for Bidkin
Industrial Area and matching equity has been released amounting to INR 849.90 crore;
1.&T has emerged as the lowest bidder (INR 1223 crore) for Phase-1 ie. 10 sqgkms for
roads and underground utilities/ services and letter of award is being issued;

« Other packages will be issued ina phased manner.

-

Dighi Port Indusirial Area:

e State Govt. has initiated the process of land acquisition. A total of 2255 Ha of land has
been acquired by MIDC. However, the land parcels are not contiguous. Other project
development activities will be initiated once contiguous land is made available by the

State Government.

MADHYA PRADESH

Pithampur Dhar Mhow Investment Region:

State Support Agreement (S5A) and Shareholder’'s Agreement (SHA) has been executed
between National Industrial Corridor Development and Implementation Trust (NICDIT) (
formerly known as DMIC Project Implementation Trust Fund (DMIC ‘Trust)}, and State
Govt. of Madhya Pradesh/ MPTRIFAC for node/ city level.

Integrated Industrial Township ‘Vikram Udyogpuri’ Project, Ujjain:

» Preliminary engineering activities have been completed and SPV by the name of
“Vikram Udyogpuri Limited” has been incorporated;

e Land admeasuring 1100 acres has been transferred to the project SPV and the
matching equity amounting to Rs. 55.93 crore has also been released by the National
(ndustrial Corridor Development and Implementation Trust (NICDIT) (formerly
known as DMIC Project Implementation Trust Fund (DMIC Trust));

s Program Management Consultants has also been appointed to supervise the
construction related activities;

« SPML has been appointed as the EPC Contractor for INR 332 crore for undertaking the
implementation of various trunk infrastructure components and work is In progress;

e land allotment policy finalized and land is ready for allotment;

« Road shows and round table conferences are being organized.
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Water Supply Project for Pithampur Industrial Area:

SPV by the name of Pithampur Jal Prabandhan Company Limited (PJPCL) has been
incorporated between State Govt. and National Industrial Corridor Dvelopment and
[mplementation Trust (NICDIT) (formerly known as DMIC Project Implementation
Trust Fund (DMIC Trust));

Consultants have been appointed to oversee the construction related activities;

L&T has been appointed as the EPC contractor for Rs. 219 crore and work is in
progress,

HARYANA

Integrated Multi Modal Logistics Hub {IMLH) at Nangal Chaudhary:

Land admeasuring 1000 acres has been identified at villages Talot, Ghatasher and
Bashirpur, Tehsil Narnaul, District Mahendergarh for the project;

The project SPV has been incorporated between National Industrial Corridor
Development and Implementation Trust (NICDIT) (formerly known as DMIC Project
Implementation Trust Fund (DMIC Trust)) and State Govt. of Haryana;

The consortium led by RITES has been appointed for preparation of the techno-
economic feasibility study and master planning for the project;

A Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) has also been executed between SPV and
DFCCIL for jointly implementing the IMLH project;

State Govt. has initiated the process of land acquisition and approximately 400 acres
have been acquired by the State Govt.

Global City Project:

The Project SPV has been incorporated between National Industrial Corridor
Development and Implementation Trust (NICDIT) (formerly known as DMIC Project
Implementation Trust Fund (DMIC Trust))and State Govt. of Haryana;

The Master Plan has been completed and State Govt. has been requested to approve
the final Master Plan and transfer the land to the SPV;

Revised tender documents for selection of preliminary engineering consultants for
roads and services/utiliies have been issued and last date of submission of bid
proposals is July 06, 2017.

Mass Rapid Transit System (MRTS) Project:

State Government has approved the Final DPR;

Project SPV has been incorporated between National industrial Corridor Development
and Implementation Trust (NICDIT) (formerly known as DMIC Project
[mplementation Trust Fund (DMIC Trust))and State Govt. of Haryana;
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Draft Director’s Report for the Financiat Year 2016-17
o Land for Phase-1 development i.e. from Huda City Centre till Panchgaon Chowk is in

possession of the State Govt,;
e Land for Phase-2 i.e. from Panchgaon Chowk till Bawal is under acquisition;
e The project has been included in the JICA Special Rolling Plan for DMIC Project;
e JICA has to initiate their due-diligence.

UTTAR PRADESH

Integrated Industrial Township Project at Greater Noida:

¢ Preliminary engineering activities have been completed and SPV by the name of
“Integrated Industrial Township Greater Noida Limited” has been incorporated;

» Land admeasuring 747.5 acres has been transferred to the Project SPV and the
matching equity amounting to Rs. 617.20 crore has also been released by the National
{ndustrial Corridor Development and Implementation Trust (NICDIY), (formerly
known as DMIC Project Implementation Trust Fund (DMIC Tust));

» Shapoorji Pallonji has been appointed as the EPC Contractor for INR 426 crore for
undertaking the implementation of various trunk infrastructure components and
work is in progress;

» Land allotment policy finalized and land allotment process has been initiated;

s Road shows and round table conferences are being organized

Multi Modal Logistics Hub (MMLH) and Multi Modal Transport Hub (MMTH)
at Dadri:

« The consultants have been appointed for preparation of Detailed Project Report

(DPR);
+ Discussions have also been initiated with DFCCIL so as to provide connectivity to the

site from Western and Eastern DFC;
«  Out of total 654 Ha, State Govt. has acquired approximately 48% of the land and rest is

under acquisition.

RAJASTHAN

Khushkhera Bhiwadi Neemrana Investment Region, Rajasthan:

¢ Master plan has been notified;
e Land acquisition process has been initiated by State Government for about 1425.36 ha;

+ Rajasthan Special Investment Region Act has been notified by State Government for
enabling execution of SHA & S5A;

Greenfield International Airport at Rajasthan:

» Site Clearance accorded by MoCA;
» The process for preparation of Detailed Project Report (DPR) has been initiated by
Airport Authority of India (AAI) and the same is expected to be completed by end of

July, 2017. =
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Jodhpur Pali Marwar Industrial Area (JPMIA)

Master plan has been notified;
Environment Clearance has been accorded by MoEF&CC.

Model Solar Project, Neemrana, Rajasthan:

5 MW Solar Power Plant has been commissioned successfully.

PPA between Mikuni India Pvt. Ltd., a Japanese company and DMICDC Neemrana
Solar Power Company Ltd (DNSPCL) for IMW has been executed;

[mplementation Document (ID) has been executed between DMICDC Limited and
Hitachi Limited;

Data Purchase Agreement between Hitachi Limited and DMICDC NSPCL for IMW
Solar has been executed;

Project implementation activities are being taken forward for IMW Solar PV plant
integrated with DG & Micro Grid;

IMW Project is likely to be commissioned by July 01, 2017.

Logistic Data Bank, DMIC Region:

Operations have been initiated at NPT Port with effect from July 01, 2016;

Operations have also been successfully launched across all container terminals at
APSEZ Mundra (Adani Port Special Economic Zone) & AHPPL Hazira (Adani Hazira
Port Pvt Ltd) in Gujarat fromMay 01, 2017;

More than 30,00,000 containers have been tagged/de-tagged tll May 31, 2017.

Integrated Exhibition cum Convention Centre (ECC) at Dwarka, Delhi:

Cabinet has accorded its approval and Project Steering Committee has been
constituted to steer the project;

Possession of land has been taken over from DDA by DIPP;

AECOM has been appointed as Programme Management Consultants to undertake
various project development activities;

Project development activities are being taken forward in consultation with
stakeholders like Delhi Development Authority (DDA), Airport Authority of India
(AAID), Delhi Jal Board (DJB), Delhi Transco Limited (DTL), National Highways
Authority of India (NHAI) etc.;

AAI has given its No Objection Certificate on the Building Heights proposed for the
project;

South Delhi Municipal Corporation (SDMC) has approved the tayout plan and DUAC
has provided its approval on the urban design layout;

Regular review meetings are being held to monitor the progress of the project;

The Expert Appraisal Committee (EAC) gave its approval on Terms of Reference
(ToR) of EIA study on April 14, 2017. Environmental Impact Assessment (E[A) Study
is currently underway;




Delhi Murbat Industrial Corridor Development Corporation Limited
Draft Director's Report for the Financial Year 2016-17

-

4.

Delhi Metro Rail Corporation Ltd. (DMRC) has submitted the Detailed Project Report
(DPR) for the proposed alignment for the “Extension of Dethi Metre from Sector 21,
Dwarka to the proposed Exhibition-cum- Convention Centre at Sector 25, Dwarka”
and the same has been approved by DIPP;

Boston Consulting Group has been appointed as Commercialization, Planning &
Transaction Advisor and a consortium of IDOM (Spain) & CP Kukreja Architects has
been appointed as Preliminary Engineering and Architectural Consultants;

Public Investment Board (PIB)/Committee of Establishment Expenditure (CEE)
during its meeting held on May 4, 2017 has recommended the formation of an Special
Purpose Vehicle (SPV) with additional budgetary support of INR 1500 cr. from the
Govt. of India and the balance amount of {NR 1381 crore to be raised as loan backed
by Govt. Guarantee,

. SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

The Company has following five subsidiaries as onMarch 31, 2017 :-

a) DMICDC Guna Power Company Limited;

b) DMICDC Indapur Power Company Limited;

¢} DMICDC Vaghel Power Company Limited;

d) DMICDC Ville Bhagad Power Company Limited; and
e) DMICDC Neemrana Solar Power Company Limited.

During the year under review, the Board of Directors reviewed the affairs of the
subsidiaries. Further, the report on the performance and financial position of each of the
subsidiary and salient features of the Financial Statements in the prescribed Form AOC-
1is already enclosed with the Financial Statements.

During the financial year ended on March 31, 2017, no Company has become or ceased
to be its subsidiaries/ joint ventures/ associate company.

DIVIDEND:

No dividend has been recommended during the financial year.

RESERVES:

During the period under review, Rs. 2,60,63,349/ - (Rupees Two crore Sixty Lakhs Sixty
Three Thousand Three Hundred and Fourty Nine only) has been transferred to the

reserves by the Company.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY:

There was no change in the naturc of the business of the Company during the financial
year ended on March 31, 2017.
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7.

10.

11.

12,

DETAILS IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS
WITH REFERENCE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

M/s Khandelia & Sharma, Chartered Accountants were appointed as I[nternal
Auditors of the Company for the financial year 2016-17 pursuant to Section 138(1) of
the Companies Act, 2013 in the Board Meeting of the Company held on
November 16, 2016. The Board feels that the scope of Internal Audit and Internal
Financial Control having regard to the size of the Company are adequate.

. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE

REGULATORS OR COURTS OR_TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING
CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY'S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE:

During the financial year ended on March 31, 2017,no order(s) has been passed by the
regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status and company’s
operations in future. :

. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE

FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY OCCURRED BETWEEN THE
FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 3157 MARCEH, 2017 AND THE DATE OF THE
REPORT:

There are no material changes occurred in between the financial year ended on March
31, 2017 and date of the report of the Company which affects the financial position of
the Company.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:

During the year under review, the Company is not required to comply with the
provisions related to Corporate Social Responsibility in pursuance to the provisions of
the Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013.

DEPOSITS:

During the financial year ended on March 31, 2017, the Company has not accepted
any deposits nor have any deposits remained unpaid or unclaimed. Further, during
this period, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of the deposits or the
payment of the interest due thereon.

STATUTORY AUDITORS:

The Comptroller and Auditor General of India (C&AG) vide its letter
No./CAV/COY/CENTRAL GOVERNMENT, DMICDC(0)/47 dated July 11, 2016 has
appointed M/s SSAR & Associates, Chartered Accountants as the Statutory Auditors
of the Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for the financial year
2016-2017. Also the Supplementary Audit of the Company for the financial year 2016~
17 has been entrusted to Principal Director, Commercial Audit & Ex- Offigj
Audit Board - L.
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13.

14,

15.

16.

17.

On similar lines, the Comptroller and Auditor General of India (C&AG) will appoint
the Statutory Auditors for the financial year 2017-18. Also, the Supplementary Audit of
the Company for the financial year 2017-18 will be entrusted to Principal Director,
Commercial Audit & Ex- Officio Member Audit Board - L.

The Statutory Auditors of the Company as may be appointed by the office of C&AG
will hold office tll the conclusion of the 10t Annual General Meeting of the Company.

AUDITORS’ REPORT:

The Auditors’ Report do not contain any qualifications. The notes to the accounts
referred to in the Auditor’s Report are self-explanatory and therefore do not call for

any further comments of Directors.

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS’ REPORT:

M/s Vinod Kumar & Company, Company Secretaries had been appointed to conduct
the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial year 2016-17 as per Section 204
of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder. The Secretarial Audit Report
in Form MR-3 do not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remarks. The
Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended on March 31, 2017 is attached at

Annexure-"A”.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE:

The authorized, issued and paid-up share capital of the Company is
Rs. 100,00,00,000/~ (Rupees One Hundred crores Only) divided into 10,00,00,000 {Ten
crore) equity shares of Rs. 10/ - (Rupees Ten) each.

EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURN UNDER SECTION 92(3):

In accordance with Section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, the extract of the
Annual Return as provided under Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 in Form
No. MGT - 9 is attached at Annexure - “B”.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND QUTGO:

The details of conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange
earnings and outgo are as follows:-

A) Conservation of energy™:
i. the steps taken or impact on conservation of energy : Not Applicable

it. the steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources : Not Applicable
of energy
jii. the capital investment on cnergy conservation equipment’s : Not Applicable

P S
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B)

i

ii.

iif.

iv.

Q)

ii.

Technology absorption:
the efforts made towards technology absorption

the benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction,
product development or import substitution

in case of imported technology (imported during the last three
years reckoned from the beginning of the financial year)

(a) The details of technology imported;

(b) the year of import;

(c) whether the technology been Fully absorbed;

(d) if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has

not taken place, and the reasons thereof; and

the expenditure incurred on Research and Development
Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo:

The Foreign Exchange earned in terms of actual inflows during
the year

The Foreign Exchange outgo during the year in terms of actual
Outflows

: Not Applicable

: Not Applicabie

: Not Applicable

: Not Applicable

: NIL

: Rs. 11,71,985/-

[*Note: The principal activity of the Company is to facilitate, promote and establish industrial
corvidorsfinvestment  regions/industrial areas/ economic  regions/industrial nodes/special
economic zones/townships with state-of-art industrial, physical and social infrastructure. The
conservation of energy and technology absorption is not applicable. However the Company is
doing its best efforts for the conservation of emergy through wvarious project development
activities.]

18. BOARD OF DIRECTORS:-

{A)Changes in Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Name of the Director/ Key | Date of .
5. No. Managerial Personnel / ’ Appointment Date of Cessation
1. Shri Ravinder August 13, 2014 August 22, 2016
2 Smt. Kalpana Awasthi January 27, 2016 August 22, 2016
3. Shri Sanjeev Gupta August 24, 2016 —
4, Smt, Vandana Kumar August 24, 2016 —

(B) Declaration by Independent Director(s} for the Financial Year 2016-17:

The definition of “Independence” of Independent Directors has been derived from
Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the confirmation/disclosures
received, the following persons have been appointed as Independent Directors of the
Company for the period of five years with effect from March 31, 2015 as per Section

149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013: - g £

e
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a) Shri Jai Prakash Batra (DIN: 00654332); and
b) Shri Prasanna Kumar Dash (DIN: (01578400)

The Company has received the declaration from the Independent Directors in
accordance with Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013, for the financial year 2016-17
that they meet the criteria of independence as laid out in Sub-Section {6) of Section 149
of the Companies Act, 2013. The similar declaration has also been received for the
financial year 2017-18.

(C)Number of Meetings of the Board of Directors:

Four (04) meetings of the Board of Directors of the Company were held in the financial
year 2016-17. The details of the Board Meeting ate as under:-

S.No. Particulars Date of Board Meeting
1. 40t Board Meeting June 28, 2016
2. 41 Board Meeting July 22, 2016
3, 420d Board Meeting November 16,2016
4. 434 Board Meeting February 28, 2017

19. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD:-

The Board of Directors has following two Comumittees:-

(A)Audit Committee :

As per Section 177 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the
Board of Directors of the Company in its 34® Meeting held on March 30, 2015 has
reconstituted the Audit Committee, The composition of the Audit Committee is as

follows:-

a) Shri J.P Batra (DIN: 00654332), Ex-Chairman, Railway Board and Independent
Director, DMICDC Ltd;

b) Shri P.K Dash (DIN: 01578400), Ex-Additional Chief Secretary, Industries,
Government of Madhya Pradesh and Independent Director, DMICDC Ltd; and

¢) Shri Ichiro Hayashidani (DIN: 07417884}, Chief Representative Officer in New
Delhi, Japan Bank for Intemmational Cooperation (JBIC) and Director, DMICDC
Ltd.

During the year 2016-17, three meetings have been held onfuly 22, 2016;
November 16, 2016 and February 28, 2017

(B) Nomination and Remuneration Comumittee :

As per the Section 178 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

the Board of Directors of the Company in its 34™ Meeting held on March 30, 2015

has reconstituted the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The composition

of the Nomination and Remuneration Commiltee is as follows:- P—
At
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a) ShriJ.P Batra (DIN: 00654332), Ex-Chairman, Railway Board and Independent
Director, DMICDC Ltd;

b) Shri P.K Dash (DIN: 01578400), Ex-Additional Chief Secretary, Industries,
Government of Madhya Pradesh and Independent Director, DMICDC Ltd; and

¢) Shri Ichiro Hayashidani (DIN: 07417884), Chief Representative Officer in New
Dethi, Japan Bank for International Cooperation (JBIC) and Director, DMICDC
Ltd.

During the year 2016-17, two meetings have been held on June 28, 2016 and
November 16, 2016.

20. REMUNERATION PAID TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNELS (KMPs):

The Company during the financial year 2016-17 has paid remuneration to Shri Alkesh
Kumar Sharma, CEO & Managing Director; Shri Pradeep Kumar Agarwal, Chief
Financial Officer and Shri Abhishek Chaudhary, VPP - Corporate Affairs, HR and
Company Secretary. The details of the remuneration paid during the financial year
2016-17 is mentioned in Clause VI (C) of Form No. MGT - 9.

2L PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR_INVESTMENTS UNDER
SECTION 186:

No Loan(s) or Guarantee(s) has been given and Investment(s) has been made under
Section 186 by the Company during the financial year under review.

22. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED
PARTIES UNDER SECTION 188(1):

No contracts or arrangements were entered into by the Company with related parties
referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act during the financial
year under review.

23. RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL ADEQUACY:

The Company has adequate risk management process to identify and notify the Board
of Directors about the risks or opportunities that could have an adverse impact on the
Company's operations or could be exploited to maximize the gains. The processes and
procedures are in place to act in a time bound manner to manage the risks or
opportunities. The risk management process is reviewed and evaluated by the Board
of Directors,

The Company’s internal control systems are commensurate with the nature of its
business and the size and complexity of its operations. These are routinely tested and
certified by Statutory as well as Internal Auditors. Significant audit observations and
follow up actions thereon are reported to the Audit Committee.
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24, DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

In pursuance to clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013
it is stated that:-

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had
been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

b) the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently
and made judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial
year and of the profit and loss of the company for that period;

¢} the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud
and other irregularities;

d) the Directors had prepared the annual accounts ona going concern basis; and

e) the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions
of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating
effectively.

25. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

A meeting of Independent Directors of the Company was held on February 28, 2017 to
review the performance of Non- Independent Directors, including the performance of

Chairperson of the Company.

26. COST AUDITORS:

As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is not required to
appoint the Cost Auditors.

27 POLICY IN COMPLIANCE OF THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT
WORKI'LACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:

The Company has zero tolerance towards sexual harassment at the workplace and has
adopted a policy on prevention, prohibition and redressal of sexual harassment at
workplace in line with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules

thereunder.

28 EXPLANATION OR__COMMENTS BY THE BOARD _ON EVERY
OUALIFICATION, RESERVATION OR ADVERSE REMARK OR DISCLAIMER

MADE:

The reports of Statutory Auditor and Secretarial Auditor are free from any
qualification, reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer. AL
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29. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:

The Board of Directors of the Company wish to place on record, their thanks and
appreciation to all workers, staff members and executives for their contribution to the
operations of the company. The Directors are thankful to the Government of India,
Japan Bank for International Cooperation (JBIC), Housing and Urban Development
£ Corporation Limited (HUDCO), India Infrastructure Finance Corporation Limited
- {IFCL) and Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC), and its Bankers. The Directors
£ also place on record their sincere thanks to the sharehclders for their continued
support, co-operation and confidence in the Management of the Company.

2 »

Iy

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

(Ram?ecsiM hishek)
£ Chairman

Date: June 22, 2017 DIN: 07452293
£ Place: New Delhi Add: No. 59, New Moti Bagh New Delhi-110023

181



Annexure - A

To

The Board of Directors

DELHI MUMBAI INDUSTRIAL CORRIDOR DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED
Room No. 341B, 3rd Floor, Main Building

Ashoka Hotel, Diplomatic Enclave

50B, Chanakyapuri

New Delhi-110021

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FORTHE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED

31"MARCH, 2017

For Vinod Kumar & Co.

Vinod Kumar Aneja

Company Secretaries

M.COM, FCS, LL.B

#833, WEST END MALL,

JANAKPURI NEW DELH1-110058
MOBILE NO. 9212477250, 8800497844,
£ Mail: fesvinod @rediffmail.com

fesvinad@gmail.com

{

ek



.

(3

VINOD KUMAR & CO.

COMPANY SECRETARIES
CS VINOD KUMAR M.COM, FCS, LL.B
#833 WEST END MALL, JANAKPURI, NEW DELHI- 110058
CELL NO. 9212477250, 8800497844, vkaneia200 lesgmail.com, fesvinodicgmail.com

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For The Financial Year Ended 31%*March, 2017
{Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Delhi Mumbai Industrial Corridor Development Corporation Limited,
Room No. 341B, 03rd Fioor, Main Building,

Ashoka Hotel, Diplomatic Enclave,

50B,Chanakyapuri

Delhi - 110021

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by DELHI MUMBAI
INDUSTRIAL CORRIDOR DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED
(hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a
manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaiuating the corporate
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon,

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms
and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the
information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized
representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, I hereby report that in
my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the Financial
Year ended on 31 March, 2017 complied with the statutory provisions listed
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the
reporting made hereinafter:




I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by DELHI MUMBAI INDUSTRIAL CORRIDOR
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED {“the Company”) for the Financial
Year ended on 31% March, 2017 according to the provisions of:
1) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;
2) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999and Regulations made there
under to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct
Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

3) Other laws as are and to the extent applicable to the Company as per the
Managementrepresentations, given below:

(N The Employee Provident Fund Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952,
{ii)  The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972.
(i) Delhi Shops & Establishment Act, 1954.

(iv)y Indian Stamp Act, 1999.

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the foliowing:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company
Secretaries of India.

(i) The Company has not entered into listing agreements with any
Stock Exchange, being an unlisted entity,

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions
of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned and there
was no non-compliance/observation/audit gualification, reservation or adverse
remarks in respect of above paragraphs.

I further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance
of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors,

The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that tcok place during
the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of
the Act.

Adeguate notice is given to ail Directors to schedule the Board Meetings,
agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance,
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and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful
participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are
captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the
Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to

monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and
guidelines,

There is no non-compliance/observation/audit qualification, reservation or
adverse remarks in respect of the Board Structures/system and processes
relating to the Audit period.

I further report that the company has passed a resolution by circulation
dated 21% April, 2017 to initiate the process to strike off the name of its wholly
owned Gas Based Power SPVs i.e. DMICDC Guna Power Company Limited,
DMICDC Indapur Power Company Limited, DMICDC Vaghel Power Company
Limited and DMICDC ville Bhagad Power Company Limited from the Register of
Companies maintained by the Registrar of Companies as per the provision of
section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies{ Removal of
Name of Companies from the Register of Companies) Rules, 20160only after the
receipt of money from the respective State Government(s).

For Vinod Kumar & Co.
Company Secretaries

/

{Vinod Kumar Aneja)
FCS - 5740
C.P. No.-5740

Place: New Dethi
Dated: 272 ~ & 6- 201 F

Note:This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as
Annexure A and forms an integral part of this report. '
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VINOD KUMAR & CO.

COMPANY SECRETARIES :
CS VINOD KUMAR M.COM, FCS, LL.B
833 WEST END MALL, JANAKPURI NEW DELHI-110058

CELL NO. 9212477250, 8800497844, vkaneiaZ00 luigimail.com, fesvinodwgmail.com

To,

Annexure - A

The Members,

Delhi Mumbai Industrial Corridor Development Corporation Limited
Room No. 3418, 03rd Floor, Main Building,

Ashoka Hotel, Diplomatic Enclave,

50B, Chanakyapuri

Dethi ~ 110021

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the
management of the company. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these secretarial records based cn our audit.

. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were
appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of
the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on
test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial
records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial
records and Books of Accounts of the company as the same have been
subject to review by the Statutory Financial Auditor and any other
designated professional.

. The Compliances done by the company of the appiicable Financial
Laws like Direct and Indirect Tax Laws have not been reviewed by us
as thesame have been subject to review by the Statutory Financial
Auditor and any other designated professional.
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5. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management

representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations
and happening of events etc.

. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable

faws, rules, requlations, standards is the responsibility of
management. Our examination was limited to the verification of
procedures on test basis.

. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future

viability of the company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which
the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

For Vinod Kumar & Co.
Company Secretaries

{(Vinod Kumar Aneja)

FCS - 5740
C.P. No. - 5740

Place: New Delhi
Date: D2 -6§-2olf
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Form No. MCT-2
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on the financial year ended on 31.03.2017
[ Pursiant to section 32(3) af the Companies Act, 2013 and mile [241) of e
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014

|. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS
i CIN L43400D1L2008PLLC172316

Registration Prate 07" JANUARY. 2008

(&)

DELHI MUMBAI ENDUSTRIAL CORRIDOR DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
3 Name of the Company LIMITED

4 Category/Sub-Category of Company COMPANY LIMITED BY SFIARES

Address of the Registered office and ROOM NO. 3418, 3RD ELOOR, MAIN BUILDING ASHOKA, HOTEL, DIPLOMATIC

? contact details ENCTAVE, 508, CHANAKYAPURI, NEW DELHE - 113 021
[} Whether listed company NG

Name, Address and Contact details
7 of Registrar and Transfer Agent, if N.A

any

{I. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
All the business activities contributing 10% or wore of the total birmover of te Company shail be stated:-

5.Nu. Name and Desmptm.“ of main NIC Code of the Producl/ service % to totat turnever of the Company
products services

1 The principal activity of the[84  (Public administration  and -
Company is to facilitate, promote|defeace; compuisary social security)
and establish industrial
corridors/ investment

regions/industrial areas/ ecanomic
regions/ industrial nodes /special
eronomic  zones/ townships  with
state-gf-art indusirial, physical and
social infrastructure.

“IAs per National Industrial Classifications (NIC) 2008 code
TiE. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

$.No. Name of the Company CIN br:::idl:‘agy/ i oflzl!:jares A g‘:ziﬁz:!e
Associate
H gg?ﬁ:gw ng,{{ﬁ;\ POWER U40109TIL201DPLC202494 Subsidiary wo KT
2 Egl;;{f EW u[ ﬂﬁ%gu R POWER U40100T 20109L.C202447 Subsidiary 100 287}
3 ggi(ﬁ[ﬁw | ‘I:l’;&%& POWER U40101DL2010PLC202516 Subsidiary e ABT
4 Qg‘if;?\f\p‘j irl,ﬁr E&)AGA” POWER UA0108DL20101L C202518 Subsidiary Hi) 2A87)
5 ?g{j&?& owﬁi&ﬁ*ﬁﬁﬁﬂgso LAR UA030001.2014PT.C266439 Subsidiary 100 287
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iv. Sharcholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders )
{other than Directors, Promoeters and Holders af G DRs and ADRs):

5 No.

For each of the Top i Shareholders

Shareholding at the beginning of the year

Cumulative Shaceholding
during the year

No. of shares

% of total shares of
the Company

No. of shares

% of total
shares of the
COmpany

Japan

Bank for International Cooperation {JBEC)

At the beginning of the year

2,60.00,000

2,60,00,000

12

Date wise Increase/ Decrease in
Shareholdiag during the year
specifying the reasons for Increase/
Decrease (e.g. allotment/ transfer/
bonus/sweat equity etc.)

At the end of the year (or on the date
of separation, if separated Juring the
year)

2,6(,00,000

2,60L00.400

26

Housing and Urban Development Corporation Limited (HUDCO)

At the beginning of the vear

199,046,000

19.9

1,99,00, 060

9.9

Date wise Increase/ Decrease in
Shareholding during the year
specifying the reasons for
Increase/ Decrease (e.y. allotment/
transfer/ bonus/sweat equity etc.)

At the end of the year (or an the date
of separation, if separated during the

year)

i,99,00,000

9.9

1,9%,00,000

16.9

India infrastructure Finance Company Limited (1IFCL) [A+B+(C}]

{A} India {nfrastructure Finance Company Limited (IIFCL)

1

At the beginning of the year

40,949,998

{Jate wise [ncrease/ Decrease in
Shareholding during the year
specifying the reasons for
Increase/ Decrease (e.g. allotment/
transfer/ bonus/sweat equity ete.}

(5

At the end of the year (or on the date
of separation, if separated during the
vedr)

40,99.998

(B) HFCL jointly with Shri P.R. Jaishankar

At the beginning of the year

1

™

Date wise [ncrease/ Decrease in
Shareholding during the vear
specifying the reasons for
Increase/ Decrease {e.g. allotment/
transfer/ bonus/sweat equity eic.)

Al the end of the year {or on the date
of separation, if separated during the
vear)

at

(€) HIECL jointly with Shri Rajeev Mukhija

1

At the beginning of the year

M

i

Date wise [ncrease/ Decrease in
Shareholding during the vear
specifying the reasons for
increase,/ Decrease (e.g. allotment/
transfer/ bonus/sweat equity etc)

At the end of the year [or on the date
of separation, if separated during the

vear)

01

40,99,998

40,599,998

01

41

01

ull

o1

41




Life Insurance Corporation of India (L1C)

At the beginning of the year

10,00, 060 14,080,000

Date wise increase/ Decrease in
Sharcholding during the year
specifying the reasons for
[ncrease/ Decrease (e.g allotment/
transfer/ bonus/ sweat equity otc)

At the end of the year {or on the date
of separation, if separated during the
year)

10,00.600 10.00,000

1. Shareitolding of Directors and Key Manageriai Perse

rrel: Nl

5. No.

For each of the Directors and KMP

Cumulative Shareholding

Shareholding at the beginning of the year during the year

s of total
shares of the
Company

%, of total shares of

the Company No. of shares

No. of shares

At the beginning of the year

[

Tiate wise Increase/ Decrease in
Shareholding during the year
specifying the reasons for
[ncrease/ Decrease {e.g. altotment/
transfer/ bonus/sweat equity etc.)

Nil

At the end of the year (or on the date
of separation, if separated during the

year)

V. INDEBTEDN
Indebtedness of

ESS:

the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment:

Secured Loans exciuding deposits

Unsecured Loans Deposils Total Indebtedness

Indebtedness at
the beginning
of the financial
year

iyPrincipal
Amount

iijInterest due
bt not paid

iii}Interest
accrued but not
due

Totalfi+ii+iil)

Change in Indeb

tedness during the financial year

Addition

Reduciion

Net Change

Indebtedness at the end of the finarcial year

) Principal
Amount

i) Interest due
but not paid

fit) Interest
accrued but 0ot
due

Total (i+ii+iii)
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VI REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAE PERSONNEL

A, Remuneration lo Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager

Ceiling as per the Act

S. No. Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/Manager Total Amount

Cross salary
(a)Salary as per provisions contained - s
in sectiva 171} of the Income-tax Act, 63845

1 1961
{bYValue of perguiisites u/s —

.73,

17(2)Income-tax Act, 1961 875753
{e)Profits in leu of salary under Shri Atkesh Kumar Sharma Nt
section] 7{3) tacome- tax Act, 1961 (CEQ & Managing Director}

2 Stock Option NIL

3 Sweat Eiguity NIT.

PE—— ;
4 Commisston - as % of ?mfﬂ NiL
- others specify

3 Others, please specify NIL

Total{A) 57,41,600

B.  REMUNERATION TO OTHER DIRECTORS:

5. No. Particulars of Remuneration Naitre of Diccctors Total Amount
During the Financial Year 2016-17,
sitting fees was paid to Shri ' K. Dash
and Shri .7 Batra, Indepeadent
Directars of the company in the
foliowing manaer:
Fee for attending Board/ Committes |Rs.20,000/ - each was paid for GO0
meetings to Independent Directors  [attending (4) Four Board Meetings, o
(3) Three Audit Committee Moeetings,
1 {2} Two Nemination and
Remuneration Committee Meatings,
(1) One Annual General Meeting, and
(1} One Independent Directors
Meeting
Commission " i
Others, please specify - -
Total (1} 4,460,000
Other Non-Executive Directors:-
Fee for attending board committee
5 meetings MNLAL N
Commission
Qthers, please spocife
Total(2} -
Totai(B) =(1)+(2) 4,40,000
Total{A+B) 61,891,680
C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD
5.No. Particulars of Remuneration [ Key Managerial Personnel
Company Secretary CEO Total
Gross satary
a)Sal s pe isiuns contained in sectioni7) [ 2l
(3)Salary as per provisions contained in section17{1)of the [ncome-tax 16,435,072 17.85.580 7430652
1 Act,961
fh)Vatue of perquisites u/s 17{2)Income-tax Act £961 7,68, 106 737,613 1505719
{c}Profits in fieu of salarv under section 172} Income-tax Act, 1961 B
2 Stock Option -
3 Sweat Equity -
Commission -
4 - a5 % of profit -
- athers, specify . -
3 Others, please specify -
Total 44.13,178 - 89,36,371




Vil PENALTIES/PUNISHMEN FCOMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type

Section of the Companies Act

Petails of Penalty/
Panishment/
Contpounding Fees
imposed

Authority Appeal made, it
IR NCLEY any igive

Brief Description
COURTY details}

ALOMPANY

Penalty

Punishment

Compournding

NONE

B.DIRECTORS

Perntlty

Punishment

Lompeunding:

NONE

C, OTHER OFFICERS 1N DEFAULT

Penaltv

Punishment

Conipouaading

NONE

Date : June 22, 2017
Place : New Delhi

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

N
(Ramiesh ishek)

Chairman
DIN: 07452293
Add: No. 59, New Moti Bagh New Delhi-110023
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INDIAN AUDIT & ACCOUNTS DEPARTMENT,
OFFICE OF THE PRINCIPAL DIRECTOR OF COMMERCIAL
AUDIT & EX-OFFICIO MEMBER, AUDIT BOARD-1, New Delhi

i / Dated {/q//?—

Ty FRER A o g e,

Reeh g gefiam FRER Saawie #Rae [ifes,

e qem 341 o, ded qf, dea e, Rake e,
50 &, = qd,

T Rl 110 021

Freg : 31 w2017 B qura af g el g gsfgaa RS Sgwyde FURer
Rifies & aiffe aEl (Standalone Financial Statements and Consolidated
Financial Statements) 9T &0+l fgfFrm 2013 & arr 143(6)(b) @@
129(4) & oot seG & Frag® Jeren vhes # Rt |

TEIgd,

¥ew um 3 w31 wE 2017 @ awet 49 F fw el gl efga AR
ByaqBe FURm fofes & aif® @@l (Standalone Financial Statements and
Consolidated Financial Statements) 97 50 sigfam 2013 & gra 143(6)b) ™
129(4) 3 s g % Fgs memm oies @ ‘g feaiert” sEfee e § !’3‘*
o feofordt = e A o Rl § ol B o S #R A ofmer 3
a7 g S UER v am Ry g St dar wiew @ oawn ol O e S

X

a1,
e 52;7“-'1 E’_Uq%ﬁia” %’ J—
Tz HIE
2 7 g:}’x’z
(Feier AT TrE)
wurF fFReE
T s, -3, TR W9, TN (Re, ¥ R{weh—110002
3rd Floor, A-Wing, Indraprastha Bhawan, i. P, Estate, New Delhi-110002
TRATY / Tele.: 011-23378473, Ba¥ / Fax : 011-23378432, 011-2337087 1
E-mail : mabnewdelhi1@cag.gov.in 199



COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA
UNDER SECTION 143(6) (b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF DELHI MUMBAI INDUSTRIAL CORRIDOR
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH
2017

The preparation of financial statements of DELHI MUMBAI INDUSTRIAL
CORRIDOR DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED for the year ended 31 March
2017 in accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed under the Companies
Act, 2013 (Act) is the responsibility of the management of the company. The statutory
auditor appointed by the Comptrofler and Auditor General of India under section 139(5) of
the Act is responsible for expressing opinion on the financial statements under section 143 of
the Act based on independent audit in accordance with standards on auditing prescribed
under section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide their Audit
Report dated 22 June 2017.

I. on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a
supplementary audit under section 143(6) (a) of the Act of the financial statements of DELHI
MUMBAI INDUSTRIAL CORRIDOR DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED for
the year ended 31 March 2017. This supplementary audit has been carried out independently
without access to the working papers of the statutory auditor and is limited primarily to
inquiries of the statutory auditor and company personnel and a selective examination of some
of the accounting records. On the basis of my audit nothing significant has come to my
knowledge which would give rise to any comment upon or supplement to statutory auditor’s

report.

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller and Auditor General of india

Dsats

Place: New Dethi {(Neelesh Kumar Sah)
Dated: 05 September 2017 Principal Director of Commercial Audit
& Ex-officio Member Audit Board-I,
New Delhi.
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAXL OF INDIA
UNDER SECTION 143(6) (b) READ WITH SECTION 129(4) OF THE COMPANIES
ACT, 2013 ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF DELHI
MUMBAI INDUSTRIAL CORRIDOR DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

The preparation of consolidated financial statements of DELHI MUMBALI
INDUSTRIAL CORRIDOR DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED for the year
ended 31 March 2017 in accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed under
the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the responsibility of the management of the company. The
statutory auditor appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under section
139(5} read with section 129¢4) of the Act is responsible for expressing opinion on the
financial statements under section 143 read with section 129(4) of the Act based on
independent audit in accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under section
143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide their Audit Report dated 22
June 2017,

I, on the behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a
supplementary audit under section 143(6) (a) read with section 129(4) of the Act of the
consolidated financial statements of DELHI MUMBAI INDUSTRIAL CORRIDOR
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED for the year ended 31 March 2017. We
conducted a supplementary audit of the finencial statements of DELHI MUMBAI
INDUSTRIAL CORRIDOR DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED and its
subsidiary DMICDC VILLE BHAGAD POWER COMPANY LIMITED, but did not
conduct supplementary audit of the financial statements its four subsidiaries (list enclosed)
for the year ended 31 March 2017. This supplementary audit has been carried out
independently without access to the working papers of the statutory auditor and is limited
primarily to inquiries of the statutory auditor and company personnel and a selective
examination of some of the accounting records.

On the basis of my audit nothing significant has come to my knowledge which would give
rise to any comiment upon or supplement to statutory auditors’ report.

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India

Mresdn

Place: New Delhi ( Neelesh Kumar Sah)
Dated: 05 September 2017 Principal Director of Commercial Audit
& Ex-officio Member Audit Board-],
New Dethi.
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List of Subsidiaries whose supplementary audit was not conducted

DMICDC NEEMRANA SOLAR POWER COMPANY LIMITED
DMICDC GUNA POWER COMPANY LIMITED
DMICDC INDAPUR POWER COMPANY LIMITED
DMICDC VAGHEL POWER COMPANY LIMITED
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SSAR & ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of

DELHI MUMBAI INDUSTRIAL CORRIDOR DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of DELHI MUMBAI INDUSTRIAL
CORRIDOR DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as
at March 31, 2017, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”} with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India including the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irreguiarities,
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standafone financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters

which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder,

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10} of the
Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethi irements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonabie assurance about whether the fin s are free from material misstatements.

194, [T Floor, Ansari Road, Darya Ganj, New Delhi-110 002, Ph.: +91 011 6596 0912-13, 6528 8584, Fax: 4171 6915,
ssarca.india@gmail.com
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SSAR & ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidences about the amounts and the disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatements of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial controls relevant to the Company’s
preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well

as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit apinion on the standalone financial statements,

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give
a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2017, and its profits and its cash flows for the year ended on that

date.

Report on Other Legal and Regutatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies {Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 {“the Order”} issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give
in the “Annexure A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the
extent appiicable.

2. Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b) Inour opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books;

¢} The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

d)} In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rule, 2014;

e} On the basis of the written representations received from the Directors as on March 31, 2017
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,
2017 from being appointed as a director in terms of sub section (2) of section 164 of the
Companies Act 2013;

f}  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financi e
group and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our

“Annexure B”;

x ,
5 Gc.‘s&.»"
194, H Floor, Ansari Road, Darya Ganj, New Oeihi-110 002, Ph.: +91 011 6596 09£2-13, 6528 8584, Fax: 41 @:’:/’

ssarca.india@gmail.com
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SSAR & ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

g} With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of cur
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position;

ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses:

iii} There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the fnvestor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv} The Company has provided requisite disclosures in the financial statements as to holdings
as well as dealings in Specified 8ank Notes during the period from 8™ November, 2016 to
30" December, 2016. Based on audit procedures and relying on the management
representation, we report that the disclosures are in accordance with books of account
maintained by the Company and as produced to us by the Management { Refer to Note no.
37 to the audited financial staternants)

As required by Section 143(5) of the Act, we report to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us, that:
a) The Company has no Freehold/Leasehold property (Other than Operating Lease).

b) In our opinion, there are no cases of waiver/ write off of debts/ loans/ interest.

¢) The Company does not maintain any inventory and has not received any asset as gift from
government or other authorities

For SSAR & ASSOCIATES

Membership No: U8
Address: 19A, Ansari Road
Darya Ganj, New Dethi — 11000

Place : New Delhi
Date: June 22,2017

19A, 1l Floor, Aasari Road, Darya Ganj, New Delhi-110 002, Ph.; +91 01t 6596 0912-13, 6528 8584. Fax: 4171 6915.
ssareaindia@gmail.com
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“Annexure A"

To the Auditors’ Report (Dethi Mumbai Industrial Corridor Development Corporation Limited — FY 2016-17)

(i}

{ii)

(iii}

{iv)

(v}

(vi)

in respect of its fixed assets:
{a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative

details and situation of fixed assets;

(b) As explained to us, the assets have been physically verified by the management in
accordance with a phased program of verification, which in our opinion, is reasonable,
considering the size and the nature of its business. The frequency of verification is
reasonable and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such physical verification;

{c) According to the information and explanations given to us and records of the Company, the
Company does not have any immovable property held in the name of the company.
Therefore, provisions of clause 3(i)(c} of the Order are not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and records of the Company, the
Company does not have any inventory. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ii) of the Order

are not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and records of the Company, it had
not granted a loan to a company covered in the Register, maintained under Section 189 of the

Companies Act.

According to the information and explanations given to us and records of the Company, clause
3{iv} of CARO, 2016 in respect of loans, investments, guarantees and security with reference to
Section 185 and 186 of Companies Act, 2013, is not applicable for the Company;

In our opinion and according to the information given to us, the Company has not accepted any
deposits in contravention of the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the
provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and
the rules framed there-under, where applicable. No order has been passed by the Company Law
Board or National Company Law Tribunal or RBI or any court or any other tribunai;

We are informed that maintenance of cost records has not been prescribed by the Central
Government under Section 148(1} of the Companies Act, 2013, in respect of Company’s product;

(vii} According to information and explanations given to us in respect of statutory and other dues:

a) The Company has been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including,
income-tax, Sales-tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, Value Added Tax, Cess and other

statutory dues, wherever applicable with appropriate authorities.
b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no undisputed

amounts payable in respect of such statutory dues which have remained outstanding as
at 31° March, 2017 for a period more than six months from the date they became

payable;

I9A, #! Floor, Ansari Road, Darya Ganj, New Dethi-110 802. Ph.: +91 011 6396 0%12-13, 6528 8584, Fax: 4171 69I5.

ssarca.india@gmail.com
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{viii) The cornpany has not availed any loans and borrowings from Banks, Financial Institutions and
debenture holders. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(viii) of the order are not applicable to the
Company;

(ix) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised money
by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) and by any term
loan during the year; therefore, clause 3(ix) of the Order is not applicable to the Company;

{x} To the best of our knowledge and befief and according to the information and explanations
given to us by the management, no fraud, on or by the Company, has been noticed or reported
during the year;

{xi} According to the information and explanation provided to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has paid/provided for managerial remuneration in
accordance with the requisite approval mandate by the provision of section 197 read with
schedule V of the act;

{xii} The Company is not a Nidhi Company, therefore clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company;

(xiii} Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of Companies
Act, 2013, and the details have been disclosed in the Financial statements as required by the AS-
18 have been disclosed in the Note No.- 26;

(xiv) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partly convertible debentures during the year, so clause 3{xiv) of the Order is not applicable;

{xv} According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into
any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Hence, compliance
with the provisions of Section 192 of Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable.

{xvi} The Company is not required to register under section 45-1A of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934;
therefore, clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

For SSAR & ASSOCIATES
Chartered
Firm Regi,

Membership Nor
Address: 19A, Ansari Road
Darya Ganj, New Deihi - 110002

Place : New Dethi
Date: June 22,2017

194, [F Floor, Ansari Road, Durysa Gunj, New Delhi-110 002, Ph.: +91 ¢11 6596 0912-13, 6528 8584, Fax: 4171 6915,
ssarca.india@gmail.eom
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“Annexure- B”
To the Auditors’ Report {Dethi Mumbai industrial Corridor Development Corporation Limited — FY 2016-17)

Report on the internal Financial Controls under Clause (i} of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Delhi Mumbai industrial Corridor
Development Corporation Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2017 in conjunction with our audit of

the financial statements of the Company for the year ended as on that date.

Management’s Respansibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the “Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting” issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial

information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is t0 express an opinion on the Company's internaf financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the “Guidance Note on Audit of
internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting” (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing,
issued by the “ICAl” and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
controls and both issued by the institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in alf material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to ohtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controfs system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the

financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

g b

19A, Il Floor, Ansari Road, Darya Ganj, New Delhi-110 002, Ph,: +91 011 6596 0912-(3, 6528 8544, Fax: 4171 6915.
ssarca.indiaf@gmail.com
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over financial Reporting

A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that

(i) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(i} provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company; and

(iii} provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unautharised

acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an'adequate internal financial contrals system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as
at March 31, 2017, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of internal
Financial Controls Qver Financial Reporting issued by the ICAL

For SSAR & ASSOCIATES

Membership No: 089852
Address:; 19A, Ansari Road
Darya Ganj, New Delhi - 110002

Place : New Deihi
Date: june 22,2017

19A, Il Floor, Ansari Road, Darya Ganj, New Delhi-110 002, Ph.: +91 011 6596 0912-13, 6528 8584, Fax: 4171 6915,
ssarca.india@gmail.com
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{Membership No. 089852)

DELHI MUMBAI INDUSTRIAL CORRIDOR DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED
CIN: U45400D1.2008PL.C172316

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2017

As at 31st March, 2017

As at 31st March, 2016

Particulars Note No. Rupees (%) Rupees (%) Rupees (%) Rupees (%}
L EQUITY & LIABILITIES
{)SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS
(a) Share Capital 1 1,00,00,00,000 1.00,00,00,000
{b) Reserves & Surpius 2 4,45,98,80,662 5,45,98,80,662 3647963466 4,64,79,63,.466
{Z)NON - CURRENT LIABILITIES
{a) Other Long - term Liabilities 3 10,00,000 10.00,000
(b) Long - term Provisions 4 17,12,848 27,112,848 11,83 848 21,683,846
(3)CURRENT LIABILITIES
(a) Trade Payables 5
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises - -
(ii} Total cutstanding dues of creditors
other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises 32,52,23,916 28,1019,127
{b) Other Current Liabilities [ 4,08,54,123 3,48,58,321
{c) Short - term Provisions 7 1,22,881 36,62,00,900 17,607 32,58,95,055
TOTAL 5,82,87,94 410 4,97,60,42,367
il. ASSETS
{1)NON - CURRENT ASSETS
{a} Fixed Assets 8
(i) Property, Plant and Equipment 31,72,516 26,56,212
(i} Intangibia Assets 243716 2,07,867
34,16,232 28,684,079
{b} Non - Current investments 9 17,47,72,815 17,59,00,000
(¢} Deferrad Tax Assets (Net) 10 17,681,856 15,777,210
{d) Long - term Loans and Advances 1" 98,11,618 16,20,353
(e) Other Non - Current Assets 12 3,88,97,58,556 4,07,95,41,077 3,52,63.92 134 3,70,83,53,838
(2JCURRENT ASSETS
{a) Cash and Bank Balances 13 1,21,41,50,025 1,08,16,26,418
(b) Short - term Loans and Advances 14 20,52 .56 466 9,97,78,577
{c) Other Current Agsets 15 32,98,46,842 1,74,92,53,333 7,62,83,536 1,26,76,88,531
5,82,87,94,410 4,87,60,42,367
Significant Accounting Policies
Accompanying Notes on Financiaf f.38

Statements

As per our Rapert of even date attached
For SSAR

Sandeep

Place: New Delhi
Date : 22nd June, 2017

For and on behalf of the Board

Alkesh Kumpar Sharmpta
(CEQ & Managing Directar)
(DIN - 0172425¥)

P.K. Agarwal
{Chief Financial Officer)

(Director)

(DIN : 00654332)

L]
Abhishek Ct§idhary
(VP - Corporate Affairs, HR
& Company Secretary)
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DELHI MUMBAI INDUSTRIAL CORRIDOR DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED
CIN: U45400DL2008PLC172318

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2017

For the For the
Year ended Year endead
3M-Mar-2017 31-Mar-2016
Note No. Rupees (¥) Rupees (T)
l. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS 16 3,32,62,000 -
. QTHER INCOME 17 8,14 96,242 9,69,87 416
Hl. TOTAL REVENUE (i+i1) 11,47,58,242 9,69,87 416
V. EXPENSES
- Employee Benefits Expenses 18 3,24,31,385 2.09,53,297
- Depreciation Expanses 19 18,25,010 16,189,182
- Other Expensas 20 4.28,21.615 4,98,43,121
V. TOTAL EXPENSES 7,70,77,910 7,24,15 600
Vi. PROFIT(LOSS) BEFORE TAX {lli-V) 3,76,80,332 2,45,71,818
Vil. TAX EXPENSES
- Current Year 1,18,02,027 84,50,835
- Previous Year 14,602 -
- Deferred Tax (2.04,648) {3,17.753)
VI PROFIT (LLOSS)AFTER TAX FOR THE YEAR (Vi-VIi) 2,60,63,349 1,64,38,734
IX. EARNINGS PER EQUITY SHARE OF FACE VALUE OF T 10/- EACH
- Basic/Diluted ' 0.26 0.16
Significant Accounting Policias
1-38

Accompanying Notas on Financiat Statements

As per our Report of even date attached

For and on behalf of the Board

- et
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g 173,

R s \)'Q

Sandeop Sy ASS Alkesh Kufnar Shafma Jai Prakash Batra
(Director)

(CEQ & Managing Directar)
(DIN : 01724859)

‘)_ m{?ﬁw *""ﬁf"

P.K. Agarwal
{Chief Financial Officer)

(Partner)

(Membership No. 089852) {DIN : 00854332}

PtV

Abhishek Chaudhary
(VP - Corporate Affairs, HR
& Company Secretary)

Place: New Delhi
Date : 22nd June, 2017
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DELHI MUMBAI INDUSTRIAL CORRIDOR DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED
CIN: U45400DL2008PLC172316

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2017

Ag at 31at March, 2017

As at 313t March, 2016

Rupeas (¥) Rupaas (¥)
A. CASH FL.LOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net Profit before Tax 3,76,80,332 245,71,816
Adjustment for:

Depraciation 18.25.010 16.19,182

interest incomes (7.87.01 841) (9.38,16,092)

Net Cash from Operating Aclivities before

Extraordinary ltem and Working Capital Changes (3,91,96,299) (6,77,25,004)

Extraordinary items

Cperating Profit before working capital changes (a) (3.91,96,259)
Adjustments for :
(increase)/Decrease in Trade & Other Receivables (37,27,76,633)
increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables and Other FPayahles 4,08,34 847
Refund/(Payment) of Taxes (including TDS) (62,77,458)
Net Cash from/{used in) Operating Activities {b) {33,82,19,242)
Nst cash from operating activities {a)y+(b) {37.74,15,541)
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
{invested) in Project Development Expenses (34,66,26,830)
(Purchase)/ Sale of Fixed Assets (23,81,578)
{Increase)/ Decrease in Deposit with Bank (97.36.618)
interest Income 7,87.01,641
Not Cash from/(Used in} investing Activitias {28,00,43,385)
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Share Application Maoney -
Project Development Funds 77,58,47,975
Not Cash from/(Used In) Financing Activities 77,59,47.975
D. NET INCREASE / ({DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 11,84,89,049
E. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 1,08.16,26,418

F. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT AT THE END OF THE YEAR
{Refer Note No. 13)

As per our Report of even date attached
P i ""“"m,

-% E
J‘? e
Sandeapw Ag
{Partner) —
(Membership No. 089852)

Place: New Delhi
Date : 22nd June, 2017

1,21.01,15,467

{6,77,25,094)

{7.24,29,604)
10,96,76,029
18,46,714

3,90,93,139

{2,86,31,985)
(78.89,22,538)
(12,74,461)
(11,19,301)
9,39,16,002
{69,74,00,208}
51,9968, 104
51,98,63,104
{20,80,84,059)
1,29,76,90,477

1,08,165,26,418

For and on behalf of the Board

(DIN : 01724P59)

P.K. Agarwal
{Chief Financial Officer)

(VP - Corporate Affairs. HR
& Company Secretary)
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DELHI MUMBAI INDUSTRIAL CORRIDOR DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED
CIN: U45400DL2008PLC172316

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a) Basis for praparation of Financial Statements

These Financial Statements have been preparad to camply with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India (Indian
GAAP), including the Accounting Standards notified under the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

The financial statements are prepared on accrual basis under the historical cost convention. The accounting policies adopted in the
praparation of the financial statements are consistent with those followed in the previous years.

b) Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires the management of the Company to make certain estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amount of assets and liabifities, disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of the financial statements and the
reportad amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Difference between the actual results and estimates are

recognised in the period in which the results are known / materialised.

c) Property, Plant and Equipment

i) Property, plant and equipment are stated as per Cost Modal i.e., at cost lass accumutated depreciation and impairment, if any;

ity Costs directly attributable to acquisition are capitalized until the property, plant and equipment are ready for use, as intended by
the management;

iiiy Subsequent expenditures relating to property, ptant and equipment are capitalized only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with these will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Repairs &

maintenance costs are recognized in the Statement of profit & Loss when incurred;

iv) The cost and related accumulated depreciated are efiminated from the financial statements upon sale or retirement of the asset
and the resultant gains or losses are recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss. Assets to be disposed of are reported at the

lower of the carrying value or the fair value less cost to sell;

v) The Company depreciates property, plant and equipment pro-rata to the extent of depreciable amaount on Written Down Value
{WDV) Method. Depreciation is provided based on useful life of the assets as prescribed in Schedule 11 to the Companies Act,
2013 except in respect of the following assets, where useful life is different than those prescribed in Schedule il

Particulars Depreciation Justification
- Office Renovation Expenses  Amortized equally over the lease period of the  The assets are non-movable in nature and
office from the date of capitalisation. are, therefore written off over the period of
lease.

vi) Depreciation methods, useful lives, and residual vaiues are reviewed pericdically, including at each financial year end;

vii} Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date is classified as
capital advances under other non current assets and the cost of agseis-not put to use before such date are disclosed under
“Capital Work in progress”. I{;?.s...?;t‘?}\
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DELHI MUMBAI INDUSTRIAL CORRIDOR DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED
CiN: U45400DL2008PLC172316

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

d) Intangible Assets

i) Intangible assets are stated at cost of acquisition net of accumulated amortisation / depletion and impairment loss, if any;

if} Intangible assets are amortised over a pariod of 5 years from the year of purchase on Straight Line Method.

e} Project Development Fund (PDF)

Govemnment of india has approved sefting up a Project Development Fund (PDF) for various project development / preparatory
activities for Oelhi-Mumbai Industrial Corridor (DMIC) project and Other Industrial Coridor projects i.e., Amritsar Kolkata Industrial
Caorridor (AKIC) Project, Bengaluru Mumbai Industrial Corridor {BMIC) Project, Chennai Bengalury Industrial Corridor (CBIC) Project
and Vizag €hennai Industrial Corridor (VCIC) Project. Accordingly, the grant received from Gowt. of India for tha said purpose has
been shown under the head "Capital Reserves” in the Baiance Sheet in accordance with the Accounting Standard (AS 12). Interest
earned on the said PDF is added to the Project Development Fund. In case any part of funds becomes refundable at any future date
it will be reduced from the Capital Reserves.

f} Project implementation Fund

Government of India has approved setting up a Project Impiementation Fund (PIF) for various project implementation activities for
Delhi-Mumbai industrial Corridor (DMIC) project. Accordingly, the grant received from Govt. of India for the said purpose has been
shown under the head "Capital Reserves” In the Balance Sheet in accordance with the Accounting Standard (AS 12). Interest,
dividend or any other income that will be earned on the said PIF is adaed to the Project Implementation Fund. In case any part of the
fund becomes refundable at any future date it will be reduced from the Capital Reserves.

g) Project Davefopment Expenses (PDE)

All the direct expenses related to the project develapment activities, have been accounted under the head 'Project Development
Expenses' and reflected in the Balance Sheet under the bead Non - Current Assats.

h} Long-Term investments

Long-term investments are shown at actual cost including the cost incidental to acquisition. In case there is a decline, other than
temparary, in the value of long term investment, the carrying amount is reduced to recognise the decline. Indicators of the value of
an investment are obtained by reference to its market value, the investees’ assets and resuits and the expected cash flows from the
investments.

Raevenus Recognition
) Interest income is recognised on accrual basis;

i) Dividend income is accounted for when the right to receive it is established:;

iiiy Service Fees for the services rendered by the Company @ 1% (subject to the maximum limit of Rs. 20 crore in a year} of the
funds released by National industrial Corridor Developmen ementation Tryst (NICDIT) to various projects cut of
Project Implementation Funds (PIF) with effect from 26th J nised on accrual basis.

219




DELHI MUMBAI INDUSTRIAL CORRIDOR DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED
CIN: U45400DL2008PLC172316

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

i

K)

m)

n)

Leases

Leases are classified as operating lease where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership
during the lease term. Operating iease payments as per the terms of the lease agreement are recognised as an expense in the

Statement of Profit and Loss account on accrual basis,

Transactions in Foreign Exchange

Expenses in foreign currency / transactions are accounted at the prevailing market rate of exchange on the date of transaction and
income in foreign currencies are accounted at the value recovered from thase currencies.

Employee Benefits

i) The Company makes provision for Gratuity in terms of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 and Payment of Gratuity (Central)
Rules, 1972 based on actuarial valuation at the and of the year.

ii) Leave salary & pension contribution to CEQ & Managing Director of the company is accounted as per the prescribed rules of
Central Government.

Income Tax

Tax expense comprises of current tax and deferred tax. Current tax is measurad at the amount expected to be paid to the tax
authorities, using the applicable tax rates.

Deferred income tax reflect the current period timing differences between taxable income and accounting income for the period and
reversal of timing differences of earlier years / period. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that there is a

reasonable certainty that sufficient futura income will be available except that deferred tax assets, in case therg are unabsorbed
depreciation or losses, are recognised if there is virtual certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available to realise the

samae.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rates and tax law that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the Balance Sheet date.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
A provision is recognised in the accounts when the company has a present obligation as a result of past event(s) and it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be reqguired to settle the obligation in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions

are naot discounted to their present values and are determined based on the best estimate required to settle the obligations at the
reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Financial Statements and are disclosed in the Notes.

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the Financial Statements.
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DELHI MUMBAI INDUSTRIAL CORRIDOR DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED
CIN: U45400DL2008PLC172316

NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2017

NOTE 1: SHARE CAPITAL

1.0 AUTHORISED
10,00,00,000 Equity Shares of #10/- each with voting power

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP
10.00,00,000 Equity Shares of 210/- each with voting power

1.1 The reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding
is set out below:

Equity Shares at the beginning of the year
Add: Shares issued during the year
Equity Shares at the end of the year

1.2 Details of Shareholder's Holding more than 5% Shares:

President of India

(Through Secretary, Dapartment of industrial Policy and
Promation and its nominees)

Japan Bank for International Co-operation (JBIC)
Housing and Urban Development Corporation Limited

As at 31-Mar-2017
Rupeas {%)

As at 31-Mar-2016
Rupees (%)

1,00,00,00,000

1,00,00,00,000
Bl S

1,00,00.00,000

1,00,00,00,060

1,00,00,00,000

1,00,00,00,600

1,00,00,00,000

1,00,00,00,000

No. of Shares Rupees (¥) No. of Shares Rupeses (¥)
10,00,00000  1,00,00,00,000 10,60,00,000 1,00,00,00,000
10,00,00,000 1,00,00,00,000 10,00,00,000 1,00,00,00,000

% of Holding _ No. of Shares % of Holding No. of Shares

49.0 4,90,00,000 48.0 4,90,00,000
280 2,60,00,000 26.0 2,60,00,000
19.9 1,99,00,000 19.9 1,99,00,000

1.3 The company has only one class of equily shares. Each sharehoider is eligible for one vots per share heid. The shareholders have no
differential rights with respect to distribution of dividend and repayment of capital,

NOTE 2: RESERVES AND SURPLUS

20  CAPITAL RESERVES
(a) Project Development Fund
[Refer Accounting Policy no. (e)]

As per last Balance Sheet 3,18,82,00,000
Add: Grant received during the year 76,50,00,000
3,95,32,00,000
Additions:
- Interest earned on Deposits upto previous years 26,46,54,273
- interest eamed on Depaosits during the current year 1,09,47,975 27,56,02,248
(a) 4,22,88,02,248
{b) Project Implementation Fund
[Refer Accounting Policy na. ()}
As per last Batance Sheet 13.00,00,000
{b) 13,00,00,000
21 PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT
As per last Balance Sheet 6,51,08,193
Add/(Less): Profit for the year 2,6063,349
Add/(Less): Adjustment with respect to the WDV of
Assets costing less than ® 5000/- (Refer Note No. 29) {4,415}
Add/(Less): Adjustment with respect to Projact
Deveiopment Activities (Refer Note No. 33} 99.10,287

24,28,86,169

2,17,68.104

2,69,00,00,000

48,82,00,000

3,18,82,00,000

26,46,54,273

3,45,28,54,273

13,00,00,000

13,00,00,000

4,86,70,459
1,64,38,734

10,10,78,414

Total (a + b +c) 4,45,98,80,662
————— )

6,51,09,193
3,64,79,63,466
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DELHI MUMBAI INDUSTRIAL CORRIDOR DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED

CIN: U45400DL2008PLC 172316

NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2017,

NOTE 3 : OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

- Performance Security

Total

NOTE 4 : LONG TERM PROVISIONS

- Provision for Employee Benefits (Gratuity} (Refer Note no. 30)

Total

NOTE 5: TRADE PAYABLE

(i} Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
(Refer Note No. 31)

Totat

(it} Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises
and small enterprises

Total

NOTE 6 : OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

- Statutory labilities

- Bid Security

- Performance Security

- Provident Fund Payabie

- Due to National industrial Corridor Development and implementation Trust
(earlier known as DMIC Project Implementation Trust Fund)

- Liability against Gratuity and Leave Encashment

- Other Expenses Payable

Total

NOTE 7 : SHORT - TERM PROVISIONS

- Provision for Employee Benefits (Gratuity and Leave Encashment)
{Refer Note no. 30)

Total

As at 31-Mar-2017 Ag at 31-Mar-2018

Rupess () Rupees (%)
10,00,000 16,00,000
40,00,000 10,00,000
17,12,548 11,83,846
17,12,848 11,83,848
32,52,23,916 291019127
32,52,23,.918 26,10,19,127
2,57,23,912 2,85,40,058
46,50,000 15,00,000
10,004,000 -
3,63,998 227,720
25,48,090 -
13,22,852 -
5245271 45,90 545
4.08,54,123 3,48,58,321
1,22,861 17,607
1,22,861 17,607
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DELH! MUMBAI INDUSTRIAL CORRIDOR DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED
CIN: U45400DL2008PLC172316

NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS ON 315T MARCH, 2017

As at 31-Mar-2017  As at 31-Mar-2016
Rupees (%) Rupees {3}

NOTE 9 : NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS

Non-Trade Investments (Unquoted fully paid, at cost)
{a} investment made out of PDF of Gol
Investment in Equity Shares of Subsidiary Companias
i) DMICCC Guna Power Company Ltd
50,000 Fully Paid-up Equity shares of 10/~each

5,00,000 5.00,000

iiy DMICDC Indapur Pawer Company Lid 5,00,000 5,00,000

50,000 Fully Paid-up Equity shares of ¥10/-each
iy DMICDC Vaghet Power Company Lid 5,00,000 5,00,000
50,000 Fuily Paid-up Equity shares of ¥1{/-each
iv) DMICDC Ville Bhagad Power Company Ltd 5,00,000 5,00,000
50,000 Fully Paid-up Equity shares of ¥10/-each

20,00,060 20,00,000

Less: Provision for Permanent Ciminution in Value
(Refer Note no. 34)
i) DMICDC Guna Power Company Lid
ity DMICDC Indapur Power Company Ltd
iii} DMIGDC Vaghel Power Company Lid (2.74,629)
) DMICDC Ville Bhagad Power Company Lid (2,83,814) (11,27,185) -
872,815 20,00,600

(2.85,759)
(2.82,883)

Other Investmants in Equity Shares
i} Dhalera International Airport Company Limited
43,980,000 Fully Paid-up Equity shares of T10/-each

4,39,00,000 4,38,00,000

{b) Investment made out of PIF of Gol
Investment in Equity Shares of Subsidiary Company
i) DMICDC Neemrana Solar Power Company Limited
1,30,00,000 Fully Paid-up Equity Shares of T10/- each*

13,00,00.0C0 13,00,00,000

Aggregate Amount of Unquoted investments 17,47,72,815 17,59,00,000

* As per the approval of the Cabinet Committee on Econamic Affairs (CCEA), an amount of T 13,00,00,000/- (Rupees Thireen Crore Only)
was transferred 2o DMICDC Limited by National industrial Corridor Develepment and Implementation Trust Fund {earlier known as DMIC
Praject Implementation Trust Fund) out of Main Corpus/ Capital Funds of the Trust during the financial year 2013-14 for onward release o
SPY namely "DMICDC Neemrana Sclar Power Company Limited" lowards 100% equily investment of the Trus! through DMICDC Limited
for the implementation of 6.00 MW Mode! Solar Pawer Project. The upsides from such investment will flow back to the Trust through

DMICDC Limited.

NOTE 10 : DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (NET)

Dafarrad Tax Assets:

- Relating to Fixed Assets 11,895,147 11,79,974
- Relating to Employee’s Benefits and Allowances under Income

Tax Act, 1961 5,86,709 3,97,236

17.81,856 15,77,210

Deferred Tax Liabitities " -

Total 17,81,856 185,77,210

NOTE 11.: LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

{Unsecured, considered good) :
- Security Deposits bkﬁﬂ’% 98,11.618 16.20,353
Q‘/ N

A\ 98,11,618 16,20,353
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DELH! MUMBAI INDUSTR!AL CORRIDOR DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED

CIN: U45400DL2008PL.C172315

NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2017

NOTE 12 : OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
{a) Project bevalopment Expenditure (PDE)
- PDE against the Project Development Fund of Govt. of India
- As per |ast year*
- Incurred during the year

Add : Adjustment with respect to Project Development Activities
{Refer Note No. 33)

Add : Provision for Permanent Diminution in Value of Investment in
Gas Based Power SPVs (Refer Note no. 34)

Less: Amourtt apportioned tc SPV

Less: Adjustment against surrender of Land (Refer Note No, 35)

Total {a)

subsidiary companies.

{b) Others

- Bank Deposits under Lien against Bank Guarantees
{with more than 12 months maturity)

Total (b)

Total (a+h)

NOTE 13 : CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash and Bank Balances
(a) Cash and Cash Equivalents *

- Out of PDF of Govt. of India
Balance with Bank in Current Accounts
Balance with Bank in Deposit Accounts **

- Out of Others
Cash in Hand
Balance with Bank in Current Accounts
Balance with Bank in Deposit Accounts **

Cash and Cash Equivaient as per AS - 3 Total {a}

(b} Other Bank Balances
- Out of PDF of Govt. of india
- Out of Others

Balance with Bank in Depasit Accounts under lien for Bank Guarantee

Total (b)
Total Cash and Bank Balances {a+h)

As at 31-Mar-2017 As at 31-Mar-2016
Rupaes (¥} Rupoes (1)
3,52,23,57,636 2.73,34,35,098
70,16,87,406 78,95,35.681
4,22,40,45,042 3,52,29,70,789
99,10,287 -
11,27,185 -
{90,188) (6.13,153)
{35,49,70,388) -
3,88,00,21,938 3,52,23,87,636

includes T 35,49,70,388/- (Previous Year ¥ 35,48,70,388/) paid to the State Industrial Carporations for allotiment of land for power projects of

97,36,618 40,34,558
97,36,618 40,34 558
3,88,97,58,556 3,52,63,92,194
870,668,542 (16,864,741}
10.93,50,804 10,98,35,831
14,202 14,161
(65,36,166) {28,07,905)
1,02,02,18,085 98,62,49,072

1,21,01,15,467

1.09,16,26 418

40,34 558

40,34,558

1,21,41,50,025

1,09,16,26,418

* Cash and Cash Equivaients include deposits maintained by the Company with banks, which can be withdrawn by the Company at any point of

time without pror notice or penalty an the principal.

)

Includes deposits of NIL (Previous Year NIL) with maturity of more than 12 months.
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DELHI MUMBAI INDUSTRIAL CORRIDOR DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED
CIN: U454000L2008PLC172316

NOTES ON FINANCIAI. STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2017

As at 31-Mar-2017 As at 31-Mar-2016

Rupees (¥) Rupeas (¥}
NOTE 14 : SHORT TERM { OANS AND ADVANCES
Short Termt Loans and Advancas
(Unsecured, considered good)
(i} Out of POF of Govt. of India
- Other Loans & Advances 18,22,09,666 4,43,83,296
{ii) Others
- Advance Tax / TDS (Net of Pravisions) 56,97 424 1.12,41,597
- Balance with Revenue Authority 26,56,650 26,56,650
- Secarity Deposits 15,70,353 24,64,205
- Due from Nationat Industrial Comidor Development and Implementation Trust - 1,564,893
{eartier known as DMIC Project Implementation Trust Fund)
- Other Loans & Advances” 1,31,22,373 3,88,67,936
20,52,56,466 9,97,78,577
¥ Includes amount due from the following wholly owned subsidiary companies:
i} DMICDC Guna Power Company Limited 5,000 5,000
il) DMICDC indapur Power Company Limited 5,000 5,000
i) DMICDC Vaghe! Power Company Limited 5,000 5,000
iv} DMICDC Ville Bhagad Power Company Limited 5,000 5,000
v) DMICDC Neemrana Solar Power Company Limited 21,94,269 42,44,808
NOTE 15 : OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
{i} Out of PDF of Govt. of india
- Interest Accrued but Not Due 7,96,355 3747055
- Maharashtra industriai Deveiopment Corparation (MIDC) (Refer Note No. 35) 15,61.44,375 -
- Industrial Infrastructure Development Corporation (Gwalior) M.P. Ltd. 11,17,79,888
{Refer Note No. 35)
{if) Others
- interest Accrued but Not Due 6,11,26,224 7,25,36,481
32,98,46,842 7,62,83,536
NOTE 16 ;: REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Service Fees [Refer Accounting Policy No. (i) 3.32,62,000 -
Total 3,32,82,000 ) -
NOTE 17 : OTHER INCOME
Interest on FD's other thart PDF amount 7.80,79,582 9,31,55,672
Bid Processing Fees 6.02,621 15,00,00C
Interest on Income Tax Refund 6,22,059 7,60,420
Miscellaneous Income 1,980 50
Exchange Rate Difference - 274
Apportionment of Administration and Other General Overheads to
Subsidiary Companies 21,906,000 15,71,000
8,14,96,242 9,69.87.416
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DELHI MUMBAI INDUSTRIAL CORRIDOR DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED

CIN: U45400DL2008PLLC172316

NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2017

For the For the
Yoar ended Year onded
31-Mar-2017 31-Mar-2016
Rupees (¥) Rupees (¥)
NOTE 18 : EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES
Salary, Wages and Allowances (including Contractual Empioyees) 2,71,64,895 1,79,60,299
Contribution ta Pravident/ Pension Fund 24,32 684 11,855,579
Provision for Gratuity 541,461 6,33,756
Frovision for Leave Encashment 92 795 E
Staff Welfare Expenses 20,03,317 10,85,848
Stipend 1,96,233 1.17.815
Total 3,24,31,385 2,09,53,297
N 19 : DEPRECIATION
For the year (Refer Nate No, 8) 18,25,010 16.19,182
Total 18,25,010 16,19,182
NOTE 20 : OTHER EXPENSES
Rent 1,98,58,205 1.53,32,743
Paymaent to Auditors 2,75,000 3,32,500
Advertisement and Pubiic Notice Expenses 17,19,993 1,18,79,117
Business Promotion Expenses 8,73,325 81,20,654
Electricity Expenses 3,05,799 2,52 957
Evaluation Committee Sitting Fees 9,50,000 8,30,000
Fereign Trave! Expenses 26,64,392 12,91,297
Professional & Consultancy Expenses 46,37,306 23,14,419
Meeting and Refreshment Expenses 13,117,302 8,45,992
Office Repair & Maintenance Expenses 76,801 3,38,963
IT Expenses 4,77.875 1,768,717
Printing & Stationery 20,899,402 14,38,541
Communication & Postage Expenses 13,23,844 597,820
Travelling & Conveyance Expenses 47.40,330 34,14,890
Insurance Expenses 36,926 10,579
Birector's Sitting Fees 442600 2,406,700
Reversal of Service Tax input - 17,18,526
Prior Period Expenses 334616 79,510
{Other Expenses 9,88,289 6,27,196
Totatl 4,28,21,515 4,98,43,121
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DELH! MUMBAI INDUSTRIAL CORRIDOR DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED

CIN: U45400DL2008PLC172316

NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS ON 315T MARCH, 2017

NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

21 Department of Industrial Policy and Promotion (DIPP), Ministry of Commerce and Industry, Govemnment of India {Gol) vide Jetter no.11/1/2016-IC
dated 12th January, 2017, communicated the order conveying the approval of Gol that the Company to function as Knowledge Partner to
National Industrial Corridor Development and Implementation Trust (NICDIT) in respect of all industrial Corridors in addition to its present DOMIC

Project till Knowledge Partner(s) for other Industrial Comidors are put in place.

22 in the apinion of Board of Directors, all the Current Assets, Loans & Advances have a value on realization in the ordinary course of business at
least equal to the amount at which they are stated and all the known liabilities relating to the year have been provided for. Balances of trade
payables, receivables and other receivable/payable have been taken at the values stated in the Books of Account and are subject to confirmation

by the concerned parties.

23 Contingent Liabilities and Commitmants (to the extent not provided for):
{i) Contingent Liabilities
(i) Commitments

(a) Estimated Asnount of confracts remaining to be executed and not provided
for an:
- Capital Account
- Consullancy Contracts for Project Development Activities

{b) Guarantees issued by Bank on behalf of the Company

24 Earnings and Expenditure in Foreign Currency

Earnings in Foreign Exchange
Expendituse in Foreign Currency
- Foreign Travel Expenses

25 Paymont to Auditors

U

Audit Fees

(i)} For Other Services

26 Related Party Disclosuras

As per the Accounting Standard on 'Related Party Disclosure’ (AS-18) issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of india, the related parties are as follows :

a  Enterprises having significant influencel/control over the company
Japan Bank for International Ca-operation (JBIC}

b  Subsidiaries
DMICDC Guna Power Company Lid.
OMICDC Indapur Power Company Lid.
DMICDC Vaghet Power Company Lid.
DMICEC Vilie Bhagad Power Company Ltd.
DMICDC Neemrana Solar Power Company Ltd. [P

¢ Affiliates/ Associates

- L s ,¢
L S\
ﬁl-/ @
Housing and Urban Development Corporation Limited i/ Wl

d.\é e 8D
Horai

Year ended
IM-Mar-2017

Year ended
34-Mar-2016

1.04,48,40,418

1,19,36,26,673

1,37, 711176 40,34 ,558
11,71.,985 6,862,853
2,25,000 2,87.500
50,000 45,000
2,75,000 3,32,500
Yes Yes

Yes Yes

Yes Yes

Yes Yes

Yes Yes

Yes Yes

Yes Yes
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E DELHI MUMBAI INDUSTRIAL CORRIDOR DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED
) CIN: U45400DL2008PLC172316
- NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2017
o
- NOTES TO ACCOUNTS
d Koy Management Porsonnei
£ Shri Talleen Kumar ' No Yes
Shri Shatrughna Singh No Yes
o Shri Alkesh Kumar Sharma Yes Yes
£ It The natura and volume of transactions during the period with the above refated parties were as follows:
= Amount in Rupees {¥)
bl Enterprises having
Particulars Subsidiarias Affiistes | SOmReant K"”Pf;“:r?:;“"t
£ aver the Company
i Outstanding Balances:
DMICDC Neemrana Solar Power Company Limited 21,894,269 (Cn) Nil Nil Nil
£ (42,44,808) (Nil) (Nily (N
. OMICDC Guna Power Company Limited 5,000 {Dr) Nil il Nl
fst {5,000) {Nil} (Nily {Nii}
OMICDC indapur Power Company Limited 5,000 (D) Nil Nit Nif
i (5,000) (Nil} (Nt (N}
o DMICDC Vaghe! Power Company Limited 5,060 {Dn) Nil Nit Nii
(5,000) {Nil) (Nil) (Ni)
. OMICDC Ville Bhagad Power Company Limited 5,000 (Dr) Nil Nit Nit
& (5.000) (Nily i) il
W Aggregate Transactians during the pariod
DMICDC Neemrana Sotar Power Company Limited 30,92,755 Nil Nit Nit
(43,11,204) {Nil} (Nil) (N
DMICDC Guna Power Company Limited 5.000 Nil Mit Nil
(5,000 {Nif} {Nil) (Nl
@ DMICDC indapur Power Company Limided 5,000 Nil Nit Nil
(5.000) (i) (Nil) (Nif)
= DMICDC Vaghel Power Campany Limited 5,000 NA Nil Nil
oy (5,000) (Nil) {Nil} {Nii)
= DMICDC Ville Bhagad Power Company Limited 5,000 Nil Nil Nil
h (5,000) {Mif) {Nil} {NiB
Shri Alkesh Kumar Sharma Nl Nit Nit 57,41,600
o (Nit) (NI {Nil) (14,32,884)
: 3 ilf  Statement of entity wise material ransactions during the pariod

i a  Payment to Key Managemaent Personnel
Shii Alkesh Kumar Sharma Nit Nil Nit §7.41,600
{Nil} {Ni) {Nil} (14,32 884)
b DMICDC Neemrana Solar Powsr Company Ltd.

Expenses incurred Nit Nil Nil
¥ /’ (i (Nit) (Nif)
|t rbeioy
Ly
¥ T
fa
; o
# x
%,
o \\:?jzre i &rﬁn
P
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DELHI MUMEBA! INDUSTRIAL CORRIDOR DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED
CIN; U45400DL2008PLC172316

NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2017

NOTES TO ACCOUNTS
¢ DMICDC Guna Power Company Ltd.
Expenses incurred 5,000 Ni Nl Nit
(5,000} (Nif) {Nil} (Nil)
d DMICDC Indapur Power Company Ltd.
Expenses incurred 5,000 Nit il Nil
{5,000) {Ni} (Nil) (Nih
e DMICDC Vaghel Power Company Ltd.
Expenses incurred 5,000 Nil Nil Nil
(5.0003 (Nity (Mil} {Nif}
f DMICDC Ville Bhagad Power Company Ltd.
Expenses incurred 5,000 Nil Nil Nil
{5,000} {Nil) {Nil} {Nif)

27

28

29

30

Mote: Figures in bracket {) represents Previous year's amount.

Segment Reporting

The Comparny is engaged lo facilitate, promote and establish industrial comidors/investment regions/industrial areasfeconomic regions/industrial
nodes/specific econormic zones/townships with state of the art industrial, physical and social infrastructure. As the Company operates in a singie
business and geographical segment, the reporting requirements for primary and secondary segment disclosures prescribed by AS 17 are not

applicable.

Earnings Per Shara

Basic eamings per equity share have been computed by dividing net profit after fax by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding for the period.

Year endad Yaar ondad

Particalars Unit 31-Mar-2017 31-Mar-2016

a Net Profit/{Loss) for the period attributable to Equity Rupees {T) 2,60,63,349 1,64,38,734

Shareholders

b Weighted Average of Number of Equity Shares used as Number of 10,00,00,000 10,00,00,000
dernominator for calculating EPS Shares

¢ Basic/Diluted Earnings per share (alb) Rupees (3) 0.26 0.16

Rupees (%) 13.00 10.00

Face Value per Equity Share

Change in Accounting Policy

The net book value of the assets costing less than 2 5,000/~ has been fully written off. As a result of the same, the Written Down Vaiue of the
assets and the balance of Profit and Loss has been reduced by % 4,415/- during the current financial year.

Retirement benafits

Definad Contribution Plan

The company has recognized, in the Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended March 31, 2017 an amournt of 2 24,32,684/- (Previous Year 2
11,55,579/-) under defined contribution plan on the basis of actual contribution to the Provident Fund / Pension Fund.

PR

b3S Cc,
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DELHI MUMBAI INDUSTRIAL CORRIDOR DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED
CiN: U45400DL2008PLC172316

NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2017

NOTES TQ ACCOUNTS

Defined Bapefit ngns

a. Gratuity (unfunded): Payment at the time of leaving the organisation upon completion of 5 years of service, equal to 15 days salary for each
completed vear of service. Considering the actuarial valuation, an amount of T 5,41,461/- (Previous Year - Provision of T 6,33,756) is

provided for in the Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended March 31, 2017.

. Leave Encashment {unfunded): Company introduced the policy of leave encashment with effect from April 01, 2016, As per the policy, the
employees are enlitied to encash the unavailed ieave subject to specified limit during the year without carrying forward to the subseguent
years. Value of leave encashment is calculated considering proportionate amount of Basic Salary for the number of unavailed leave.

Gra nfuer

Reconcliiation statement of expense in tho statement of profit and loss.

Present value of obligation as at the end of period (31/03/2017)
Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the period (31/03/2016)

Benefits paid

Actual retum on plan assels

Acquisition adjustment

Expenses recognized in the statement of profit & losses

Expaensas recognized in the statament of profit & lossas

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the period
Acquisition adjustment

Expected return on plan assets

Employer contributions

Benefits paid

Actuarial gain/(loss) on plan assets .

Fair value of plan assels al the end of the period

Fair value of plan assots

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the period
Acquisition adjustment

Actual return on plan assets

Employer contributions

Benefits paid

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the period
Funded status

Excess of actuai over estimated return on plan assets

Expense racognized in the statemont of profit and loss

Current service cost

Past service cost

Interest cost

Expected return on plan assets

Curtailment cast / (Credit)

Setllement cost / {credit)

Net actuarial (gain)/ loss recognized in the period
Expenses recognized in the statament of profit & losses

31st March, 2017

31st March, 2016

17.42,914
12,01,453

541,461

435,092

96,116

m— ]
ASg
/‘l‘-/“ S0 10,253
541,461

12,01,453
567,697

6,33,756

315199

45416

273141
6,33.756
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DELH! MUMBAI INDUSTRIAL CORRIDOR DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED
CIN: U45400DL2008PLC172316

NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2017

NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

n

a2

33

34

a5

Assumptions:
’ 8% per annum 8% per annum

Discounting Rate
Future salary Increase 6% per annum 6% per annum

Expected Rate of return on pian assels

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial vatuation, take inte account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant
factors inciuding supply and demand in the employment market.

The above information is cerlified by the Actuarial Valuer.
The discount rate is based on prevailing market yield as at the date of valuation.

Datails of dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006

In absence of confirmation from Trade Payables on their registration and eligibility under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,
2006, the amount due to such enterprises at the year-end has been shown as NiL.

Operating Lease

The Company has three (03) office space at Hotel Ashok, Chankyapuri, New Dethi on ticense for an initial term of 3 years. The Licensee
(Leasee) shall not be terminate the License befare the expiry of the ficense period except by giving six months advance notice in writing. The
license deeds on the expiry of the initial lease period are renewable for a further period of 2 years with mutual agreement. Total license fees

recognized in the statement of prafit and loss for the year is ¢ 1,98,58,205/- (Previous Year ¥ 1,53,32,743/-).

The advertisement and publication experses incurred by the Company in respect of Project Development Activities reduced by the Bid
Processing Fee received for the same during the previous financial years have been Iransferred to Preject Development Expenditure in

accordance with the cbservation of the Compiroller and Auditor General of India (C&AG).

The Company has passed a resolution by circulation dated 21st April, 2017 to initiate the process to strike off the name of its wholly owned Gas
Based Power SPVs i.e., DMICDC Guna Power Company Limited, DMICDC Indapur Power Company Limited, DMICDC Vaghel Power Company
Limited and DMICDC Ville Bhagad Power Company Limited from the Register of Companies maintained by the Registrar of Companies as per
the provisions of Section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Remaval of names of Companies from the Register of

Companies) Rules, 2016.

Accordingly, the equity shares heid in these SPVs are vaiued on the basis of their assets and results as per Financial Statements of the
respective SPVs for the financial year 20168-17 and the difference has been recognised as Project Development Expenses.

The Board of Delhi Mumbai Industrial Corridor Development Corporation Limited (DMICDC) in its 42nd meeting held on 16th Navember, 2016
decided to return the Jand sllotted by the State Industriai Development Corporation for Gas Based Power Projects at Guna in Madhya Pradesh,
Indapur and Ville Bhagad in Maharashtra. DMICDC vide its lelters dated 03.12.2016 has retumned the land to the respective State Agencies.

Maharashira Industrial Development Corporation (MIDC) vide letter dated 10.02.2017 conveyed the approval for the refund of the amount of
advance paid by OMICDC Limited and refunded 95% of the total amount paid for Ville Bhagad Power SPV in Maharashtra.

For other sites ie, Guna and Indapur, the approvals of the respective Competent Autherities are being sought by the State industrial
Development Corporations for the refund of the amount paid by DMICDC against the land parcels.

Necessary adjustments have been made in the Beoks of the Company .
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DELHI MUMBAL INDUSTRIAL CORRIDOR DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED
CiIN: U45400DL2008PLC172316

NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2017

NO TO ACCOUNT

36 The company has been made one of the respondents in two (02) writ petitions received during the current year related to iand acquisition in the
State of Rajasthan. As the company has no role in the acquisition of land and the same is entirely in the purview of the State Government, the
company has filed a counter affidavit before the Hon'ble High Court of Rajasthan, Jaipur Bench for deleting the name of the company as one of
the respondents.

Further the above event has no financial effect on the Company.

37 Details of Specified Bank Notes (SBN) held and transacted by the Company during the period from 8th November, 2016 to 30th December.
2016:

SBNs (%) Othar Denomination Notas (¥) Total (¥)
Closing Cash in hand as on 08.11.2016 6,000 22,773 28,773
Add: Withdrawal from Bank Accounts - 84,000 84,000
Add: Receipts from Permitted Transactions - 1,279 1,279
Less: Pakd for Permitted Payments - 77,943 77,943
Less: Amount deposited in Bank Accounts 6,000 - 6,000
Closing Cash in hand as on 30.12.2016 - 30,109 30,108

38 Figures for the Previous Year have been reclassified and regrouped wherever necessary to correspond with the Current Year's presentation.

As per our Report of even date aftached

For SSAR & Asso
Arg For and on behaif of Board

Sandeap {3 ;
(Partner) W @mp o1t i
(Membership Nor J38A%;~ (DIN : 01724258) :
Place: New Dethi .K. Agarwal Abhishak Chaudhary
Bate : 22nd June, 2017 (Chief Financial Officer) (VP - Corparate Affairs, HR
& Company Secretary)
233



234



AUDITOR’S
REPORT ON
CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS OR
THE FINANCIAL

YEAR ENDED ON

31ST MARCH, 2017




236



i

o I

™A

- ,2,) - .-al.

e

£

L)

SSAR & ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of

DELHI MUMBAL INDUSTRIAL CORRIDOR DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of DELHI MUMBA! INDUSTRIAL
CORRIDOR DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED {hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”) and
its Subsidiaries {the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “ the Group”), comprising of
the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and the
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for preparation of these Consolidated financial
statements in terms of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 (“ hereinafter referred to as the Act”)
that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance and
consolidated cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. The respective Board of Directors of the Companies included in the Group
are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are

reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,

that were operating effectively for ensuri ng the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant

to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation
of the Consolidated Financial Statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. While
conducting the audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing
standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the
Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to

obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from matert
misstatements.

E9A, 1T Floor, Ansari Road, Darya Ganj, New Delhi-t 10 062, Ph.: +91 011 6596 0912-13, 6528 8584, Fax: 4171 6915,
ssarca.india@gmail.com



SSAR & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidences about the amounts and the disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatements of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. in making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial controls relevant to
the Holding Company’s preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made
by the Holding Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial

statements.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditor in
terms of his report referred to in Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
consolidated financia! statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give
a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in india, of the consolidated
state of affairs of the Group as at 31st March, 2017, and their consolidated profit and their consolidated cash

flows for the year ended on that date.

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements of DMICDC Neemrana Solar Power Company Ltd., DMICDC Guna
Power Company Ltd. , DMICDC Indapur Power Company Ltd., DMICDC Vaghel Power Company Ltd. and
DMICDC Ville Bhagad Power Company Ltd., the subsidiaries, whose financial statements reflect total assets of
Rs 4712.77 lakhs, Rs 2.65 lakhs, Rs 2.70 lakhs, Rs 2.79 lakhs and Rs 2.70 lakhs respectively as at 31% march
2017, total revenues of Rs 1709.71 lakhs, Rs 0.19 lakhs, Rs 0.2% lakhs, Rs 0.21 lakhs and Rs 0.21 lakhs
respectively and net cash flows amounting to Rs 36.11 lakhs, Rs {0.53) lakhs, Rs {0.54} lakhs, Rs {0.53) lakhs and
Rs {0.54) lakhs respectively for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial
statements. These financial statements have been audited by other auditor whose report has been furnished
to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to
the amounts and disclosures included in respect of the subsidiaries, and our report in terms of sub-section {3)
and (11) of section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, is based solely on the

repart of the other auditor.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Reguiatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matter with respect to our reliance on the work

and the report of the other auditor.

194, Il Floor, Ansari Road, Darya Gaaj, New Dethi-110 002. Ph.: +91 011 6596 0912-13, 6528 8584. Fax: 4171 6913,
ssarcaindia@gmail.com

238




a

L0

o SSAR & ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

&

1. Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

£ a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements;

b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of

£ those books and the report of ather auditor;

¢} The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and the

¢ Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
o account maintained for the purpase of preparation of the consolidated financial statements;

d} In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting
e Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
o Rule, 2014; :
e) On the basis of the written representations received from the Directors of the Holding Company
o as on March 31, 2017 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the
. report of the statutory auditor of its subsidiaries , none of the directors of the Group Cormpanies

is disqualified as on March 31, 2017 from being appointed as a director in terms of sub section (2)

of section 164 of the Companies Act 2013;

" f}  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the group
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure A”;

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our

information and according to the explanations given to us: .
i) The Group does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

ii) The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;

iit} There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and

= Protection Fund by the Group.

iv) The Group has provided requisite disclosures in the financial statements as to holdings as
well as dealings in Specified Bank Notes during the period from 8™ November, 2016 to 30t
;;,i December, 2016. Based on audit procedures, and relying on the management representation
and other auditor's report, we report that the disclosures are in accordance with books of
account maintained by the Group and as produced to us by the Management { Refer to Note

o no. 38 to the audited consolidated financial statements)
il 2. Asrequired by Section 143(5) of the Act, we report to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, that:

a) The Group has clear title of the Leasehold land,
& b} In our opinion, there are no cases of waiver/ write off of debts/ loans/ interest in any of-the
companies in the Group. Qe e
@-?
vf 19A, 1} Floer, Ansari Road, Darya Ganj, New Delhi-110 002. Ph.: +91 011 6596 6912-13, 6528 8584, Fax: 4171 6915,

ssarca.india@gmail.com
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

¢) The Group has maintained proper record of assets/ equipments received as grant from New
Energy & Industrial Technology Development Organisation of Government of japan. The Group

does not maintain any inventory.

ar SSAR & ASSOCIATES

Membership No: 089852
Address: 19A, Ansari Road
Darya Ganj, New Dethi — 11000

Place : New Delhi
Date: jupe 22, 2017

19A, Il Floor, Ansari Road, Darya Ganj, New Dedhi-£ 10 602. Ph.: +91 011 6596 0912-13, 6528 8584, Fax: 4171 6315,
ssarca.indiai@gmail.com
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SSAR & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

“Annexure- A"

To the independent Auditors’ Report of Even Date on the Consolidated Financial Statements of Delhi
Mumbai Industrial Corridor Development Corporation Limited — FY 2016-17

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 {“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the year
ended 31" March 2017, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Delhi
Mumbai Industrial Corridor Development Corporation Limited (“the Holding Company”) and its subsidiary
companies which are incorporated in india, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internat Financial Controls

The Respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary Companies, which are
incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the “Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting” issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controis over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the “Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting” (the “Guidance Note”} and the Standards on Auditing, issued by
the “ICAI” and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internai financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal Financial controls
and both issued by the institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such cantrols operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financia!
statements, whether due to fraud or error. .

19A, It Floor, Ansari Road, Darys Ganj, New Delhi-110 002, Ph.: +91 0L 6596 0912-13, 6528 3384, Fax: 4171 6915,
ssarez.india@gmail.com
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditor in
terms of his report referred to in the Others Matters Paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that

(i) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(i) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,‘ and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company; and

(iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the

financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with

the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

in our opinion, the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in india, have, in all material
respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2017, based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by

the ICAL

194, H Floor, Ansari Road, Darya Ganj, New Delhi-t10 002, Ph.: +91 011 6596 0912-13, 6528 8584. Fax: 4171 6915.
ssarca.india@gmail.com
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SSAR & ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Cther Matters

Our aforesaid report under section 143(3} {i) of the Act on the adeguacy and operating effectiveness of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting in so far as it relates to the subsidiary companies
incorporated in India, are based on the corresponding reports of the auditor of such companies incorporated

in India.

For SSAR & ASSOCIATES

Partner

Membership No: 089852
Address: 19A, Ansari Road
Darya Ganj, New Delhi - 110002

Place : New Deihi
Date: june 22,2017

194, H Floor, Ansari Road, Darya Ganj, New Delhi-110 002 Ph.: +91 011 6596 091213, 6528 8584. Fax: 4171 6915,

ssarca.india@gmail.com
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DELHI MUMBAI INDUSTRIAL CORRIDOR DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED
CIN: U45400DL2008PLC 172316

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2017

As at 31st March, 2017 As at 31st March, 2016
Particulars Note No. Rupess (%) Rupees (%) Rupees (%) Rupees (%)
L EQUITY & LIABILITIES
{1) SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS
(a) Share Capital 1 1,00,00,00,000 1.00,00,00,000
{b) Reserves & Surplus 2 4.54,79,00,841 5,54,79,00,841 3.64.82.01,251 4,64,82,01,251
- {2) NON - CURRENT LIABILITIES ‘
(a) Long -Term Borrowings 3 6,64,89,756 11,35,00,000
(b} Other Long -Taerm Liabilities 4 7,74,88,300 8,29,51,750
(¢} Long - Term Provisions 5 17,34,675 14,57,12,711 12,26,754 19,78,78,504
(3} CURRENT LIABILITIES
{a) Trade Payables 6
(i} Total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises - -
(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditars
other than micro enterprises ang
small enterprises 32,58,21.656 29,14,63,682
{b) Other Current Liabilities 7 6,B87,48,564 8,63,32.264
{c) Short - Term Provisions 8 1,90,55,889 41,36,26,109 17.607 37.78,13,553
TOTAL 5,10,72,39,681 5,22,36,93,308
iL ASSETS
(1) NON - CURRENT ASSETS
(a} Fixed Assets 9
() Property, Plant ang Equipment 28.2477.687 32,54,84,546
(i} intangible Assets 3,31,874 2,07.867
(iti} Capital Work-in-Prograss 2,91,96 156 2,19,21,9568
31,20,05,717 34,76,14,381
{b) Non - Currant Investments 16 4,38,00,000 4,39,00,000
(c) Deferred Tax Assets-(Net) 11 24.20,772 12,88.571
{d) Long - Term Loans and Advances 12 1,12,68,538 55,41,478
() Other Non - Current Assets 13 3,88.86,81,371 4,25,82,76,398 3,52,84,52.184 3,92,48,07 624
{2) CURRENT ASSETS
{a) Trade Receivables 14 10,06,96,702 59,35,568
{bj Cash and Bank Balances 15 1,22,02,02,926 1.11.92,72,765
(c) Short - Term Loans and Advances 16 19,79,28,078 9,54,64,021
{d} Other Current Assets 17 33,01,35,577 1.84,89,63,283 7.82,13,330 1,29,88,85,684
6,10,72,39,681 5,22,36,93,308
Significant Accounting Policies
Accompanying Notes on Financial 1-41

Statements

As per our Report of even date attached

For $SAR & Associatos
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board

Firm Registrati
L pov
Sandeep Garg\ x kesh Kumar Sharma

PK. Agarwal Abhishek Chaudhdry ™"

{Chief Financial Officer) (VP - Corporate Affairs, HR
& Company Secretary)

%

Place: New Delhi
Date : 22nd June, 2017
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DELHI MUMBA! INDUSTRIAL CORRIDOR DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED

CIN: U45400D1.2008PLC172316

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2017

For the For the
Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-2017 31-Mar-2016
Note No. Rupees (¥) Rupees (T)
1. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS 18 18,99,81,489 3,24,20,199
il. OTHER INCOME 19 9,36,40,252 87825117
Ill. FOTAL REVENUE (I+1}) 28,36,21,741 13,02,45,316
V. EXPENSES
- Employee Benefits Expenses 20 3,47,56,835 2,19,35,249
- Finance Costs 4] 79,77,038 53,11,137
- Depraciation Expenses 22 3,00,42,132 2,54,42,594
- Other Expenses 3 4,99, 44 465 5,72,04,089
V. TOTAL EXPENSES 12,27,20,470 10,98,93,069
VI. PROFITHLOSS) BEFORE TAX (II-V} 16,09,01,271 2,03,52,247
VIl. TAX EXPENSES
- Current Year 4,81,57 127 84 50,835
- Previous Year 19,602 -
- Deferred Tax {11,21,201) 1,71,692
- Excess Provision written back - (34)
VIt PROFIT {1.058) AFTER TAX FOR THE YEAR (VI-Vil) 11,38,45,743 1,17,29,754
IX. EARNINGS PER EQUITY SHARE OF FACE VALUE OF ¥ 10/- EACH
- Basic/Diluted 1.14 0.12
Significant Accounting Policles
1-41

Accompanying Notes on Financial Statements

As per our Report of even date attached
For and on behailf of the Board

For SSAR & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Sandeep Garg
{Partner)

Place: New Deihi
Date : 22nd June, 2017

Af%m r Shafma

(CEO & Managing Diregtor)
(DIN - 01724258)

P P@Vﬁ ~4-
P.K. Agarwal
(Chief Financial Officer)

sh Batra
{Director)
(DIN - 00654332)

w
Abhishek Chaudhary

{VP - Corporate Affairs, HR
& Caompany Secretary}
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?"‘ DELHI MUMBAI INDUSTRIAL CORRIDOR DEVELOQPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED
CIN: U45400DL2008PLC 172316
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2017
&
' As at J1st March, 2017 As at 31st March, 2016
R Rupeoes (¥) Rupees (¥)
A. CASH FLOW FROM QPERATING ACTIVITIES:
= Net Profit before Tax 16,09,01,271 20352247
~ Adjustrment for:
Depreciation 3,00,42,132 2.54,42,594
o Firance Cost 79.77.,038 53,111,137
L interest incomes (8,04,33,014) {9,63.24,793)
Net Cash from QOperating Activities before
Extraordinary Item and Working Capital Changes 11.84,87,427 (4,52,18,815)
Extraordinary items .
Operating Profit before working capital changes {a) 11,84,87 427 (4.52,18,815)
Adjustments for :
{Increase)/Decrease in Trade & Other Receivables (46,84,10,748) (7.58,03,304)
“' Increase/(Decrease)} in Trade Payables and Other Payables 241,85 963 11,75,86,501
) Refund/({Payment) of Taxes (inciuding TDS) (1,57,07.451) (7.80,986)
i Net Cash from/{used in} Operating Activities {b} {45,99,32,236) 4,09,72,121
- Net cash from operating activities {a)+{b) (34,14,44,809) {42,46,694)
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
5 {tnvested) in Project Development Expenses (34,66.26,830) (78,88,22,538)
Payment of Land Instaiment (54,63 450) (54,63,450)
(Purchase)/ Sale of Fixed Assels 55,62,117 {12,80,14,712)
{tncrease) /Decrease in Advance for Capitai Goods (1,08,88,092)
(Increase)/ Decrease in Deposit with Bank 1,52,63,382 (2,61,29,301)
Interest Income .5.04.33.014 e 383,24,793
Net Cash fromi(Used in} Investing Activities (26,18,19,859) {85,22,05,208)
o C. CASH FL.OW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
W Finance Cost (37.87,460) (53,11,137)
Loan from NICDIT {4,70,10,244) 11,35,00,000
Project Development Fund 77.59,47.975 51,99,68,104
Net Cash from/{Usad in) Financing Activities 72,51,50,271 62,81,56,967
0. NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 12,18,85,603 {(22,82,94,935)
E. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 1,09,42,72,765 1,32,25,67,700
F. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT AT THE END OF THE YEAR (Refer Note 15} 1,21,61,58,368 1,09,42,72,765

As per our Report of even date attached
For and on bohalf of the Board

A

P s I
£ Place: New Delhi K. Agarwal

Date : 22nd June, 2017 {Chief Financial Cfficer) (VP - Corporate Affairs, HR
w’) & Company Secretary)
o
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DELHI MUMBAI INDUSTRIAL CORRIDOR DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED
CiN: U45400DL2008PLC 172316

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ON CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS
S el A SR TEN0 PRI UN CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS

a)

b)

e}

d)

Principles of Consclidation

The Consolidated Firancial Statements (CFS) relate to Deihi Mumnbai Ingdustrial Corridor Development Corporation Limited and its subsidiaries. The
consolidated financial statements have baen prepared on the following basis:

pany and its subsidiary companies are combined on a line-by-line basis by adding together the book values of

The financial statements of the Com
-grodp transactions in accordance with

like iterns of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, after fully eliminating intra-group balances and intra
Accounting Standard (AS) 21 - "Consolidated Financial Statements”.

As far as possible the consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in
similar circumstances and are presented in the same manner as the Company's separate financial statements.

Basis for Preparation of Financial Statements

These financial statements have been prepared to comply with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principlas in india ({Indian GAAP), including the

Accounting Standards notified under the relevant provisions of Companies Act, 2013.
The financial statements are prepared on accrual basis under the historical cost convention. The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of
the financial statements are consistent with those followed in the previous years.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial staterments requires the management of the Company to make certain estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amount of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of the financiai statements and the reported amount of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Difference between the actual results and estimates are recagnised in the period in which the

resuits are known / materialised.

Property, Plant and Equipment

i) Property, plant and equipments are stated as per Cost Model i.e., at cost iess accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any;

ity Costs directly attributable to acquisition are capitalized until the property, plant and equipment are ready for use, as intended by the

managemaent;

iii} Subsequent expenditures relating to property, plant and equipment are capitalized only when it is probabie that future economic benefits
associated with these will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Repairs & maintenance costs are

recognized in the Statement of profit & Loss when incurred;

the financial statements upon sale or retirement of the asset and the

iv} The cost and related accumulated depraciated are eliminated from
Loss. Assets to be disposed of are reported at the lower of the carrying

resultant gains or losses are recognized in the Statement of Profit or
value or the fair value less cost to sell;

v} The expenditure relating to Landscaping & Horticutture Works is capitaiised under the head Landscaping & Horticulture Warks;

vi) Land acquired on lease for 99 years or less s treated as leasehoid land.
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DELHI MUMBAI INDUSTRIAL CORRIDOR DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED
CIN: U45400DL2008PLC172316

e

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ON CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS

vii) The Company depreciates property, plant and equipment pro-rata to the extent of depreciable amount on Written Down Valua (WDV) Method.
Depraciation is provided based on usefu! life of the assets as prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companias Act, 2013 except in raspect of the

é’ fallowing assets, where useful life is different than those prescribed in Schedule | :
i Particulars Depreciation Justification
- Office Renovation Expenses Amortized equally over the lease period of the office from The assets are non-movable in nature and
f the date of capitalisation. are, therefore written off over the period of
lease.
& - Solar PV At the rates as well as methodology notified by the Central In accordance with the Part-B of Schedule H
] Electricity Regulatory Commission {Terms and Conditions  to the Companies Act, 2013,
?{\ for Tariff determination from Renewable Energy Sources)
Regulations, 2012 dated 5th February, 2012 on Straight
%«\ Line Method (SLM) and at the rates as per the Power

Purchase Agreements (PPA) for capacities covered under
PPAs, wherever higher than those notified by CERC.

- Land (leasehald) Amartised on Straight Line Method (SLM) for the remaining The land is written off over the pericd of
period of iease from the date of possession on pro-rata  lease.
basis.
7y viii} Depraciation metheds, useful lives, and residual values are reviewad periodically, includirg at each financial year end.

ix} Advancas paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date is classified as capital
advances under other non current assets and the cost of assets not put to use before such date are disclosed under “Capital Work in
progress”.

e) Intangible Assets

i} Intangible assets are stated at cost of acquisition net of accumulated amortisation / depletion and impairment loss, if any.
ii) Intangible assets are amortised over a period of 5 years from the year of purchase on Siraight Line Method.

f) Project Development Fund (PDF)

Government of India has approved selting up a Project Development Fund (PDF) for various project development / preparatory activities for Dalhi-
Mumbai Industrial Corridor (DMIC) project and Other Industrial Corridor projects i.e., Amritsar Kolkata Industrial Corridor (AKIC) Project, Eengaluru

= Mumbai Industrial Corridor (BMIC) Project, Chennai Bengaluru Industridi Corridor (CBIC) Project and Vizag Chennai industrial Corridor (VCIC)
- Praject. Accardingly, the grant received from Govt. of India for the said purpase has been shown under the head "Capitai Reserves” in the Balance
# Sheet in accordance with the Accounting Standard {AS 12). Interest eamed on the said PDF is added to the Project Development Fund. In case any s
part of funds becomes refundable at any future date i will be reduced from the Capital Reserves.
J, 9) Project Implementation Fund (PIF)

. Government of india has approved setting up a Project implementation Fund (PiF), referred as "DMIC - PIF for various project implementation

a activities for Delhi-Mumbai Industrial Corridor {DMIC) project. Accordingly, the grant received from Govt. of India for the said purpose has been

' shawn under the head "Capital Reserves” in the Balance Sheet in accordance with the Accounting Standard (AS 12). Interest, dividend or any other

o income that will be eamed on the said PIF is added to the Project Implementation Fund. In case any part of the fund becomes refundabfe at any

future date it will be reduced from the Capital Reserves.
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DELHi MUMBAI INDUSTRIAL CORRIDOR DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED
CIN: U45400DL2008PLC 172316

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ON CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS

h)

i

K)

m)

Project Development Expenses (PDE}

All the direct expenses related to the project devefopment activities, have been accounted under the head 'Project Development Expenses’ and
reflected in the Balance Sheet under the head Nan - Current Assets

Long-Term investmanis

Long-term investments are shown at actual cost including the cest incidental to acquisition. In case there is a decline, other than temporary, in the
value of long term investment, the carrying amount is reduced to recognise the decline. Indicators of the value of an investment are obtained by
reference to its market vaiue, the investees' assets and results and the expected cash flows from the investments.

Revenue Recognition

i) interast income is recognised on accrual basis.

iy Dividend income is accounted for when the right to receive it is established.

iii) Revenue from the sale of power is recognised on the basis of net number of units exported on manthiy basis at the rates agreed upgn with the
customers.

iv) Service Fees for the services rendered by the Company is recognised @ 1% (subject to the maximum jimit of Rs. 20 crore in a yeat) of the
funds released by National industrial Corridor Development and implementation Trust (NICDIT) to various projects out of Project

Implementation Funds (PIF) with effect from 26th July, 2016 is recognised on accrual basis.

Leases

Leases are classified as operating lease where the lessor effectively retains substantialiy all the risks and benefits of ownership during the lease
term. Operating lease payments as per the terms of the lease agreement are recagnised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss account

on accruat basis.

Transactions in Foreign Exchange
Expenses in foreign currency / transactions are accounted at the prevailing market rate of exchange on the date of transaction and inceme in foreign
currencies are accounted at the value recovered from these currencies.

Employee Benefits

i} The Company makes provision for Gratuity in terms of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 and Payment of Gratuity (Central) Rules, 1972 based
on actuarial vaiuation at the end of the year.

ily Leave salary & pension contribution to CEQ & Managing Director of the company is accounted as per the prescribed rules of Central
Government on monthly basis.
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DELHI MUMBAI INDUSTRIAL CORRIDOR DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED
CIN: U45400D1.2008PLC172316

[+

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ON CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS
EERSRE L R LU PULILIES ON CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS

n)

—

Income Tax

Tax expense comprises of current tax and deferred tax. Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities, using the
applicable tax rates.

Deferred income tax reflect the current period liming differences between taxable income and accounting income for the period and reversal of
timing differences of eartier years / period. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that there is a reasonable certainty that sufficient
future income will be available exceplt that deferred tax assets, in case there are unabsorbed depreciation or losses, are recognised if there is virtual
certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available to realise the same.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rates and tax law that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance
Sheat date.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

A provision is recognised in the accounts wher the company has a present obligation as a result of past event(s) and it is probable that an outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made Provisions are nat discounted to their

present values and are determined based on the best estimate required to settle the obligations at the raporting date, These estimates are reviewed
at each reporting date and adjusted to reflact the current best estimates.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Financial Statements and are disclosed in the Notes.

Contingent assets are neither recognised rior disclosed in the Financial Statements.
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DELHI MUMBAI INDUSTRIAL CORRIDOR DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED

CIN: U45400DL2008PLC172316

NOTES ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2017

NOTE 1: SHARE CAPITAL
1.0 AUTHORISED

11

1.2

13

10,00,00,000 Equity Shares of 210/ each with voting power

iSSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP
10,00.00,000 Equity Shares of Z 10/- each with voting power

The recongiliation of the numboer of shares outstanding
is set out below:

Equity Shares at the beginning of the year
Add: Shares issued during the year
Equity Shares at the end of the year

Details of Shareholder's Holding more than 5% Shares:

President of India
(Through Secretary, Depariment of Industrial Policy and
Promotion and its nominees)

Japan Bank for International Co-cperation (JBIC)
Housing and Urban Development Corporation Limited

As at 31-Mar-2017
Rupees (%)

As at 31-Mar-2016
Rupees (%)

1,00,00,00,000

1,00,00,00,000

1,00,00,00,000

1.00,00,00,000

_1,00,00,00,000_

1,00,00,00,000

~1,00,00,00,000_

No. of Shares Rupees (¥) No. of Shares Rupees (¥)
10,00,00.000 1,00,00,00,000 10,06,00,000 1,00,00,00,000
16,00,00,000 1,00,00,00,000 10,00,00,000 1,00,00,00,600

% of Holding __ No. of Shares % of Holding __No. of Shares
49.0 4,90,00,000 49.0 4,90,00,000
26.0 2,60,00,000 26.0 2,60,00,000
19.9 1,99,00,000 19.9 1,99,00,000

The company has only one class of equity shares. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. The shareholders have no

differential rights with raspect to distribution of dividend and repayment of capital.

NOTE 2:RESERVES AND SURPLUS

20

21

CAPITAL RESERVES

{a) Project Development Fund
[Refar Accounting Policy No. (f)}
As per last Balance Sheet
Add: Grant received during the year

Additions
- Interest earned on Deposits upto previous years
- Interest earned on Deposits during the current year

{a)

(b) Project implementation Fund
[Refer Accounting Policy No. {g}]
As per last Bafance Sheet

(b)
PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT
As per last Balance Sheet
Add/{Less}: Profit (Loss) for the year
Add/(Less): Adjustment with respect to the WDV of
Assets costing less than T 5000/- (Refer Note No 30)
Addi(Less): Adiustment with respect to Project
Development Activities (Refer Note No 34)
(c}

Total{a + b + ¢}

26,46,54,273

1,09,47 975

3,18,82,00,000
76,50,00,000
3.85,32,00,000

27,56,02,248

4,22,88,02,248

13,00,00,000

13,00,00,000

§,53,46,978
11,38,45,743

(4.415)

99 10,287

18,90,98,593
4.54,79,00,841

24,28,86,168

217,686,104

2,89,00,00,000
49,82,00,000
3,18,82,00,000

26,46,54,273

3,45,28,54,273

13,00,00,000

13,00,00,000

536,17,224
1,17.29,754

6,53,46,878
3,64,82,01,251
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DELHI MUMBAI INDUSTRIAL CORRIDOR DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED
CiN: U45400DL2008PLC172315

NOTES ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2017

As at 31-Mar.2017 As at 31-Mar-2046
Rupees (x) Rupees {t)
NOTE 3:LONG - TERM B8ORROWINGS
Torm Loan
- From National industrial Cerridor Development and implementation Trust* 6,54,89.756 11,35,00,000
(formerly DMIC Project tmplementation Trust Fund)
6,64,89,756 11,35,00,000

* The ioan agreement was executed with Nationa! industrial Corridor Develapment and implementation Trust (NICDIT) with effect from 08th
April, 2015 for an amount of 2 22.34 crore. The rate of interest shall be 100 basis points above the average G.Sec rate for the fast one year.
The loan Is for a period of 10 years with 1 year moratarium period from ihe date of release of finat instalment of loan. The amount of
repayment shalf be on the basis of the availability of the surplus funds with the Company subject {o the condition that the minimum ameount

of repayment instalment should not be in any case less than ¥ (.50 crore and the entire loan amount shall be repaid before the expiry of the
10th year from the end date of the moratorium period.

NOTE 4 : OTHER LONG - TERM LJABIL| TES

Others
- Amount Payable towards Land™ 7.64,88,300 8,19.51,750
- Performance Sesurity 10.00,000 10,00,000

7,74,88,300 8,295,750

** Rajasthan State industrial Development & investment Corporation Limited (RICQ) on 21st November, 2012 allotted 145692 sq.m. of land
far the project site at the concessional rate of # 1,000/ per sq.m. Out of the total Development Charges (DC}, 25% was paid at the time of
alloiment and the balance amaount is payabie in 20 equai annual interest free instalments with effect from 20th January, 2013

NOTE 5 : LONG TERM PROVISIONS

- Provision for Empioyee Benefils {Gratuity) (Refer Note No. 31) 17,34,675 12,26,754

Total 17,34,675 12,286,754

NOTE 6 : TRADE PAYABLE

(/) Tatal outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
(Refer Note No. 32)

Total - .

{ity Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises
and small enterprises 32,58,21,656 29.14,63,682
Total 32,58,21,656 25,14,63,682
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DELHI MUMBAI INDUSTRIAL CORRIDOR DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED
CiIN: U45400DL2008PLC172316

NOTES ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2017

As at 31-Mar-2017 As at 31-Mar-2016

Rupees (¢} Rupaes (T}

NOTE 7 ; OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIE

- Statutory Liabilities 2,77.37.788 3,04,45,165

- Bid Security 48,35.000 15,00,000

- Performance Security 42,66,230 2,03,40,985

- Provident Fund Payable 3,683,998 221720

- Creditors for Capital Gaods 1,27.76,307 2,37,64,399

- Current Maturities of Long-term Liabiities 54,63,450 54,63 450

« Liability against Gratuity and Leave Encashment 13,22,852 -

- interest accrued and Due on Borrowings 41,689,578 -

- Duse to Nationat Industrial Corridor Development and Implementation Trust 25,48,090
(earlier known as DMIC Project implementation Trust Fund)
- Other Expenses Payable 52,45,271 45,580,545
Tatal 6,87,48,564 8,63,32,264
NOTE 8 : SHORT - TERM PROVISIONS

- Proviston for Income Tax 1,89,33,028 -

- Provision for Employee Benefits (Gratuity and Leave Encashment) 1,22,861 17,607

{Refer Note no. 31)

1,90,55,889 17,807
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DELHI MUMBAI INDUSTRIAL CORRIDOR DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED

CIN: U45400D1.2008PLC 172316

NOTES ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2017

NOTE 10 : NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS

Non-Trade Investments (Unquoted fully paid, at cost}
{a} lnvestment made out of PDF of Gol
Other Investmeonts in Equity Shares
i) Dholera international Airport Company Limited
43,806,000 Fully Paid-up Equity shares of ¥ 10f-each

Aggregate Amount of Unquoted invastments

NOTE 11 ; DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (NET)

Defarrad Tax Assets:

- Relating to Fixed Assets

- Relating to Allowances under Income Tax Act, 1861

- Relating to Employee’s Benefits and Allowances under incomse
Tax Act, 1961

Defarred Tax LiabHitles
- Relating to Fixed Assets

NOTE 12 : LONG TERM L OANS AND ADVANCES

{Unsecured, considered good)
- Security Deposits

Total

Totat

As at 31-Mar-2017 As at 31-Mar-2016
Rupees (%) Rupeas {3)
4,38,00,000 4,38,00,000
4,39,00,000 4,39,00,000
17,65074 -
62,975 14,15,250
5,902,723 4,10,485
24,20,772 18,25,745

- 526,174

24,20,772 12,99,571
1,12,68,538 5541478
1,12,68,538 55,41,478
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DELHI MUMBAI INDUSTRIAL CORRIDOR DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED

CIN:; U45400DL2008PLC 172316

NOTES ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2017

NOTE 13 : OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
(a} Project Deveiopmant Expenditure (PDE)
-PDE instthe P t Davalopmant Fund of Govt. of India
- As per tast year”
- Incurred during the year

Add : Adjustment with respect to Praoject Development Activities
(Refer Nate No. 34)

Less: Amount apportioned to SPV

Less: Adjustment against surender of Land (Refer Note No. 35)

Total {a}

As at 31-Mar-2017 As at 31-Mar-2016
Rupeas {¢) Rupees (¥)
3,52,23,57,636 2,73,34,35,088
70,16,37,406 78,95 35,691
4,22 40,45,042 3,62,28,70,788
99,10,287 -
(90,188) (6,13,153)
{35.49,70,388) -
3,87,88.94,753 3,52,23,57,636

* includes T 35,49,70,388/- (Previous Year T 35,49.70,388/.) paid lo the State industrial Corporations for allotment of land for power projects of

subsidiary companies.

(b} Others
- Bank Deposils under Lien against Bank Guarantees
{with more than 12 months maturity)

Total (b)
Totat (a+h)
NOTE 14 : TRADE RECEIVABLES
(Unsecured, considered good)
- Qutstanding for Period exceeding six months
- Others
NOTE 15 : CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash and Bank Balances
{a) Gash and Cash Equivalents *
- Cut of PDF of Govt. of India
Balance with Bank in Current Accounts
Balance with Bank in Deposit Accounts ™
- Out of Othars
Cash in Hard
Balance with Bank in Current Accounts
Balance with Bank in Deposit Accounts **
Cash and Cash Equivalant as por AS -3 Total {a}
{b) Cthar Bank Balances
- Out of PDF of Govt. of iadia
- Qut of Others
Balance with Bank it Deposit Accounts under lien for Bank Guaraniee
Tatat {b)

Total Cash and Bank Balances (a+b}

97,865,618 40,94,558
97,586,618 40,94,558
3,88,86,81,371 3,52,64,52,194
10,06.96,702 59,35.568
10,06,96,702 58,35,568
8,70,68,542 (16.64,741)
10,93,50,804 10,98,35,831
20,683 19,990
(64.70.717) (27.90,177)
1,02.61,89,046 98,88,71,862
1.21.61,58,368 1,09.42.72.765
40.44,558 2,50,00,000
40,44,558 2.50,00,000

1,22,02,02,928

1,11,92,72,788

* (Cash and Cash Equivalents inciude depasits maintained by the Company with banks, which can be withdrawn by the Company at any point of

time withiout priar natice or penalty on the principal.

* |nciudes deposits of NIL {Previous Year NIL) with maturity of more than 12 months.
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DELHI MUMBAI INDUSTRIAL CORRIDOR DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED
CIN: U45400DL2008PLC172316

NOTES ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2017

As at 31-Mar-2017 As at 31-Mar-2016

Rupees (¥) Rupoes (¥}
NOTE 16 : SHORT - TERM L.OANS AND ADVANCES
Short Term Loans and Advances*
{Unsecured, considared good)
{i) Qut of PDF of Govt. of India
18,22,09,666 4,16,89,488

- Other Loans & Advances

(ii} Others
- Advance Tax / TDS (Net of Provisions} - 1,35,36,250
26,56,650 26,56 650

- Balance with Revenue Autharity
- Security Deposits 15,70,353 -
~ Dus from Nationat industrial Corridor Develepment ang Implementation Trust - 1.64,893
{earlier known as DMIC Project Implamentation Trust Fund)
- Other Loans & Advances 1,14.97,409 3,74,18,740
19,79,28,078 9,54,64,021
NOTE 17 : OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
(1) Out of PDF of Gowt. of india
- Interest Accrued But Not Due 7.96,355 37.47,055
- Maharashtra Industriai Development Corporation {MIDG) (Refer Note Nu. 35) 15,681,44,375 -
- Industriai infrastructure Development Corporation {Gwalior} M.P. Lid, -
(Refar Note No. 35} 11,17,79,880
(ii) Others
- Interest Accrued But Not Due 6,14,14,959 7.44.66,275
33,01,38,577 7,82,13,330
NOTE 18 : REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Sale of Power [70,83,960 Kwh Units (Previous Year 38,51,460 Kwh Units)] 6,21,26,328 3,24,20,199
tncome from Data Services* 9,45,93,161 -
Service Fees [Refer Accounting Policy No. (j)) 3,32,62,000 .
Total 18,99,81,489 3,24,20,199

*  The company has entered into an agreement on 13th September, 2018 with M/s Hitachi Limited, Japan, for Data Providing Services for a total
value of ¥ 15,76,55,268/- (excluding service tax at applicable rates). As per the agreement, the 1st set of data and document itemn namely
“Drawings Dala for Design” were provided by the company during the cument financial year. However, the invoice relating to the service
provided amounting to 2 9,45 93,161/- exclusive of service tax being 80% of the lotal vaiue of the service was raised in the month of Aprit, 2017
atter the approval from the purchaser in terms of Adicle 7 of the agreernent. The income relating thereto has been booked an accrual basis in

the current financial yaar.

NOTE 19 : OTHER INCOME

Interest on FO's other than PEF amount 7,97.07.758 9,55,63,756
Bid Processing Fees 766,585 15,060,000
Interest on Income Tax Refund 7,25,256 761,037
Income fram Forfeiture of Bank Guarantee 1,07 43,956 -
Operatian and Maintenance Expenses written back 16,94,717 -
Miscellanecus ncome 1,980 50
Exchange Rate Difference - 274
Totat 9,36,40,252 9,78,25,117
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NOTE 20 : EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES

Salary, Wages and Allowances (including Contractual Employees)
Contribution to Provident/ Pension Fund

Provision for Gratuity

Provision for L.eave Encashment

Staff Welfare Expenses

Stipend

Total

NOTE 21 : FINANCE COSTS
Interest on Borrowings

NOTE 22 : DEPRECIATION

For the year (Refer Note No, 9)
Adjusted for Earlier years (Refer Note No. 9)

For the For the
Year endad Year ended
31-Mar-2017 31-Mar-2018
Rupees (€] Rupeos (€)
29388472 1,88,27,135
24,32.684 11,55,579
5,20,380 660,510
92,795 .
20,03,317 10,85,848
3,19,187 2,086,177
3,47,56,835 2,19,35,249
79,77,038 53,111,137
79,77,038 53,111,137
3,40,97.854 2,54,42, 584
(40,55.722) -
3,00,42,132 2,54,42 594
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For the For the
Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-2017 31-Mar-2016
Rupeos (®) Rupees (¥}
NOTE 23 : OTHER EXPENSES

Rent 1,98,58,205 1,53,32,743
Payment to Auditors 4.28,500 4,93,500
Advertisement and Publfic Notice Expenses 36,96 498 1,18,79 117
Business Promgtion Expenses 8,73,325 81,20,654
Electricity Expenses 3,05,799 252957
Evailuation Committee Sitting Fees 11,60,000 8,300,000
Foreign Travel Expenses 26,64,392 12,91,297
Professional & Consultancy Expenses 51,04,186 26,50,613
Meeting and Refreshment Expenses 13,17,302 8,45,592
Office Repair & Maintenance Expenses 76,801 3,368,963
Repair & Maintenance Expenses - 1,76,717
Water Charges 2,65,409 -
IT Expenses 477,875 -
Printing & Stationery 20,959,402 14,38,541
Communication & Postage Expenses 14,46,111 5,897,820
Travelling & Conveyance Expenses 51,19.778 35,54 679
insurance Expenses 1,16,973 10,832
Director's Sitting Fees 6,055,425 4,47 958
Reversal of Service Tax input . 17,18,526
Prior Pericd Expenses 52,351 79,510
QOther Expenses 14,117,293 933,013
Operation and Maintenance Expenses 78,596 43,071,442
Development Charges 541,927 §,00,000
Service Charges on Land 10,63,550 9.68,850
Rebate to NVWN 11,24,767 4,40,365
4,99,44,465 5,72.04,089
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5
’ NOTES 10 ACCOUNTS Year ended Yaar ended
P" 31-Mar-2017 31-Mar-2016
24 Contingent Liabifities and Commitments (to the extent not provided for):
“’“ A. Contingent Liabilities

{i) Claim on the Company not acknowledged as debt 66,74 853
8. Commitments :
(i) Estimated Amount of contragts remaining 1 be exccutad and not provided for an:

sy - Capital Account 4,90,34,805 16,058,72,393
e - Consultancy Cantracts on account of Project Development 1.04,48,40.418 1,19,36,26,673
o - Operation ang Maintenangce of the Project 6,40,87,122 15,67,75,014
& (i) Other commitments

- Guarantees issued by Bank on behalf of the Company 1,38,31,176 2.80,94,558

25 Earnings and Expenditure in Foreign Currency

| Earnings In Foreign Exchange - .
W Expenditure In Foraign Currency

7y - Foreign Travel Expenses 11,71,885 6,62,853
Lo

26 Payment to Audltors

‘ ) Audit Faes 3,78,500 4,48,500
LY (1} For Other Services 50,000 45,000
428,500 4,93 500

27 Related Party Disclosures

I As per the Accounting Standard on "Related Party Disclosure’ (AS-18) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the related parties
are as fallows :

a  Enterprises having significant influenca/control over the company .
Japan Bank for international Co-operation (JBIC) Yes Yes

b  Affiliates/ Assoclates

Housing and Urban Davelopment Corporation Limitad Yes Yes
)
b ¢ Koy Management Parsonnal
e Shri Alkesh Kumar Sharma Yes Yes
L Shri Talleen Kumar No Yes
Shri Shatrughna Singh No Yes

I The nature and volume of fransactions during the period with the above related parties were as follows:
Amount in Rupees ()

Enterprises
i . having Significant Key Managemant
i Particutars Subsidiaries Affiliatas InfluencelControl Personnel
over the Company
Qutstanding Balances: Nit NH Nil Nil
(N (Nif) (Nit) (Nil}

Aggraegate Trangactions during the periog
£ Shri Akkesh Kumar Sharma Nit Nit N §57.,41.600
i (N {NiD [Nil) (14,32,884)
Wa i Statement of entity wise material transactions during the period
m 8 Payment to Key Management Personnal
Shii Alkesh Kumar Sharma Nil Wil Ni 57,411,600
iy {Nify (Nif) (i) (14,32,884)

Nate: Figures in bracket () represents Previous year's amount.
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28 Segment Reporting

The Company has identified two primary business segments viz. Power Generation and Project Development divisian. Segments have been identified
and reported taking into account the nature of the services, the differing risks and returns, the organizaticnal structure and intemal business reporting

system.

a. Revenue and expenses have been identified to a segment on the basis of relationship to operating activities of the segment.

b. Segment assets and segment tiabilities represent assets and Labilities of respective segment.

¢. Information about Primary Business Segments:

Particulars Power Generation Project Total
Development
REVENUE
External Revenus 17,10,53,459 11,25,68,242 28,36,21,741
{3.48,28.900) (9,54,16,416) {13,02.45,316)
Inter-Segment Revenue Nil 21.90,000 21,80,000
{Nil) {15,71,000) (15.71,000)
Total Revenue 17,10,53,499 11,47,58.242 28,58,11,741
{3,48,28,800) (9,69,87,416) {13,18,16,316)
Add: Allocable Other Income Ni Mil Nil
(il (Nil) (Nl
Segment Revenue 17,10,53,499 11,47,68,242 28,58,11,741
(3,48,28,900) (9,69,87 416) {13,18,16,.318)
Segment Result (before Depreciation) 15,14,38,061 3,95,05,342 19,69,43,403
{1.97.83,.843) (2,61,80,998) (4,59, 74 8411
Profit/ (Loss) before exceptional items and tax 12.32,20,939 3,76,80,332 16,09,01,271
{42,19,569) {Loss} {2.45,71,816) (2,03,52,247)
Exceptional items Nit Nil Nit
(N} (Nif) {Nih
Profit/ {Loss) before tax 12,32 20,939 3,76,80,332 16,09,01.271
{42,19,569) {Loss) {2.45,71,816) {2,03,52,247)
Tax Expenses 3,63,55,100 1,18,21.629 4.81,76.729
{34) (Reversal) {84,50.835) {84,50,801)
Deferred tax write back 9,186,555 2,04,645 11,21,201
(4,89,445) (DTL) {3,17,753) {1,71.692) (OTL)
Profit/ Loss after tax 8,59,49,284 2,60,63,349 11,20,12,633
(47,08.980) (Loss) (1,64,38,734) (1,17,29,754)
Other Information
Particulars Power Generation Project Tatal
Developmant
Segment assets 41,83,62 899 5,82,87 94,410 §.24.71,67.309
(73,91,63,776)[| (4,97.60.42.367} (5,71,52,06,143)
Segment Liabilities 19.83,42,720 36,89,13,748 56,72,56,468
(25,19,55,603) (32,80,78,901) (58,00,34,504)
Capital Expenditure 4,25,88,833 23,81,578 4.49,70,411
(11,08,72,532) {12,74,461) (11.21,46,983)
Depreciation and amortization 2,82,17122 18,25.010 3,00,42,132
(2,38.23,412) (16,119,182} {2.54,42 584)
Non Cash Expenses other than depreciation and amartization {21,081) 6,34,256 6.13,175
{26,754) (6,33,756) (6,560,510}

Note- Figures in bracket () represents Previous year's amount.

d. Information about Secondary Geographical Segments: There is no secondary segment.
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DELHI MUMBAI INDUSTRIAL CORRIDOR DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED
CIN: U45400DL2008PLC172316

NOTES ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2017

29 Earnings Per Share

Basic eamings per equity share have been computed by dividing net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the

period.
Yoar ended Year ended
Particulars Unit 31-Mar-2017 31-Mar-2016
a. Net Profit/(Loss) for the period attributable to Equity Rupees {T) 11,38,45,743 1.17,29,754
Sharehotders
b. Weighted Average of Number of Equity Shares used as Number of Shares 10,00.00,000 10,00,00,000
denominatar for calculating EPS
c. Basic!Di!uled Earnings per share (a/b) Rupees (T} 1.14 012
d. Face Vaiue per Equity Share Rupees (¥) 10.00 10.00

30 Change in Accounting Policy

The net book vaiue of the assets costing less than 5,000/~ has been fully writters off. As a result of the same, the Written Down Value of the assets and
the balance of Profit and Loss has been reduced by % 4,415/- during the current financial year.

31 Retirement Bonofits

Defined C f on Pl

The company has recognized, in the Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended March 31, 2017 an amount of ¥ 24,32,684/- (Previous Year ¥
11,585,579/} under defined contribution plan on the basis of actual contribution 1o the Provident Fund / Pension Fund.

Defined Banefit Plan

a. Gratuity {unfunded): Payment at the time of leaving the organisation upon compietion of 5 years of service, equal to 15 days salary for each
completed year of service. Considering the actuarial valuation, an amount of £ 5,20,380/- (Pravious Year - Provision of 2 6,60.510/-) is provided for in
the Statement of Profit & Loss for the year anded March 31, 2017.

b. Leave Encashment (unfunded): Company intraduced the policy of leave encashment with effect from April 01, 2016. As per the policy, the
employees are entitiad to encash the unavailed ieaves subject to specified limit during the year without carrying forward to the subsequent years.
Value of leave encashment is calculated considering proportionate amount of Basic Salary for the number of unavailed leave.

Gratuity (unfunded)” 31st March, 2017 _ 31st March, 2016
Reconciliation statement of expense in the statemant of profit and loss.

Present value of obligation as at the end of periad {31/03/2017) 17,42,914 12,01,453
Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the pericd (31/03/2016) ©12,01,453 567,697
Benefits paid - -

Actual return on plan assets
Acquisition adjustment
Expenses recognized in the statement of profit & losses

541,461 6,33,756

Expensas racognized in the statement of profit & lnsses
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the period
Acqguisition adjustment

Expected return on plan assets

Employer contributions

Benefits paid

Actuarial gain/(ioss) on plan gssels

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the period
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32

33

35

Fair value of plan assels

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the period . -
Acquisilion adjustment .
Actual retur on plan assels -
Employer contributions : . )
Benefits paid ' .
Fair value of plan assets al the end of the period - -
Funded status )
Excess of actual over estimated return on plan assets - -

Expense recognized In the stateament of profit and loss

Current service cost 4,35,092 315,199
Past service cost - -
Interest cost 96,116 45,416

Expected return on plan assets
Curtailment tost / (Credit) -

Settlement cost / (credit) -

Net actuarial (gain)/ loss recagnized in the period 10,253 2,173,141

Expenses recognized in the statement of profit & losses 5,41,461 6,33,756

Assumptions:

Discounting Rate 8% per annum 8% per annum
6% per annum 6% per annum

Future salary increase
Expected Rate of return on plan assets

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial vaiuation, take into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors
including supply and demand in the employment market.

The above information is certified by the Actuaria! Valuer
The discount rate is based on prevailing market yield as at the date of valuation.

* Figures relates to Holding Company only.
Details of dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006

In absence of confirmation frem Trade Payables on their registration and eligibility under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006,
the amount due to such enterprises at the year-end has been shown as NIL.

QOperating Lease

The Company has three (03) office space at Hotel Ashok, Chankyapuri, New Dalhi on license for an initiaf term of 3 years. The Licansea (Leasea) shall
not be terminate the License before the expiry of the license period except by giving six months advance notice in writing. The license deeds are
renewable on the expiry of the initial lease pericd for a further period of 2 years with muluat agreement. Tolal license fees recagnized in the statement of

profit and loss for the year is ¥ 1,98,58,205/- (Previous Year ¥ 1,53,32,743/-).

The advertiserment and publication expenses incuired by the Company in raspect af Project Daveliopment Activities reduced by the Bid Procassing Fee
received for the same during the previous financial years have been transferred Project Development Expenditure in accordance with the observation of

the Comptrailer and Auditor General of India (CRAG).

The Comparny has passed a resolution by circulation dated 21st April, 2017 to initiate the process to strike off the name of its wholly owned Gas Based
Power SPVs i.e., DMICDC Guna Power Company Limited, DMICDC Indapur Power Company Limited, DMICDC Vaghel Power Company Limited and
DMICDC Ville Bhagad Power Campany Limited from the Register of Companies mairtained by the Registrar of Companies as per the provisions of
Section 248 of the Companies Acl, 2013 read with the Companies {Removal of names of Companies from the Register of Companies) Rules, 2016.

Accordingly, the necessary adjustments for the diminution in the value of investment have been made in the Standalone Financial Statements of the
Holding Company
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NOTES ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2017

36 The Board of Dethi Mumbai Industrial Corridor Development Corparation Limited (DMICDC) in its 42nd maeting held on 16th November, 2016 decided to
retum the land ailotted by the State Industrial Development Corporation far Gas Based Power Projects al Guna in Madhya Pradesh, Indapur and Ville
Bhagad in Maharashtra. DMICDC vide its letters dated 03.12.2016 has returned the land to the respective State Agencies.

Maharashtra Industrial Development Carporation (MIDC) vide latter dated 10.02.2017 conveyed the approval for the refund of the amount of advance
paid by DMICCC Limited and refunded 85% of the total amount paid for Ville Bhagad Power SPV in Maharashtra,

For other sites i.e., Guna and Indapur, the approvais of the respective Competent Authorities are being sought by the State Industrial Corporations
Agencies for the refund of the amount paid by DMICDC against the land parcels.

Necessary effects have been made in the Baoks of the Comparty .

37 The company has been made ane of the respondents in two (02} writ petitions received during the current year related to land acquisition in the State of
Rajasthan. As the company has no role in the acquisition of fand and the same is entirely in the purview of the State Government, the company has filed
a counter affidavit before the Hon'bie High Court of Rajasthan, Jaipur Bench for delating the name of the company as ong of the respandents,

Further the above event has no financial effect on the Cempany,

38 Details of Specified Bank Notes (SBN) hel¢ and fransacted by the Company during the period fram 8th November, 2016 to 30th December, 2016;

SBNs (¥) Othar Denomination Notes (¥) Total (¥)
Clasing Cash in hand as on 08.11.2015 6,000 25,424 31,424
Add: Withdrawat from Bank Accounts - 89,000 89,000
Add: Receipts from Permitted Transactions - 1,279 1,279
Less: Paid for Permitted Payments - 80.163 80,163
Less: Amount deposited in Bank Accounts 6,000 - 6,000
Closing Cash in hand as on 30.12.2016 - 35,540 35,540

39 Investments in Subsidiaries:

Enterprises consolidated as subsidiary in accordance with Accounting Standard 21 - "Consolidated Financial Statements”

S.No. Name of the Company QOwnearship Ownershig

{All incorporated In India} Interest{’:} as on  Interest{%) as on

319t March 2017 31st March 201§
1 DMICDC Guna Power Company Ltd 100% 100%
2 DOMICDC Indapur Power Company {.td 100% 100%
3 DMICDC Vaghel Pawer Company Ltd 100% 100%
4 OMICDC Ville Bhagad Power Company Ltd 100% 100%
5 DMICDC Neemrana Solar Power Company Limited 100% 100%
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CIN: U45400DL.2008PLC 172316

NOTES ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS ON 3158T MARCH, 2017

40 Additional Information, as required under Schedule ili to the Companies Act, 2013, of enterprises consolidated as Subsidiary.

Name of the Company (All Indian Companies) Net Assets, i.e., total assets minus total Share in profit or loss
fiahilities
As % of consolidated Amount (%} As % of Amaunt (2)
net assets consolidated profit
or loss
Parant
Delhi Mumbai Industrial Comidor Devetopment Carporation 0.95994 5,32,56,66,393 0.2097 2,38,73,249
Limited
Subsidiaries {Indian)
1 DMICDC Guna Power Company Lid 0.60004 222,321 -0.0067 (84,59%)
2 DMICDC indapur Power Company Lid 0.00004 2,27,750 -0.0007 {63,456}
3 BMICDC Vaghe! Power Company Lid 0.06004 2,36,163 -0.0007 {83,000)
4 DMICDC Ville Bhagad Power Company | td 0.00004 2,286,919 -0.6007 (83.508)
5 DMICDC Neemrana Solar Power Company Limited 0.03989 22,13,21,205 0.7932 9,03,06,955

Minority interests in alf subsidiaries

41 Figures for the Pravious Year have been reclassified and regrouped where necessary to correspond with the Cuiment Year's presentation,

As per aur Report of even date attached

For S5AR & Assgociatas

For and on behalf of Board

Alkesh Kurjtar Shgrma
{CEC & Managing Direictor)
{DIN : 01724255)

)

{Chief Financial Qfficer} {VP - Corpoarate Affairs, HR
& Company Secretary)

Place: New Delhi
Date : 22nd June, 2017
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